
 

 

1902 - Serving Our Community for over 115 Years - 2021 
WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT  

AGENDA OF BUSINESS  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE DISTRICT BOARD  

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 28, 2021 AT 7:00 P.M.  
RONALD W. SHEPHERD ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, 

 500 LAUREL STREET, MENLO PARK, CALIFORNIA 94025 

Board Members District Manager 
Fran Dehn, President Sergio Ramirez  
David Walker, Secretary  
Roy Thiele-Sardiña, Treasurer District Legal Counsel 
Edward P. Moritz, Member Anthony Condotti, Esq. 
George Otte, Member  
  

AGENDA OF BUSINESS 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC PARTICIPATION BY TELECONFERENCE ONLY 

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the West Bay Sanitary District 
Board of Directors and Staff may participate in this meeting via a teleconference. In the interest of 
reducing the spread of COVID- 19, members of the public are allowed to participate telephonically only, 
and may submit comments in advance by email addressed to treese@westbaysanitary.org by 4:00 p.m. 
on Wednesday, April 28th.     

To participate by telephone or Zoom meeting, public comments can be made by joining Zoom meeting 
at: https://zoom.us/j/98246432426?pwd=TTF4aFZIazZjT2dyc0ZlZXUxRTZzdz09 Meeting ID: 982 4643 
2426 Passcode: 162687  
Or by phone, call: 1-669-900-6833 Meeting ID: ID: 982 4643 2426 Passcode: 162687 
 
Following receipt of public comment and open session items, the Board will adjourn to closed session.  
Reportable action, if any, will be available upon inquiry within twenty-four (24) hours. 

NOTE:  The Board may take action on any agendized item unless specifically designated a 
“discussion” item or a “report.” 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
2. Communications from the Public 
 
3.     Public Hearing: Consideration of Proposed Increase in Sewer Service Charges for Fiscal Year  
        2021/22 Pg. 3-1 
 
4.     Consideration of a General Regulation Amending the Code of General Regulations and    
        Establishing Sewer Service Charges for Fiscal Year 2021/22 Pg. 4-1 
 
5.     Public Hearing - Annexing Certain Territory Within the West Bay Sanitary District’s On-Site  
        Wastewater Disposal Zone – Lands of Murphy (30 Cheyenne Point, Portola Valley) Pg. 5-1  
 
6.    Consideration of Adopting Resolution Ordering Annexation of Certain Parcels in the Territory  
       of West Bay Sanitary District to the West Bay Sanitary District’s On-Site Wastewater Disposal  
       Zone Including Certain Determinations, Findings and Declarations of the District Board – Lands   
      of Murphy (30 Cheyenne Point, Portola Valley) Pg. 6-1 
 

mailto:info@westbaysanitary.org
https://zoom.us/j/98246432426?pwd=TTF4aFZIazZjT2dyc0ZlZXUxRTZzdz09


 

 

7.     Consent Calendar 

Matters listed under this item are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. The 
motion, seconds, and vote are applicable to any included resolutions and recorded accordingly. 
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless specifically requested by a member 
of the Board.  

A. Approval of Minutes for Regular meeting April 8, 2021 Pg. 7A-1 
            B. Consideration of Authorizing the District Manager to Issue Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 1604  
 for the Construction of Wastewater Facilities for 160 Fawn Lane, Portola Valley, California  
 Pg. 7B-1 
            C. Consideration of Authorizing the District Manager to Consent to the Abandonment of Public  
 Utility Easement at 220 Atherton Avenue, Atherton Pg. 7C-1 
            D. Consideration of Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant to Class 3 Sewer Permit  

 No. 1094 for the Construction of Wastewater Facilities for the Development at 1125 Merrill  
 Street, and 506 & 556 Santa Cruz Avenue, Menlo Park Pg. 7D-1 
 E. Consideration of Accepting Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant to Class 3 Sewer Permit  
 No. 1097 for the Construction of Wastewater Facilities for the Development at 846, 848 &  
 850 Portola Road, Portola Valley, California Pg. 7E-1 
 F. Consideration of Resolution Accepting Deed of Easement for 850 Portola Road, Portola  
          Valley, California Pg. 7F-1 
 G. Consideration of Resolution Consenting to Annexation of Territory to the West Bay Sanitary  
          District by the San Mateo County Local Agency Formation Commission – 30 Cheyenne   
          Point, Portola Valley (077-242-190), Lands of Murphy Pg. 7G-1 

 
8.       District Manager’s Report Pg. 8-1 
 
9.      Consideration to Adopt a Resolution to Amend and Extend the Maintenance Services 

Agreement  Between West Bay Sanitary District and The Town Of Los Altos Hills For The 
Operation And  Maintenance of The Los Altos Hills Sanitary Sewer System And Authorize 
The District Manager To  Execute the Third Amendment to the Agreement Pg. 9-1 

 
10.      April 28th Update Report on District Response to Corona Virus Pg. 10-1 
 

11.  Report and Discussion on Sharon Heights Recycled Water Plant Pg. 11-1 
 

12.     Discussion and Direction on Bayfront Recycled Water Project and Status Update Pg. 12-1 
 

13.  Report and Discussion on South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) Pg. 13-1 
 

14.       Report and Discussion on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) Plant Pg. 14-1 
 

15.      Closed Session 
A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION/CONF. WITH LABOR 

NEGOTIATORS 
Agency designated representatives:  District Manager/Legal Counsel 
Unrepresented employee:  Unrepresented Staff 
 
 
 



 

 

B.         CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Cal. Govt. Code §54956.9(d)) 
Name of Case:  1740 Oak Avenue, LP v. West Bay Sanitary District, et al. – SMCSC 
Case No. 18CIV02183 

 
16. Comments or Reports from Members of the District Board and Consider Items to be Placed  
 on Future Agenda  
         

17.    Adjournment

The West Bay Sanitary District does not discriminate against persons with disabilities. Upon request, the agenda and agenda packet can be provided in a 

format to accommodate special needs. If you require a copy of the agenda or related materials in an alternative format to accommodate a disability, or if you 

wish to attend this public meeting and will require special assistance or other special equipment, please call the District at (650) 321-0384 at least five days 

in advance and we will make every reasonable attempt to provide such an accommodation. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 23, 2021 
 

 WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 3 

 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Sergio Ramirez, District Manager 

  

Subject: Public Hearing: Consideration to Approve the Proposed 

Increase in Sewer Service Charges for Fiscal Year 2021/22  

 

 
Background 

In August of 2020 the District contracted with HF&H Consultants to prepare an updated 
FY 2021-22 sewer rate study and sewer rate model that would serve to amend the 
existing financial plan completed by HF&H which was included in the 2011 Master Plan. 
 
The updated sewer rate study and model contains a 5-year revenue requirement 
projection from which future rate increases are anticipated to be adopted in compliance 
with Proposition 218, though each year’s rate increase may be adopted separately.  In 
addition to updating and presenting the sewer rate study and model to staff and the 
District Board, the Consultant has prepared a final project report, has assisted with a 
rate study workshop, and has assisted with the preparation of the notice in accordance 
with Proposition 218 legislation, and will assist with the public hearing(s).   
 
A Sewer Rate Study Workshop was held on January 27, 2021 in which preliminary 
information regarding anticipated rate adjustments, options for alternate rate structures, 
biochemical and suspended solids loading charges, and cost of service analysis were 
discussed.  The Board directed HF&H to complete the Sewer Rate Study for the FY 
2021-22 and present the findings in a final draft report. On February 24, 2021 the Board 
was presented with the Final Draft Sewer Rate Study report for review.  
 
Analysis  

The Sewer Rate Study took into consideration updated data on cash flow, revenues, 
anticipated Capital Improvement Plan projects, District O&M expenses, changes in 
expenses related to labor negotiations, SVCW (Silicon Valley Clean Water) debt 
service, SVCW O&M expenses, SVCW cost allocations, and included the addition of 73 
Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDUs) per year. HF&H inputted the data and returned with a 
revised rate model which predicted rate increases for all customers on the order of 
2.0% in FY 2021-22 and for the next four years thereafter.  During the budget workshop 
the Board directed HF&H to consider a 2.5% increase to the rates for FY2021-22 in the 
model to provide adequate reserves for funding of additional SVCW debt service 
obligations in the next ten years.    

3-1



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 23, 2021 
 

In 2020, the District reviewed the current cost of service for the Onsite Wastewater 
Disposal Zone customers.  Approximately 80 homes in the Portola Valley area (located 
within the On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone) pay higher charges for the maintenance 
of the STEP or Grinder Sewer Collection Systems that they require. The 2020 study 
found the average annual cost to service the STEP or Grinder Sewer Collection 
Systems was $919 per account.  The District currently charges an additional $470 
annually to maintain these collection systems. To realign charges with the cost of 
service, charges for the maintenance of the STEP/Grinder Sewer Collection Systems 
are proposed to increase annually over five fiscal years, the first of which was FY 2020-
21. For fiscal year 2021-22, the second of five fiscal years, the proposed STEP/Grinder 
Sewer Collection System charge is $620, an increase of $150.  

Following Board discussion at the January 27th Board meeting, over the proposed rate 
increase, and the effects on the cash flow in the months of July through November, 
when the District does not receive tax roll revenue, the Board gave direction to consider 
the above recommended approach to future sewer service charges, allowing that 
continued annual rate studies will need to be conducted to adjust to changes in the 
economic environment.  

The Sewer Rate Study includes a model designed to meet revenue requirements, 
ensure a high coverage ratio for debt expense in order to continue to obtain favorable 
bond rates, and preserve target reserve balances as desired by the Board.  HF&H and 
Staff worked hard to design a model that would meet the above criteria and result in the 
lowest cumulative increase of any rate scenario over the five-year horizon. 

The forecast increases are slightly lower than last year’s projections for FY 2021-22. Of 
the overall 2.5% proposed rate increase in FY 2021-22, a large portion is attributable to 
increases in SVCW’s projected costs over the next five fiscal years and a modest 
amount is attributable to increases in the District’s local operations and capital 
expenses over the next five fiscal years.  The increases attributable to SVCW are due 
to increased debt service expense for the SVCW treatment plant Capital Improvement 
Plan.  The treatment plant is the midst of implementing a Capital Improvement Plan that 
includes projects to replace agency pump stations, force mains, and plant 
infrastructure, which were deferred for many years.  

Included in the FY 2021-22 rate adjustments is the expense of meeting the District’s 
share of debt service for bonds and SRF loans to fund the SVCW’s Capital 
Improvement Program.  The District anticipates the estimated total for the SVCW 
Capital Improvement Program to exceed $900 million over the years. The District’s total 
SVCW expenses are projected to grow from $12.7 million per year up to $17.7 million 
to fund the expense of debt service in order to finance the SVCW Capital Improvement 
Program. In FY 2021-22, SVCW’s Op Ex. and Cap Ex. are approximately 45% of the 
District’s total revenue requirement. 

Due to frugal management practices, and only small increases in labor costs, there is 
very little increase projected in the District’s own O&M expenses. However, significant 
factors in the proposed increase in rates are a result of increases in the following areas: 
 

 SVCW debt service for scheduled capital improvement projects 

3-2



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 23, 2021 
 

 SVCW O&M costs 

 Meeting all target operating, capital, and emergency reserves by FY 2025-26 

 Fully funding PERS Unfunded liability by, or before FY 2024-25 

 
Our JPA partners’ rates for FY 2021-22 are not yet known. Based on 8.1 hcf of sewer 
flow per single-family household, Belmont currently charges $129.16 per month, 
Redwood City charges $85.44 per month, and San Carlos charges $111.74. The 
proposed 2.5% increase in West Bay Sanitary District’s sewer service charge compares 
to our JPA partners’ current charges favorably. The proposed West Bay Sanitary 
District rate per single-family household would be equal to $104.58 per month. 

 

Several budgetary items have shown change since last year’s rate study update: 

 

 SVCW has expended approximately $571M through December 1, 2020 and 
estimates spending an additional $381M in CIP expenditures over the next 
ten years. The majority of the remaining CIP expenditures is attributed to 
RESCU projects ($257M). Of the $381M, $102M is allocable to West Bay 
Sanitary District. 

 SVCW has refinanced existing 2014, 2015 bonds to issue a new 2020 bond. 

 SVCW plans to issue an additional SRF loan in FY 2021-22. The District will be 
required to pay $0.4M initially, increasing to $2.1M annually by FY 2023-24. 

 West Bay may further decrease the impact of these bonds by using the Rate 
Stabilization reserve, or excess Capital or Operating Reserves, to buy 
down future debt by SVCW. 

 Negotiated MOU salary increases of 4% per year. 

 

The District may be adding an additional position to assist in the Water Quality 
Department and Pump Station group. The salary would be partially offset by the 
STEP/Grinder O&M fees and the Recycled Water Facilities. 

These changes in West Bay’s overall economic picture translated to a needed rate 
increase in the order of 2.5% for FY 2021/22 based on SVCW plant improvement 
projections and the District’s CIP plans and O&M needs.  

The attached Final Sewer Rate Study report incorporates the Board comments from the 
Sewer Rate Study workshop and is presented for the Board’s consideration to adopt 
the sewer service charges in accordance with Proposition 218 requirements. 

 

 

 

3-3



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 23, 2021 
 

Fiscal Impact  

A 2.5% increase in all sewer service charges will result in annual sewer service rates for 
a single family home increasing from $1,224 to $1,255 per year.  For homes 
(approximately 80 homes) within the OWDZ (Onsite Wastewater Disposal Zone), 
primarily in Portola Valley, the anticipated sewer service charge will increase from 
$1,694 to $1,875 per household. Overall, this equates to an increase in revenues of 
approximately $775,000 per year. 

Recommendation 

In the event that less than fifty percent of the District’s ratepayers appear at the Public 
Hearing to protest the proposed rate increase, the District Manager recommends the 
Board close the Public Hearing following public comment. 
 

Attachments: 
Final Sewer Rate Study by HF&H Consultants dated April 22, 2021 
218 Notice of Public Hearing Mailer 
Public Letters of Protest 
 

3-4



April 22, 2021 - Final Report 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
FY 2021-22 SEWER RATE STUDY 

HF&H Consultants, LLC 
3-5



 

 

3-6



 

West Bay Sanitary District 
500 Laurel Street 

Menlo Park, CA 94025 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
 

April 22, 2021 
 

 

 

 

 

HF&H Consultants, LLC 

201 North Civic Drive, Suite 230 
Walnut Creek, CA 94596 

 

 

© HF&H CONSULTANTS, LLC All rights reserved. 

3-7



 

 

 

 

 

 

3-8



 

 
HF&H CONSULTANTS, LLC 

Managing Tomorrow’s Resources Today 
  

201 North Civic Drive, Suite 230 Robert D. Hilton, Emeritus 
Walnut Creek, California 94596 John W. Farnkopf, PE 
Tel: (925) 977-6950 Laith B. Ezzet, CMC 
hfh-consultants.com Richard J. Simonson, CMC 
 Marva M. Sheehan, CPA 
  Robert C. Hilton, CMC 

 

April 22, 2021 

Mr. Sergio Ramirez 
District Manager 
West Bay Sanitary District 
500 Laurel Street 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 

Subject: FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study – Final Report 

Dear Mr. Ramirez: 

HF&H Consultants (HF&H) is pleased to submit this draft report to update the West Bay 
Sanitary District’s (District’s) FY 2021-22 sewer rates.  The report summarizes the analysis 
that was conducted to develop the recommended rates.  The analysis updates last year’s 
projections to reflect the District’s and Silicon Valley Clean Water’s (SVCW) current 
operating and capital costs. 

The overall increase in revenue will allow the District to: 

• Fund inflationary increases in existing staff and sewer collection system operating 
and maintenance costs;  

• Fund an additional Operator III in FY 2020-21 (whose costs will be split 50/50 with 
Sharon Heights) and an additional full-time Pump Mechanic in FY 2021-22 to 
support operations due to growth and additional treatment operations;  

• Fund $8.2 million in annual capital projects for the District-maintained collection 
system; 

• Fully-fund the District’s share of SVCW’s projected operating and capital costs to 
operate the wastewater treatment plant which grows from $12.7 million to $17.7 
million over the five-year study period; 

• By FY 2024-25, fully fund the District’s OPEB/PERS unfunded accrued liability 
obligation, estimated to be $5.8 million;  

• By FY 2025-26, reach the targeted levels of the District’s operating, capital, rate 
stabilization, and emergency reserve balances; 

• Manage expected reductions in commercial revenue resulting from COVID-19 
stay-at-home orders, which has reduce commercial water use by approximately 
9%; and,  

• Adapt to large, expected increases in SVCW debt service in subsequent years 
beyond FY 2025-26 without resorting to sharp increases in rates beyond the this 
five-year planning period. 

3-9



 
  
  Advisory Services to Municipal Management 
 
 

 

 

* * * * * 

A copy of the rate model is included in the appendix.   

We appreciate this opportunity to continue working for the District.  
 
Very truly yours, 
HF&H CONSULTANTS, LLC 
 
 
John W. Farnkopf, P.E.     
Senior Vice President      
 
Richard J. Simonson, CMC 
Senior Vice President 

3-10



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report Table of Contents 
 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
1.  BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY .................................................................... 1 

1.1. Background ............................................................................................... 1 
1.2. Five-Year Financial Plan .............................................................................. 1 
1.3 Recent Rate Increases ................................................................................ 2 
1.4. Current Sewer Rates .................................................................................. 2 
1.5. Findings and Recommendations .................................................................. 3 

1.5.1 Projected Rate Increases During Five-Year Planning Period......................... 3 
1.5.2 Proposed Rates for FY 2021-22 .................................................................... 4 

2.  REVENUE REQUIREMENT PROJECTIONS .................................................... 5 

2.1. District O&M Expenses ............................................................................... 5 
2.2. District Capital Expenses............................................................................. 6 
2.3. District Reserves ........................................................................................ 7 

2.3.1. Operations Reserve Minimum Balance ......................................................... 7 
2.3.2. Emergency Reserve Target Balance ............................................................. 7 
2.3.3. Capital Reserve Target Balance .................................................................... 7 
2.3.4. Vehicle and Equipment Replacement Fund ................................................... 8 
2.3.5. Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund ................................................................... 8 
2.3.6. Recycled Water Project Reserve Fund .......................................................... 8 
2.3.7. OPEB/PERS Retirement Liability Reserve Fund ........................................... 8 

2.4. SVCW Expenses ......................................................................................... 9 
2.5. Total Revenue Requirements ...................................................................... 9 
2.6. Revenue Increases ................................................................................... 10 
2.7. Fund Balance ........................................................................................... 10 

2.7.1  Minimum Fund Balance .................................................................................11 
2.7.2  Target Fund Balance .....................................................................................11 

3.  PROJECTED RATE INCREASES ................................................................... 13 

3.1. STEP/Grinder Charges .............................................................................. 13 
3.2. Summary of Proposed Rates for FY 2021-22 .............................................. 15 
3.3. Residential Sewer Charge Comparison ....................................................... 16 

 
APPENDIX A.  SEWER RATE MODEL  

3-11



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report Table of Figures 
 
 

 

TABLE OF FIGURES 
Figure 1-1.  Recent Rates and Rate Increases ...................................................................... 2 

Figure 1-2.  Current Rates .................................................................................................. 3 

Figure 1-3.  Projected Rate and Revenue Increases .............................................................. 4 

Figure 2-1.  Key Modeling Assumptions ................................................................................ 5 

Figure 2-2.  District O&M Expense Summary ........................................................................ 6 

Figure 2-3.  CIP Summary ................................................................................................... 6 

Figure 2-4.  SVCW O&M and Debt Service Revenue Requirement ........................................... 9 

Figure 2-5.  Projected Revenue Requirements ...................................................................... 9 

Figure 2-6.  Annual Rate Increases ..................................................................................... 10 

Figure 2-7.  Fund Balance With and Without Increased Rate Revenue ................................... 11 

Figure 3-1.  Projected Rates - Residential ............................................................................ 13 

Figure 3-2.  Projected Rates – Commercial and Industrial ..................................................... 13 

Figure 3-3.  Annual STEP/Grinder System Costs ................................................................... 14 

Figure 3-4. On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone Cost of Service .............................................. 14 

Figure 3-5. Projected STEP/Grinder System Cost Increases ................................................... 15 

Figure 3-6.  Total Projected Annual Charges – Customers with STEP/Grinder Systems ............ 15 

Figure 3-7. FY 2021-22 Proposed Rates .............................................................................. 15 

Figure 3-8. Projected Rates (FY 2021-22 through FY 2025-26) .............................................. 16 

Figure 3-9.  Comparison of Monthly Residential Bills ............................................................. 17 

 

  

3-12



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report Acronyms 
 
 

 

ACRONYMS 
FY Fiscal Year 

CCF or HCF Hundred cubic feet of metered water sold; 748 gallons; a cube of water 4.6 
feet on edge 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

COS Cost of Service 

EDU Equivalent Dwelling Unit 

FTE Full-Time Equivalent 

GPD Gallons per Day 

I&I Inflow & Infiltration 

MGL Milligrams per Liter 

O&M Operations and Maintenance 

PAYGo Pay-As-You-Go, in reference to funding capital improvements from cash 
rather than from borrowed sources of revenue 

SHGCC Sharon Heights Golf & Country Club 

SLAC Stanford Linear Accelerator Center 

SVCW  Silicon Valley Clean Water, a Joint Powers Authority that is responsible 
for regional conveyance and wastewater treatment for West Bay Sanitary 
District and the cities of Redwood City, San Carlos and Belmont. 

STEP Septic Tank Effluent Pumping systems 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

 
 

  

3-13



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report Acknowledgements 
 
 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
District Board 

Fran Dehn, President 

David Walker, Secretary 

Roy Thiele-Sardina, Treasurer 

Edward Moritz, Member 

George Otte, Member 

District Staff 

Sergio Ramirez, District Manager 

Debra Fisher, Finance Manager 

Bill Kitajima, Projects and IT Manager 

HF&H Consultants, LLC 

John Farnkopf, Sr. Vice President 

Rick Simonson, Sr. Vice President 

Gabe Sasser, Senior Associate  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

3-14



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report 1.  Background and Summary 
 
 

HF&H Consultants, LLC Page 1 February 18, 2021 

1.  BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY 

1.1. Background 
The District provides wastewater collection and conveyance services to approximately 
32,000 residential, commercial, and industrial equivalent dwelling units (EDU) through 
a system of pipelines and pump stations that transport their wastewater to the Silicon 
Valley Clean Water (SVCW) facility for treatment and discharge into San Francisco Bay. 
SVCW is a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) that provides wastewater treatment services to 
the Cities of Redwood City, San Carlos, and Belmont as well as the District.   

The District owns and operates wastewater collection system facilities serving portions 
of Menlo Park, Atherton, and Portola Valley.  Wastewater from these communities is 
treated at the SVCW treatment plant, the cost for which is billed to the District and 
included in the District’s sewer service charges.  In addition, the District maintains the 
wastewater collection system operations for the Towns of Los Altos Hills and Woodside 
under service contracts.  Wastewater from these communities is treated at the Palo Alto 
Regional Water Quality Control plant.  Under the services contracts, the District is fully 
compensated by the towns.  The towns are responsible for setting rates for their 
customers, which will cover the District’s cost as well as the cost of treatment.   

1.2. Five-Year Financial Plan 
This report presents a financial plan for the District that incorporates the capital 
improvements identified in the District’s Master Plan, as well as the latest available 
projections provided by SVCW in their January 2020 Long Range Financial Plan. The 
District’s five-year financial plan comprises: 

• Projected District operating and capital expenses to maintain the collection 
system; 

• Projected SVCW operating and capital expenses to maintain and upgrade the 
sewer treatment plant; 

• Projected reserve balances and targets; 

• Projected revenues from the District’s current and proposed sewer service 
charges; and, 

• Projected growth within the District. 

The results of the financial plan indicate the annual increases in sewer service charges 
that are projected to fund the District’s expenses and maintain adequate reserves. 
Detailed spreadsheets comprising the five-year financial plan are included in Appendix 
A. 

3-15



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report 1.  Background and Summary 
 

HF&H Consultants, LLC Page 2 April 22, 2021 

1.3 Recent Rate Increases 
During the last five years, the District’s residential sewer service charges have increased 
as shown in Figure 1-1. 

Figure 1-1.  Recent Rates and Rate Increases 

 

The increases during this period were primarily attributable to SVCW’s increasing debt 
service allocation to the District to fund treatment plant upgrades and, secondarily, to 
inflationary increases in the District’s operating and annual capital repair and 
replacement expenses. 

1.4. Current Sewer Rates 
The District charges sewer customers annually on the tax rolls, which is a common 
practice for billing for sewer service. Billing on the tax rolls is less expensive than it would 
be if the District issued its own bills while allowing the County to easily levy liens for 
nonpayment. Even though the District bills through the tax rolls, its sewer service charges 
are not a tax or assessment. Unlike taxes or assessments, which are based on land-related 
characteristics such as assessed value or parcel size, the District’s sewer charges are a 
form of service fee or charge that is proportionate to the cost of providing sewer service.  

Residential customers are charged per dwelling unit.  In addition, approximately 80 
homes in the Portola Valley area (located within the On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone) 
pay higher charges (currently $470 per year) for the maintenance of the Septic Tank 
Effluent Pump (STEP) system or Grinder Sewer Collection Systems that they require.  

Commercial customers pay charges based on their metered water use from the prior 
calendar year (measured in CCF or hundred cubic feet).  Each non-residential charge is 
the product of the customer’s flow multiplied by the rate corresponding to the customer’s 
class.   

Industrial customers are billed based on each customer’s annual flow and the strength of 
the customer’s wastewater based on sampling data.  

  

FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21
Residential Sewer Service Charge $1,031 $1,072 $1,126 $1,177 $1,224
Percentage Increase 4.0% 5.0% 4.5% 4.0%
Annual Increase - $ per Year $41 $54 $51 $47

3-16



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report 1.  Background and Summary 
 

HF&H Consultants, LLC Page 3 April 22, 2021 

 

Current rates for FY 2020-21 were adopted by the Board in April 2020, as follows: 

Figure 1-2.  Current Rates 

 

1.5. Findings and Recommendations 

1.5.1 Projected Rate Increases During Five-Year Planning Period 
Figure 1-3 indicates the annual rate increases projected for the five-year planning period, 
beginning with FY 2021-22.  The increases indicated below reflect updated assumptions 
and currently available information.  Annual revenues will increase greater than the rate 
increase in most years as the District continues to experience growth in the number of 
customers served.  The increase in total revenues will be partially offset by projected 
reductions to commercial revenues.   Work-from-orders, as well as business hour 
restrictions resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic have decreased commercial 
wastewater discharge, thus lowering commercial revenue, as commercial rates are flow 
based. This decrease in commercial revenues is projected to continue in FY 2021-22, 
though to a lesser degree, with commercial revenues back to “normal” levels by FY 2022-
23. In future years, revenues outpace proposed rate increases due to growth in the 
number of dwelling units.  The five-year financial plan assumes 73 new dwelling units 
each year through FY 2025-26.  Note: due to the District billing on the tax roll, the 
projected annual revenue increases reflect a one-year delay in the realization of the 

Current
FY 2020-21

Residential (charge per DU per year)
Single Family, Multi Family $1,224
On-site Wastewater Disposal Zone $1,694

Commercial (charge per CCF)
Retail/Commercial $9.86
Institution/Public $9.24
Restaurants/Bakeries $20.78

Supermarkets with Grinders $21.01
Hospitals $10.20
Hotels with Dining Facilities $16.78

Industrial (measured)
Flow Rate Charge per CCF $7.28
BOD Rate Charge per pound $1.28
TSS Rate Charge per pound $1.46

3-17



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report 1.  Background and Summary 
 

HF&H Consultants, LLC Page 4 April 22, 2021 

revenue from growth. For example, the growth which occurs in FY 2021-22 will first 
appear on the tax rolls in FY 2022-23. 

Figure 1-3.  Projected Rate and Revenue Increases  

 

1.5.2 Proposed Rates for FY 2021-22 
The following figure shows the current FY 2020-21 rates and the proposed FY 2021-22 
rates, which reflect a 2.5% across-the-board increase to all rates.   In addition, we are 
recommending an additional $150 increase to those customers within the On-Site 
Wastewater Disposal Zone for the increases in costs to maintain the STEP or Grinder 
Sewer Collection Systems that they require1. 

Figure 1-4.  Current and Proposed FY 2021-22 Rates 

 
1 Section 3 of this report provides details of the larger percentage increase recommended for those 
customers within the On-site Wastewater Disposal Zone 

Projected Projected 
Fiscal Year Rate Revenue

Increase Increase
FY 2021-22 2.5% 0.5%
FY 2022-23 2.5% 4.0%
FY 2023-24 2.5% 4.0%
FY 2024-25 2.5% 2.8%
FY 2025-26 2.5% 2.8%

Current FY 2021-22 Proposed
FY 2020-21 Rate $ Chg % Chg

Residential (charge per DU per year)
Single Family, Multi Family $1,224 $1,255 $31 2.5%
On-site Wastewater Disposal Zone¹ $1,694 $1,875 $181 10.7%

Commercial (charge per CCF)
Retail/Commercial $9.86 $10.11 $0.25 2.5%
Institution/Public $9.24 $9.47 $0.23 2.5%
Restaurants/Bakeries $20.78 $21.30 $0.52 2.5%

Supermarkets with Grinders $21.01 $21.54 $0.53 2.5%
Hospitals $10.20 $10.46 $0.25 2.5%
Hotels with Dining Facilities $16.78 $17.20 $0.42 2.5%

Industrial (measured)
Flow Rate Charge per CCF $7.28 $7.46 $0.18 2.5%
BOD Rate Charge per pound $1.28 $1.31 $0.03 2.5%
TSS Rate Charge per pound $1.46 $1.50 $0.04 2.5%

3-18



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report 2.  Revenue Requirement Projections 
 
 

HF&H Consultants, LLC Page 5 February 18, 2021 

2.  REVENUE REQUIREMENT PROJECTIONS 
A spreadsheet model was developed to derive revenue requirements for a five-year 
planning period, FY 2021-22 through FY 2025-26.  The revenue requirements represent 
the costs that must be covered by revenue from rates and other sources.  The District’s 
Operations & Maintenance (O&M) budget for FY 2020-21 served as the starting point for 
projecting the District’s expenses and revenues.  SVCW provided the projections of all 
future SVCW expenses, including debt service, used in the model. The escalation factors 
summarized in Figure 2-1 were incorporated in the model for projecting expenses and 
revenues.  

Figure 2-1.  Key Modeling Assumptions 

 
 

The application of these assumptions to the O&M and capital expenses is described below 
and summarized in Figure 2-2 and Figure 2-3. 

2.1. District O&M Expenses 
The District’s net O&M expenses (summarized by category in Figure 2-2) are projected 
to increase from approximately $8.9 million to $11.3 million over the five-year planning 
period.  The District’s expenses are increasing more rapidly than the rate of inflation due 
to future staffing level additions, the end of approximately $400,000 in annual non-
operating revenue from the flow equalization cost sharing agreement (eff. FY 2024-25), 
and increases in operating expenses due to a growing customer base. With the regional 
focus on residential development, the District projects an annual increase of 73 accounts 
per year, with a total of 365 accounts added by the end of the planning period.  

Assumptions FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
(1) General Inflation Per Budget 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
(2) Utilities Per Budget 7.0% 7.0% 7.0% 7.0% 7.0%
(3) Salaries Per Budget 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%
(4) Benefits Per Budget 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%
(5) PERS Unfunded Accrued Liability Per Budget -23.7% 9.6% 7.5% 7.6% 1.1%
(6) SVCW O&M Expenses Increase % Per Budget 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
(7) Interest on Earnings 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25%
(8) Miscellaneous Per Budget 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%
(9) Los Altos Hills, Woodside Revenue Change Per Budget 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
(10) Construction Cost Inflation Per Budget 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
(11) Increase in Annual Residential Customers Per Budget 73 73 73 73 73
(12) Number of Total Residential Customer Accounts 19,515 19,588 19,661 19,734 19,807 19,880
(13) Annual Percentage in Residential Account Growth Per Budget 0.4% 0.4% 0.4% 0.4% 0.4%
(14) Annual Increase in Salaries for OT due to Growth Per Budget 0.0% 0.0% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
(15) Non-resid. rev. decrease due to COVID (% chng fro  Per Budget -10.0% -5.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

3-19



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report 2.  Revenue Requirement Projections 
 

HF&H Consultants, LLC Page 6 April 22, 2021 

Figure 2-2.  District O&M Expense Summary 

 

2.2. District Capital Expenses 
The District’s capital expenses are summarized by category in Figure 2-3.  The District’s 
annual budgeted capital expenditures range from a low of $7.9 million (in FY 2021-22) to 
$9.0 million (in FY 2023-24), during the five-year planning period.  On average, the 
District expects to spend approximately $8.2 million annually on these projects (during 
the five-year planning period FY 2021-22 to FY 2025-26).  

Collection Facilities and Underground Pipe Replacement and Rehabilitation projects 
make up the bulk of the District’s planned improvements. The primary Collection 
Facilities project planned for FY 2021-22 through FY 2023-24 is the Levee (FERRF) 
Improvements. In FY 2023-24 through the end of the planning period, the District 
anticipates several large scale pipe replacement or rehabilitation projects. 

Figure 2-3.  CIP Summary 

 

The District plans to fund these capital improvements from connection fee revenue and 
sewer service charge revenue on a pay-as-you-go (PAYGo) basis without issuing debt, 
which continues the District’s historical practice.   

Current Year

FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Salaries $3,963,828 $4,272,381 $4,443,276 $4,642,444 $4,850,543 $5,067,973
Benefits $2,841,502 $2,955,162 $3,073,369 $3,196,303 $3,324,155 $3,457,122
PERS Unfunded Accrued Liability $382,655 $292,110 $320,110 $344,109 $370,109 $374,000
Contractual/Professional Services $976,220 $1,009,145 $1,043,166 $1,078,320 $1,114,644 $1,152,176
Other O&M $1,595,472 $1,578,680 $1,703,848 $1,691,056 $1,820,387 $1,811,930
Non-Operating Revenue ($816,184) ($838,650) ($861,769) ($885,561) ($499,029) ($511,898)

Net District Operating Costs $8,943,493 $9,268,828 $9,722,000 $10,066,670 $10,980,809 $11,351,303

3.6% 4.9% 3.5% 9.1% 3.4%

Five-Year Planning Period

Current Year

FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Administration $350,000 $1,000,000 $1,500,000 $500,000 $0 $0
Collection Facilities $2,245,550 $6,500,000 $6,500,000 $2,500,000 $500,000 $500,000
Pipe Replacement and/or Rehab. $4,800,000 $200,000 $200,000 $5,825,000 $7,000,000 $7,397,500
Capacity $1,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Construction Proj. Environ Review $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
Manhole Raising $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000
Allow. For Unanticipated Cap Exp $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000
Vehicles and Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Total Capital Expenses $9,105,550 $7,910,000 $8,410,000 $9,035,000 $7,710,000 $8,107,500
Less: Connection Fee Revenue ($250,000) ($505,087) ($505,087) ($505,087) ($505,087) ($505,087)

Net Capital Expenses $8,855,550 $7,404,913 $7,904,913 $8,529,913 $7,204,913 $7,602,413
-16% 7% 8% -16% 6%

Five-Year Planning Period

3-20



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report 2.  Revenue Requirement Projections 
 

HF&H Consultants, LLC Page 7 April 22, 2021 

2.3. District Reserves 
In addition to covering annual expenses, sewer service charges need to generate revenue 
to maintain adequate operations and capital reserves. To determine what constitutes 
adequate reserve amounts, the reserve balance was subdivided into Operations, Capital, 
Vehicle and Equipment Replacement, Rate Stabilization, Recycled Water Project, 
Emergency Reserves, and an OPEB/PERS Retirement Liability Reserve Fund. In this 
way, it is possible to set recommended target balances for each purpose.  

2.3.1. Operations Reserve Minimum Balance 
The Operations Reserve provides working capital for monthly O&M expenses. There is a 
nine-month lag between sewer service charge payments from the County tax assessor; 
therefore, the minimum Operations Reserve balance is set equal to five months of O&M 
expenses to provide adequate cash flow. If this minimum balance is maintained, the 
District should be able to fund its monthly operations cash flow over this extended period 
without relying on the Capital Reserve for a short-term loan.  Maintaining the minimum 
balance for the Operations Reserve is recommended as the highest priority for the 
District’s three reserves. 

2.3.2. Emergency Reserve Target Balance 
The target balances for the Operations and Capital Reserves are sufficient to provide 
working capital on an ongoing basis, but do not provide for unforeseen contingencies 
such as emergencies. Should an emergency strike (e.g., earthquake), the District cannot 
suddenly raise rates to generate additional funds due to state law requirements for such 
rate increases (e.g., Proposition 218). Moreover, the District bills annually on the tax rolls.  
Therefore, the District has set a target for the Emergency Reserve of $5.0 million. With 
such a reserve, the District would have funds on hand to take immediate remedial steps 
without waiting to procure a loan or issue bonds.  

Maintaining the target balance for the Emergency Reserve is recommended as the second 
highest priority after meeting the minimum balance for the Operations Reserve. The 
Emergency Reserve can be used for funding capital projects at times when the Capital 
Reserve is not fully funded.  

2.3.3. Capital Reserve Target Balance 
The Capital Reserve provides liquidity to fund construction for projects that are funded 
on a PAYGo basis (as opposed to those that are funded from debt). With adequate capital 
reserves, the District is able to pay contractors without encroaching on the Operations or 
Emergency Reserves. Historically, the initial target reserve balance was $3.5 million. 
However, construction cost escalation, averaging 15% annually over the last four years, 
has raised the costs to perform capital improvements. Rising costs correlate to increases 
in replacement of underground pipelines, as evidenced in Figure 2-3. In light of rising 
costs, the Board revised the target balance to $6.0 million.  Maintaining the target balance 

3-21



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report 2.  Revenue Requirement Projections 
 

HF&H Consultants, LLC Page 8 April 22, 2021 

for the Capital Reserve is recommended after meeting the minimum balances for the 
Operations and Emergency Reserves.  

2.3.4. Vehicle and Equipment Replacement Fund 
The Vehicle and Equipment Replace fund provides resources to replace District fleet 
vehicles and operations equipment. The District maintains a schedule for replacement 
based on the useful life of the asset. The target reserve balance of $0.6 million ensures 
there are sufficient funds on hand to keep up with the retirement of old equipment or 
vehicles with the purchase of their replacements. In past years, a small portion of the 
Capital reserve budget included vehicle and equipment replacement costs. However, 
going forward, the District has requested this fund to be tracked separately from the 
Capital Reserve. 

2.3.5. Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund 
The Board established a rate stabilization fund to allow a margin of safety for the 
uncertainty of the timing and amount of SVCW capital expenditures to upgrade the 
wastewater treatment facility (as discussed in Section 2.4 below).  The funds could be 
used to minimize future rates increases and/or to reduce interest expenses by buying 
down the amount of debt to be issued by SVCW to fund the upgrades.  Within the last 
five years, the District has utilized this reserve to remove a $13.0 million debt obligation.  
The District anticipates future debt obligations and is building this reserve to buy down 
future debt. 

2.3.6. Recycled Water Project Reserve Fund 
In late 2016, the Board established an $8 million reserve fund for future capital 
expenditures to help reduce potable water use by constructing a satellite recycled water 
treatment facility at the SHGCC to use recycled water to irrigate the golf course and also 
to serve water to the Stanford Linear Accelerator Center (SLAC) for irrigation and 
industrial uses such as for cooling towers.  These funds have been set aside to fund design 
and construction costs that will be incurred prior to receiving funding from the State 
Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB).  The SWRCB has remitted payments to the 
District as construction has completed.  The District intends to infuse these funds back 
into operating reserves and other recycled water projects when necessary for cash-flow 
purposes. 

2.3.7. OPEB/PERS Retirement Liability Reserve Fund 
In February 2018, the Board established a reserve fund to offset the District’s unfunded 
pension liability.  As of June 30, 2020, the District’s unfunded liability was just under $6 
million and the reserve fund balance was $2,036,722.   In 2020-21 the District contributed 
an additional $2.6 million, including $1.6 million transferred from the reserve fund. The 
projected unfunded liability as of June 30, 2021 is $3.3 million.  The District plans to 
continue making additional transfers of $1 million each year until the outstanding 
balance is zero.  Our analysis shows the goal will be met by the end of June 30, 2024. 

3-22



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report 2.  Revenue Requirement Projections 
 

HF&H Consultants, LLC Page 9 April 22, 2021 

2.4. SVCW Expenses 
In FY 2021-22, SVCW’s treatment charge projects as 45% of the District’s total revenue 
requirement, and is the District’s single largest expense, which will increase to 48% of the 
District’s total revenue requirement by FY 2025-26.  The District’s treatment charge is 
allocated in proportion to the number of its EDUs compared with the other SVCW 
member agencies, currently 26.84%.  As shown in Figure 2-4, SVCW’s cost has recently 
increased significantly to fund the debt service on a series of bonds and SRF loans, that 
has been issued to fund the rehabilitation of its interceptors, pump stations, and 
wastewater treatment plant.  

Figure 2-4.  SVCW O&M and Debt Service Revenue Requirement 

 

2.5. Total Revenue Requirements 
The foregoing modeling assumptions lead to the projected revenue requirements shown 
in Figure 2-5. 

Figure 2-5.  Projected Revenue Requirements 

  
 

Highlights of the District’s projected revenue requirements are as follows:  

• The District will fund an average of $9.0 million annually in SVCW operating 
expenses, including PAYGo Capital projects and increased costs due to a growing 
customer base. 

Current Year Projected
SVCW Projected Expenses FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

Net Operating Expense $6,883,538 $7,090,044 $7,302,746 $7,521,828 $7,747,483 $7,979,907
Revenue-Funded Capital (PAYGo) $347,712 $402,600 $402,600 $402,600 $402,600 $402,600
Debt Reserves $409,274 $543,421 $677,819 $812,224 $946,635 $1,081,052

Debt Service
Existing Bonds (2014, 2015, 2018) $4,593,692 $1,839,213 $1,834,338 $1,837,963 $1,834,963 $1,835,338
2020 Refunding Bonds (New) $0 $2,845,087 $2,848,607 $2,840,584 $2,848,749 $2,842,521
Fixed-Rate Bond Issue #1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $302,594 $302,594
Existing SRF $506,765 $726,842 $726,842 $726,842 $726,842 $726,842
SRF for Conveyance Planning $0 $409,614 $409,614 $409,614 $409,614 $409,614
New SRF Loan(s) $0 $0 $0 $1,774,308 $1,774,308 $1,774,308

Subtotal SVCW Debt Service $5,100,457 $5,820,756 $5,819,401 $7,589,310 $7,897,069 $7,891,216
Subtotal, SVCW $12,740,981 $13,856,821 $14,202,566 $16,325,962 $16,993,787 $17,354,775

SVCW Expenses due to growth $0 $26,423 $53,538 $81,362 $109,916 $139,219
Total, SVCW Project Expenses $12,740,981 $13,883,243 $14,256,103 $16,407,325 $17,103,703 $17,493,994

Current Year

FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
SVCW Operating Expenses $7,640,524 $8,062,488 $8,436,703 $8,818,014 $9,206,634 $9,602,778
SVCW Debt Service $5,100,457 $5,820,756 $5,819,401 $7,589,310 $7,897,069 $7,891,216
WBSD Capital Imp. Program $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413
WBSD Operating Expenses $8,943,493 $9,268,828 $9,722,000 $10,066,670 $10,980,809 $11,351,303
Contribution To/(From) Reserves $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Projected Revenue Req't. $29,413,887 $30,881,485 $31,707,516 $34,203,408 $35,813,925 $36,574,710

Five-Year Planning Period

3-23



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report 2.  Revenue Requirement Projections 
 

HF&H Consultants, LLC Page 10 April 22, 2021 

• The District will fund an average of $7.0 million annually in SVCW debt service. 

• There are 3.5% average annual increases in District O&M costs. 

•  $8.2 million annually in District PAYGo capital projects. 

• The District plans to continue making annual transfers to the District’s 
OPEB/PERS unfunded liability reserve and will meet the full liability amount by 
FY 2023-24. 

• All Operating, Capital, Rate Stabilization, OPEB/PERS, and Emergency reserve 
levels will be funded to their respective target levels by FY 2024-25.  

2.6. Revenue Increases 
The District’s revenue requirements increase over the next five years.  Current rates 
cannot support the projected revenue requirements shown in Figure 2-5. As stated 
previously, the District projects 0.4% annual growth in customer accounts which will 
provide an additional $1.3 million in additional revenue over the five year period. 
Revenue derived from growth helps to reduce the rate increases necessary to keep up 
with the projected increases in expenses (i.e., the revenue requirement). Figure 2-6 
summarizes the annual increase in revenue requirement and the recommended rate 
increases. 

Figure 2-6.  Annual Rate Increases 

 

2.7. Fund Balance 
Figure 2-7 shows the projected annual fund balances with the rate revenue increases 
recommended in Figure 2-6 (solid green line). Although the projections show straight 
lines between years, the fund balance will be drawn down substantially during each year. 
In other words, the reserves are actively drawn from at all times during the year but only 
periodically added to when payments are received from the County. The reserves are not 
simply accumulated without being used.  The recommended revenue increases will 
maintain a fund balance above the target during the five-year planning period.  

This strong position provides the District with opportunities to use reserves for future 
anticipated expenses. For example, the District anticipates increases in SVCW debt 
service beyond FY 2025-26. With its reserve position, the District can fund these increased 
costs without resorting to sharp increases in future rates or having to participate in debt-
financing with the SVCW, much like the District did in 2019 when the Board authorized 
contributing $13.5 million (in two payments) from the District’s reserves to reduce the 

 

FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Projected Revenue Requirement Increases 5.0% 2.7% 7.9% 4.7% 2.1%
Proposed Rate Increases 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%

Five-Year Planning Period

3-24



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report 2.  Revenue Requirement Projections 
 

HF&H Consultants, LLC Page 11 April 22, 2021 

District’s proportionate share of an SVCW bond obligation, which resulted in lower 
interest expenses for the District over the 30-year term of the bond. In addition, during 
the rate study period, the District is exploring the possibility of installing a new Bayfront 
Recycled Water Facility to produce 0.5 million gallons per day (MGD) of recycled water. 
Other than the recycled water facility itself, the system improvements would include new 
influent and effluent pump stations, as well as, piping to transport the recycled water to 
customers in the Menlo Park Bayshore Area. The District will have the opportunity to use 
reserves, which currently exceed the target, to fund these improvements that have yet to 
be fully vetted. 

Figure 2-7.  Fund Balance With and Without Increased Rate Revenue 

  
 

2.7.1  Minimum Fund Balance 
The minimum balance (red line) is the balance that is required to meet the District’s 
operating expenses during the year.  The balance is large because the District bills 
annually on the tax rolls and receives reimbursement from the County twice each year.  
As a result, there are several months over which the District must rely heavily on its 
operating reserve to meet its monthly cash flow requirements.  Because of the lag between 
payments from the County, the minimum Operations Reserve balance is set equal to five 
months of SVCW and District operating expenses.   

2.7.2  Target Fund Balance 
The target balance is the sum of the minimum balance for operations (red line) plus an 
allowance for capital projects ($6.0 million), emergency capital reserves ($5.0 million), 

3-25



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report 2.  Revenue Requirement Projections 
 

HF&H Consultants, LLC Page 12 April 22, 2021 

vehicle and equipment replacement fund ($0.6 million), and rate stabilization reserves 
($8.0 million).  The capital allowance provides working capital to maintain sufficient 
funds in order to pay contractors so that work can proceed without delay.  Emergency 
reserves help manage risks associated with sudden asset failures caused by emergencies 
such as natural disasters or human error.  Emergency reserves are a form of capital 
reserve that can provide a measure of self-insurance so that immediate funding is 
available for disaster recovery until loans can be arranged.  The vehicle and equipment 
replacement fund provides for the scheduled replacement of the District’s fleet vehicles 
and operational equipment. 

3-26



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report 3.  Projected Rate Increases 
 
 

HF&H Consultants, LLC Page 13 February 18, 2021 

3.  PROJECTED RATE INCREASES 
Current rates cannot support the projected revenue requirements shown in Figure 2-5. 
The projected rate increases, and corresponding residential sewer service charges, are 
summarized in Figure 3-1 (Residential) and Figure 3-2 (Commercial and Industrial).  

Figure 3-1.  Projected Rates - Residential 

 

Figure 3-2.  Projected Rates – Commercial and Industrial 

 

3.1. STEP/Grinder Charges 
The District has approximately 79 single family residential customers located in the On-
Site Wastewater Disposal Zone who require either Septic Tank Effluent Pumping 
systems (STEP) or Grinder Pumping systems.  These customers are currently charged 
an additional $470 annually for the services the District provides these customers to 
service and replace their pumps and appurtenances.  
 
Last year, the District re-examined the service costs specific to these customers and 
found the revenues collected have not been keeping pace with the annual rate increases. 
Figure 3-3 details the current cost to provide STEP/grinder system maintenance for 
these customers.  

ADOPTED
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

Residential Sewer Service Charge $1,224 $1,255 $1,286 $1,318 $1,351 $1,385
Percentage Increase 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Annual Increase - $ per Year $31 $31 $32 $33 $34

Five-Year Planning Period

Adopted
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

Annual Increase 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Commercial (charge per CCF)

Retail/Commercial $9.86 $9.86 $10.10 $10.36 $10.62 $10.88
Institution/Public $9.24 $9.24 $9.47 $9.71 $9.95 $10.20
Restaurants/Bakeries $20.78 $20.78 $21.30 $21.83 $22.38 $22.94
Supermarkets with Grinders $21.01 $21.01 $21.54 $22.07 $22.63 $23.19
Hospitals $10.20 $10.20 $10.46 $10.72 $10.99 $11.26
Hotels with Dining Facilities $16.78 $16.78 $17.20 $17.63 $18.07 $18.52

Industrial (measured)
Flow Rate Charge per CCF $7.28 $7.28 $7.47 $7.65 $7.84 $8.04
BOD Rate Charge per pound $1.28 $1.28 $1.31 $1.35 $1.38 $1.41
TSS Rate Charge per pound $1.46 $1.46 $1.50 $1.54 $1.58 $1.62

Projected

3-27



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report 3.  Projected Rate Increases 
 

HF&H Consultants, LLC Page 14 April 22, 2021 

Figure 3-3.  Annual STEP/Grinder System Costs 

 

 
As shown in Figure 3-4, the FY 2019-20 charge of $320 was insufficient to cover the $919 
annual cost of service per account. Rather than increase the STEP/Grinder charge to 
meet the cost of service in one year, the increases will be phased in over five fiscal years. 
This phasing will avoid rate shock and will allow the District to recoup the cost of 
service by FY 2024-25.  Figure 3-4 calculates the increase for this additional service over 
five consecutive years. The increase in FY 2021-22 will be the second annual phased 
increase.   
 

Figure 3-4. On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone Cost of Service 

 

Private Pump System Maintenance Annual Costs

1. Labor Cost
STEP System Bi-Annual Pump Maint. $5,099
STEP System Bi-Annual Pump Maint. - Facility Supv. $8,798
Grinder System Bi-Annual Pump Maint. $5,099
Grinder System Bi-Annual Pump Maint. - Facility Supv. $8,798
STEP pump replacement $2,779
Grinder pump replacement $4,343
Private pump station repairs $4,169
Coordination with phone utility companies $1,020

Subtotal Labor Costs $40,105

2. Material Costs
Signa Mechanical Open Purchase Order $7,000
Envirozyme - Fog Digester $3,000
ISAC Controllers/Modem $2,500
Private Pump and Panel Replacement $20,000

Subtotal Material Costs $32,500

Total Costs For Private Pump Systems $72,605

Number of Private Units 79
Total Cost per Private Pump Site $919

Private Pump System Cost of Service Analysis

Current Cost per Private Pump Site ($919)

Escalated FY 2024-25 cost @ 3%/yr for 5 years ($1,065)
Existing Charge per Private Pump Site $320
Difference between cost and existing charge ($745)
Difference spread over 5 fiscal years for rates 5

Proposed Annual Increase over 5 years $150

3-28



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report 3.  Projected Rate Increases 
 

HF&H Consultants, LLC Page 15 April 22, 2021 

Figure 3-5 summarizes the proposed annual STEP/Grinder charge over the next five 
fiscal years, assuming an annual increase of $150 per account through FY 2024-25. FY 
2025-26 increases to the STEP/Grinder charge assume a 2.5% increase which follows the 
recommended increase to the base service charge.  

 

Figure 3-5. Projected STEP/Grinder System Cost Increases 

 

Figure 3-6 summarizes the total annual charge for those customers with a 
STEP/Grinder System.  Such customers are charge the base service charge and the 
additional costs to maintain the STEP/Grinder System.    
 

Figure 3-6.  Total Projected Annual Charges – Customers with STEP/Grinder Systems 

 

3.2. Summary of Proposed Rates for FY 2021-22 
Figure 3-7 provides a schedule of proposed FY 2021-22 rates for all customer types, as 
discussed above. 

Figure 3-7. FY 2021-22 Proposed Rates 

 

ADOPTED
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

Annual STEP/Grinder Charge $470 $620 $770 $920 $1,070 $1,097
$ Increase $150 $150 $150 $150 $27

Five-Year Planning Period

ADOPTED
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

Base Service Charge $1,224 $1,255 $1,286 $1,318 $1,351 $1,385
Annual STEP/Grinder Charge $470 $620 $770 $920 $1,070 $1,097

Annual Bill $1,694 $1,875 $2,056 $2,238 $2,421 $2,482
$ Increase $181 $181 $182 $183 $61

Five-Year Planning Period

Current FY 2021-22 Proposed
FY 2020-21 Rate $ Chg % Chg

Residential (charge per DU per year)
Single Family, Multi Family $1,224 $1,255 $31 2.5%
On-site Wastewater Disposal Zone $1,694 $1,875 $181 10.7%

Commercial (charge per CCF)
Retail/Commercial $9.86 $10.11 $0.25 2.5%
Institution/Public $9.24 $9.47 $0.23 2.5%
Restaurants/Bakeries $20.78 $21.30 $0.52 2.5%

Supermarkets with Grinders $21.01 $21.54 $0.53 2.5%
Hospitals $10.20 $10.46 $0.25 2.5%
Hotels with Dining Facilities $16.78 $17.20 $0.42 2.5%

Industrial (measured)
Flow Rate Charge per CCF $7.28 $7.46 $0.18 2.5%
BOD Rate Charge per pound $1.28 $1.31 $0.03 2.5%
TSS Rate Charge per pound $1.46 $1.50 $0.04 2.5%

 

3-29



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report 3.  Projected Rate Increases 
 

HF&H Consultants, LLC Page 16 April 22, 2021 

Revenue increases for subsequent years have been projected in this financial plan and 
are based on several assumptions and information that will require review prior to 
adopting any future rate increases. Figure 3-8 summarizes projected rates over the 
entire five-year financial planning period. 
 

Figure 3-8. Projected Rates (FY 2021-22 through FY 2025-26) 

 

3.3. Residential Sewer Charge Comparison 
Based on available sources, Figure 3-9 shows the recent charges for sewer service among 
various San Mateo and Santa Clara County agencies.  Larger agencies tend to have lower 
rates because they can take advantage of economies of scale and have a larger base of 
customers over which to distribute fixed costs.  Figure 3-9 shows the District’s current 
and proposed sewer rates along with the other SVCW member agencies (identified with 
blue squares in the figure below). It should be noted that the other SVCW member 
agencies also face similar additional costs. It is expected that these agencies will be 
required to increase their rates substantially to cover their share of SVCW costs. Even 
with the projected rate increases, we would not expect the District’s relative position 
among its neighbors to change significantly. 

Adopted
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

Residential (charge per DU per year)
Single Family, Multi Family $1,224 $1,255 $1,286 $1,318 $1,351 $1,385
On-site Wastewater Disposal Zone $1,694 $1,875 $2,056 $2,238 $2,421 $2,482

Commercial (charge per CCF)
Retail/Commercial $9.86 $10.11 $10.36 $10.62 $10.88 $11.16
Institution/Public $9.24 $9.47 $9.71 $9.95 $10.20 $10.45
Restaurants/Bakeries $20.78 $21.30 $21.83 $22.38 $22.94 $23.51
Supermarkets with Grinders $21.01 $21.54 $22.07 $22.63 $23.19 $23.77
Hospitals $10.20 $10.46 $10.72 $10.98 $11.26 $11.54
Hotels with Dining Facilities $16.78 $17.20 $17.63 $18.07 $18.52 $18.99

Industrial (measured)
Flow Rate Charge per CCF $7.28 $7.46 $7.65 $7.84 $8.04 $8.24
BOD Rate Charge per pound $1.28 $1.31 $1.34 $1.38 $1.41 $1.45
TSS Rate Charge per pound $1.46 $1.50 $1.53 $1.57 $1.61 $1.65

Projected

3-30



West Bay Sanitary District FY 2021-22 Sewer Rate Study 
Final Report 3.  Projected Rate Increases 
 

HF&H Consultants, LLC Page 17 April 22, 2021 

Figure 3-9.  Comparison of Monthly Residential Bills 

 

 

3-31



 

 

 

3-32



APPENDIX A.  SEWER RATE MODEL 
 

 

 

3-33



 

 

 

3-34



1
2
3
4

5
6
7
8
9
10

11

12
13

14
15
16

17

18

19

20
21
22
23
24
25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36
37

38

A B C D E F G H I
West Bay Sanitary District
Sewer Rate Study
Table 1A. Summary

RESIDENTIAL
Adopted

Fiscal Year: FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 Notes
1 Base Service Charges 4.0% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% To Tables 3, 4
2 Cumulative Increase 2.5% 5.1% 7.7% 10.4% 13.1%
3 $ Increase $31 $31 $32 $33 $34
4 Residential Bill (annual) $1,224 $1,255 $1,286 $1,318 $1,351 $1,385
5 % incr 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%

6 Annual  STEP/Grinder Charge $320 $470 $620 $770 $920 $1,070
7 Proposed Annual Increases ($) $150 $150 $150 $150 $150 $27 To Table 3
8 Total Annual STEP/Grinder Charge $470 $620 $770 $920 $1,070 $1,097
9

10 Base Service Charge (from above) $1,224 $1,255 $1,286 $1,318 $1,351 $1,385

11 Total Annual Bill (Base + STEP/Grinder) $1,694 $1,875 $2,056 $2,238 $2,421 $2,482
12 10.7% 9.7% 8.9% 8.2% 2.5%

COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL
Adopted

Fiscal Year: FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
% Increase 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%

Commercial (charge per CCF)
Retail/Commercial $9.86 $10.11 $10.36 $10.62 $10.89 $11.16
Institution/Public $9.24 $9.47 $9.71 $9.95 $10.20 $10.46
Restaurants/Bakeries $20.78 $21.30 $21.83 $22.38 $22.94 $23.51
Supermarkets with Grinders $21.01 $21.54 $22.08 $22.63 $23.20 $23.78
Hospitals $10.20 $10.46 $10.72 $10.99 $11.26 $11.54
Hotels with Dining Facilities $16.78 $17.20 $17.63 $18.07 $18.52 $18.98

Industrial (measured)
Flow Rate Charge per CCF $7.28 $7.46 $7.65 $7.84 $8.04 $8.24
BOD Rate Charge per pound $1.28 $1.31 $1.34 $1.37 $1.40 $1.44
TSS Rate Charge per pound $1.46 $1.50 $1.54 $1.58 $1.62 $1.66

HF&H  Consultants, LLC
2/17/2021  10:26 AM 1

WBSD 2021 Sewer Model_16Feb2021
1A. Summary

3-35



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29
30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41
42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

A B C D E F G H I
West Bay Sanitary District
Sewer Rate Study
Table 1B. General

List of Model Worksheets
Table 1A. Summary
Table 1B. General
Table 2. Revenue Requirement
Table 3.  Revenue Increases
Table 4. Reserves
Table 5. Capital Projects
Table 6. WBSD Service

Assumptions FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 Notes
(1) General Inflation Per Budget 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% To Table 2
(2) Utilities Per Budget 7.0% 7.0% 7.0% 7.0% 7.0% To Table 2
(3) Salaries Per Budget 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% To Table 2
(4) Benefits Per Budget 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% To Table 2
(5) PERS Unfunded Accrued Liability Per Budget -23.7% 9.6% 7.5% 7.6% 1.1% From Table 2
(6) SVCW O&M Expenses Increase % Per Budget 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% From Table 2
(7) Interest on Earnings 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% To Table 4
(8) Miscellaneous Per Budget 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% To Table 2
(9) Los Altos Hills, Woodside Revenue Change Per Budget 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% To Table 2
(10) Construction Cost Inflation Per Budget 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% To Table 5
(11) Increase in Annual Residential Customers Per Budget 73 73 73 73 73 To Table 3
(12) Number of Total Residential Customer Accounts 19,515 19,588 19,661 19,734 19,807 19,880
(13) Annual Percentage in Residential Account Growth Per Budget 0.4% 0.4% 0.4% 0.4% 0.4% To Table 2
(14) Annual Increase in Salaries for OT due to Growth Per Budget 0.0% 0.0% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% to Table 2
(15) Non-resid. rev. decrease due to COVID (% chng from pre-COVID)Per Budget -10.0% -5.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% To Table 3

Target Fund Balances
Operating Fund

Purpose For O&M cash flow during the year 
Minimum balance Cannot go negative
Target balance Five months of operating expenses

(to accommodate biannual receipt of fees from County tax roll)
Capital Asset Fund

Purpose To be used for replacement of Facilities
Minimum balance Cannot go negative
Target balance $6,000,000

Emergency Capital Fund
Purpose To be used for sewer emergencies 
Minimum balance Cannot go negative
Target balance $5,000,000

Rate Stabilization Fund
Purpose Allow a margin of safety for the uncertainty of SVCW capital costs
Minimum balance Cannot go negative
Target balance $8,000,000

Vehicle & Equipment Replacemend Fund
Purpose To be used for replacement of Equipment
Minimum balance Cannot go negative
Target balance $600,000

HF&H  Consultants, LLC
2/17/2021  10:26 AM 2

WBSD 2021 Sewer Model_16Feb2021
Table 1B. General

3-36



1
2
3
4
5

6
7

8
9
10
11
12
13
14

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61

A B C D E F G H I
West Bay Sanitary District
Sewer Rate Study
Table 2. Revenue Requirement

Budgeted Projected
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 Notes

SVCW Projected Expenses
Operating and Capital PAYGo Expenses
Operating Expenses $6,883,538 $7,090,044 $7,302,746 $7,521,828 $7,747,483 $7,979,907 SVCW Expenses per District February 2021 Draft

Operating Expenses due to growth (HF&H est.) (13) 26,423 53,538 81,362 109,916 139,219 est. impact on expenses due to growth
Transfer to Cash Reserves (CIP) 402,600 536,800 671,000 805,200 939,400 1,073,600
Transfer to Operating Reserves 6,674 6,621 6,819 7,024 7,235 7,452
Revenue-Funded Capital (PAYGo) 347,712 402,600 402,600 402,600 402,600 402,600

Subtotal SVCW Operating/PAYGo Expenses $7,640,524 $8,062,488 $8,436,703 $8,818,014 $9,206,634 $9,602,778
Debt Service

2014 Bond ($55 million) $1,145,480 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
2015 Bond ($60 million) 1,610,500 0 0 0 0 0
2018 Bond 1,837,713 1,839,213 1,834,338 1,837,963 1,834,963 1,835,338
2020 Refunding Bonds (New) 0 2,845,087 2,848,607 2,840,584 2,848,749 2,842,521
Fixed-Rate Bond Issue #1 0 0 0 0 302,594 302,594
Existing SRF 506,765 726,842 726,842 726,842 726,842 726,842
SRF for Conveyance Planning 0 409,614 409,614 409,614 409,614 409,614
New SRF Loan(s) 0 0 0 1,774,308 1,774,308 1,774,308
New WIFIA Loan(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Subtotal SVCW Debt Service $5,100,457 $5,820,756 $5,819,401 $7,589,310 $7,897,069 $7,891,216

Total SVCW Expenses $12,740,981 $13,883,243 $14,256,103 $16,407,325 $17,103,703 $17,493,994

Annual Change 9.0% 2.7% 15.1% 4.2% 2.3%

Operating Expenses 
Salaries (3),(13) $3,963,828 $4,122,381 $4,287,276 $4,480,204 $4,681,813 $4,892,495

Salary & Benefits for New FTE - Pump Stations (3) $150,000 $156,000 $162,240 $168,730 $175,479
Employee Benefits (4) $2,841,502 $2,955,162 $3,073,369 $3,196,303 $3,324,155 $3,457,122
PERS Unfunded Accrued Liability (5) 382,655              292,110            320,110            344,109            370,109          374,000          PERS Projections
Director's Fees (1) $42,320 $43,590 $44,897 $46,244 $47,632 $49,060
Election Expense $70,000 $0 $70,000 $0 $70,000 $0
Gasoline, Oil and Fuel (1),(13) $70,000 $72,361 $74,800 $77,321 $79,926 $82,617
Insurance (1),(13) $173,290 $179,135 $185,174 $191,414 $197,862 $204,524
Memberships (1),(13) $51,450 $53,185 $54,978 $56,831 $58,745 $60,723
Office Expense (1),(13) $35,500 $36,697 $37,934 $39,213 $40,534 $41,899
Operating Supplies (1),(13) $375,345 $388,004 $401,085 $414,601 $428,567 $442,998
Contractual Services (1),(13) $481,000 $497,223 $513,985 $531,306 $549,204 $567,696
Professional Services (1),(13) $495,220 $511,922 $529,181 $547,014 $565,440 $584,480
Printing and Publications (1),(13) $62,500 $64,608 $66,786 $69,037 $71,362 $73,765
Rents and Leases (1),(13) $40,000 $41,349 $42,743 $44,183 $45,672 $47,210
Repairs and Maintenance (1),(13) $297,900 $307,947 $318,329 $329,056 $340,141 $351,594
Research and Monitoring (1),(13) $20,000 $20,675 $21,372 $22,092 $22,836 $23,605
Travel and Meetings (1) $56,200 $57,886 $59,623 $61,411 $63,254 $65,151
Utilities (2),(13) $196,550 $211,041 $226,597 $243,297 $261,225 $280,470
Other Operating Expense (1) $199,700 $205,691 $211,862 $218,218 $224,764 $231,507
Admin Alloc to Recycled Water Fund (1) ($19,283) ($20,705) ($22,231) ($23,869) ($25,628) ($27,516)
OH Alloc to Solid Waste Fund (1) ($103,000) ($110,594) ($118,746) ($127,498) ($136,892) ($146,977)

Total Operating Expenditures $9,732,677 $10,079,668 $10,555,124 $10,922,728 $11,449,449 $11,831,901
Annual Change 3.6% 4.7% 3.5% 4.8% 3.3%

Non-Operating Expenditures
Non-Operating Expense (1) $6,000 $6,180 $6,365 $6,556 $6,753 $6,956
Contrib. to LAFCo (1) $21,000 $21,630 $22,279 $22,947 $23,636 $24,345

Subtotal, Non-Operating Expenditures $27,000 $27,810 $28,644 $29,504 $30,389 $31,300
Annual Change 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%

Total Expenses $22,500,658 $23,990,721 $24,839,872 $27,359,556 $28,583,541 $29,357,195
Annual Change 6.6% 3.5% 10.1% 4.5% 2.7%

Tbl. 1B

HF&H  Consultants, LLC
2/17/2021  10:26 AM 3

WBSD 2021 Sewer Model_16Feb2021
Table 2. Rev Req

3-37



1
2
3
4
5

6

A B C D E F G H I
West Bay Sanitary District
Sewer Rate Study
Table 2. Revenue Requirement

Budgeted Projected
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 NotesTbl. 1B

62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82

Non-Operating Revenues
Flow Equalization Cost Sharing (1) ($365,184) ($376,140) ($387,424) ($399,046) $0 $0 Flow equalization cost sharing ends FY 2023-24 per District
Permit & Inspection Fees (8) ($100,000) ($101,000) ($102,010) ($103,030) ($104,060) ($105,101)
Other Operating Revenue (Los Altos Hills, Woodside) (9) ($350,000) ($360,500) ($371,315) ($382,454) ($393,928) ($405,746)
Other Non-Operating Income (excl. interest) (8) ($1,000) ($1,010) ($1,020) ($1,030) ($1,041) ($1,051)

Subtotal, Non-Operating Income ($816,184) ($838,650) ($861,769) ($885,561) ($499,029) ($511,898)
2.8% 2.8% 2.8% -43.6% 2.6%

Other Transfers to/(from) 
Operating (General) Fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 From Table 4
Operating Reserve $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 From Table 4
Capital Projects Fund (for PAYGo projects) $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413 From Table 4
Emergency Capital Reserves $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 From Table 4
Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 From Table 4

Total Transfers $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413
0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Total Revenue Requirement $29,413,887 $30,881,485 $31,707,516 $34,203,408 $35,813,925 $36,574,710 To Table 3
Annual Change 5.0% 2.7% 7.9% 4.7% 2.1%

Cumulative Change 5.0% 7.8% 16.3% 21.8% 24.3%

Source: West Bay Sanitary District FY 2020/21 Budget

HF&H  Consultants, LLC
2/17/2021  10:26 AM 4

WBSD 2021 Sewer Model_16Feb2021
Table 2. Rev Req

3-38



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

A B C D E F G H

West Bay Sanitary District
Sewer Rate Study
Table 3.  Revenue Increases

Estimated
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 Notes

Rate Revenue @ Current Rates
Residential $23,984,939
Non-Residential $7,185,691
Total Rate Revenue @ Current Rates $31,170,630 $31,170,630 $31,170,630 $31,170,630 $31,170,630 $31,170,630 FY 2020/21 Tax Roll spreadsheet provided by District
Less: Reduction in Non-Residential Wastewater ($718,569) ($359,285) $0 $0 $0 COVID-related decrease in water use
Plus: Additional Revenue from Residential Growth 89,352 178,704 268,056 357,408 446,760
Adjusted Revenue at Current Rates $30,541,413 $30,990,049 $31,438,686 $31,528,038 $31,617,390 To Below

Revenue Requirement ($29,413,887) ($30,881,485) ($31,707,516) ($34,203,408) ($35,813,925) ($36,574,710) From Table 2
To/(From) operations before Rate Incr. $1,756,743 ($340,072) ($717,467) ($2,764,722) ($4,285,887) ($4,957,320) To Table 4

Increase in Rate Revenue 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% From Table 1B
Cumulative Increase in Rate Revenue 2.5% 5.1% 7.7% 10.4% 13.1% To Table 1A
Revenue from Rate Increases 

FY 2021-22 (eff. July 1, 2021) $763,535 $774,751 $785,967 $788,201 $790,435
FY 2022-23 (eff. July 1, 2022) $794,120 $805,616 $807,906 $810,196
FY 2023-24 (eff. July 1, 2023) $825,757 $828,104 $830,451
FY 2024-25 (eff. July 1, 2024) $848,806 $851,212
FY 2025-26 (eff. July 1, 2025) $872,492

Total Revenue from Rate Increases $0 $763,535 $1,568,871 $2,417,340 $3,273,017 $4,154,785
Total Current Revenue $31,170,630 $30,541,413 $30,990,049 $31,438,686 $31,528,038 $31,617,390 From Above

Subtotal Revenue $31,170,630 $31,304,948 $32,558,921 $33,856,026 $34,801,055 $35,772,175 To Line 44

STEP System Additional Charge $150 $150 $150 $150 $27 From Table 1B
Current STEP System Customers 79 79 79 79 79
Cumulative Additional STEP System Customers 10 10 10 10

Subtotal 79 89 89 89 89

Revenue from Additional STEP System Charge Increases
FY 2021-22 (eff. July 1, 2021) $11,850 $11,850 $11,850 $11,850 $11,850
FY 2022-23 (eff. July 1, 2022) $13,350 $13,350 $13,350 $13,350
FY 2023-24 (eff. July 1, 2023) $13,350 $13,350 $13,350
FY 2024-25 (eff. July 1, 2024) $13,350 $13,350
FY 2025-26 (eff. July 1, 2025) $2,381

Total Revenue from STEP System Rate Increases $11,850 $25,200 $38,550 $51,900 $54,281
Subtotal Revenue $31,170,630 $31,304,948 $32,558,921 $33,856,026 $34,801,055 $35,772,175 From Line 30

$31,170,630 $31,316,798 $32,584,121 $33,894,576 $34,852,955 $35,826,455
Revenue Requirement ($29,413,887) ($30,881,485) ($31,707,516) ($34,203,408) ($35,813,925) ($36,574,710) From Above

To/(From) operations after Rate Incr. $1,756,743 $435,313 $876,605 ($308,832) ($960,970) ($748,255) To Table 4

Projected

HF&H  Consultants, LLC
2/17/2021  10:26 AM 5

WBSD 2021 Sewer Model_16Feb2021
Table 3. Rev Increases

3-39



1
2
3
4
5

6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36

A B C D E F G H I J K
West Bay Sanitary District
Sewer Rate Study
Table 4. Reserves

Actual Budgeted
FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 Notes

OPERATING (GENERAL) FUND
Revenue Increases  2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% From Table 1A
Beginning Balance $29,157,525 $17,060,814 $16,076,218 $16,995,204 $15,525,089 $13,848,654
Surplus/Deficit from Rate Revenue $1,756,743 $435,313 $876,605 ($308,832) ($960,970) ($748,255) From Table 3

Transfers (To)/From
Revenue Requirement To Table 2
Operating Reserve $0 $0 $0 ($1,200,000) ($750,000) ($630,000) (To)/From Below
Capital Asset Fund ($3,800,000) ($460,000) $0 $0 $0 $0 (To)/From Below
Emergency Capital Reserve ($1,021,000) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 (To)/From Below
Rate Stabilization Fund ($6,475,000) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 (To)/From Below
Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 (To)/From Below
Recycled Water Project - Reimbursement $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OPEB/PERS Unfunded Liabilities (2,600,000) (1,000,000) 0 0 0 0 (To)/From Below

Subtotal Transfers ($13,896,000) ($1,460,000) $0 ($1,200,000) ($750,000) ($630,000)
Fund Subtotal $17,018,268 $16,036,127 $16,952,822 $15,486,373 $13,814,119 $12,470,399 all remaining cash after reserves

Estimated Interest Earnings (7) $42,546 $40,090 $42,382 $38,716 $34,535 $31,176
Ending Balance $29,157,525 $17,060,814 $16,076,218 $16,995,204 $15,525,089 $13,848,654 $12,501,575

OPERATING RESERVE
Beginning Balance 9,530,903$       9,554,731$       9,578,617$       9,602,564$       10,829,570$     11,608,519$     

Transfers (To)/From
Revenue Requirement $0 $0 $0 $1,200,000 $750,000 $630,000
Operating General Fund

Subtotal Transfers $0 $0 $0 $1,200,000 $750,000 $630,000
Fund Subtotal 9,530,903$       9,554,731$       9,578,617$       10,802,564$     11,579,570$     12,238,519$     

Estimated Interest Earnings (7) $23,827 $23,887 $23,947 $27,006 $28,949 $30,596
Ending Balance $9,530,903 $9,554,731 $9,578,617 $9,602,564 $10,829,570 $11,608,519 $12,269,116

Minimum Balance (5 mo. operations) $9,332,358 $9,950,053 $10,300,469 $11,346,691 $11,852,770 $12,170,924

Tbl. 
1B

HF&H  Consultants, LLC
2/17/2021  10:26 AM 6

WBSD 2021 Sewer Model_16Feb2021
Table 4. Reserves

3-40



1
2
3
4
5

6

A B C D E F G H I J K
West Bay Sanitary District
Sewer Rate Study
Table 4. Reserves

Actual Budgeted
FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 Notes

Tbl. 
1B

37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62

63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77

CAPITAL ASSET FUND
Beginning Balance $2,781,875 $5,469,377 $6,269,512 $6,109,247 $5,322,019 $5,861,135

Revenues
Connection Charges $250,000 $505,087 $505,087 $505,087 $505,087 $505,087 From Table 5

Capital Projects
Administration ($350,000) $0 ($1,500,000) ($500,000) $0 $0 From Table 5
Collection Facilities ($2,245,550) ($6,500,000) ($6,500,000) ($2,500,000) ($500,000) ($500,000) From Table 5
Pipe Repl & Rehab ($4,800,000) ($1,200,000) ($200,000) ($5,825,000) ($7,000,000) ($7,397,500) From Table 5
Capacity ($1,500,000) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 From Table 6
Environmental Review ($10,000) ($10,000) ($10,000) ($10,000) ($10,000) ($10,000) From Table 5
Manhole Raising ($100,000) ($100,000) ($100,000) ($100,000) ($100,000) ($100,000) From Table 5
Allow for Unanticipated Cap Exp ($100,000) ($100,000) ($100,000) ($100,000) ($100,000) ($100,000) From Table 5
Vehicles & Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 From Table 5

Subtotal Expenses ($9,105,550) ($7,910,000) ($8,410,000) ($9,035,000) ($7,710,000) ($8,107,500)

Payment to SVCW (to reduce debt obligation) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Capital Expenditures to be paid by Rates ($8,855,550) ($7,404,913) ($7,904,913) ($8,529,913) ($7,204,913) ($7,602,413)

Transfers (To)/From 
Revenue Requirement- PayGo Capital $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413 To Table 2
Operating General Fund $3,800,000 $460,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 From Above
Rate Stabilization Fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 From Below

Subtotal Transfers $11,529,413 $8,189,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413 $7,729,413
Fund Subtotal $5,455,738 $6,253,877 $6,094,012 $5,308,747 $5,846,519 $5,988,135

Estimated Interest Earnings (7) $13,639 $15,635 $15,235 $13,272 $14,616 $14,970
Ending Balance $2,781,875 $5,469,377 $6,269,512 $6,109,247 $5,322,019 $5,861,135 $6,003,105
Target Balance $6,000,000 $6,000,000 $6,000,000 $6,000,000 $6,000,000 $6,000,000 From Table 1B

EMERGENCY CAPITAL RESERVES
Beginning Balance $3,904,702 $4,938,017 $4,950,362 $4,962,738 $4,975,145 $4,987,582

Transfers (To)/From 
Revenue Requirements $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 To Table 2
Operating General Fund $1,021,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 To Above

Subtotal Transfers $1,021,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Fund Subtotal $4,925,702 $4,938,017 $4,950,362 $4,962,738 $4,975,145 $4,987,582

Estimated Interest Earnings (7) $12,314 $12,345 $12,376 $12,407 $12,438 $12,469
Ending Balance $3,904,702 $4,938,017 $4,950,362 $4,962,738 $4,975,145 $4,987,582 $5,000,051

Minimum Balance $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000
Target Balance $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000

HF&H  Consultants, LLC
2/17/2021  10:26 AM 7

WBSD 2021 Sewer Model_16Feb2021
Table 4. Reserves

3-41



1
2
3
4
5

6

A B C D E F G H I J K
West Bay Sanitary District
Sewer Rate Study
Table 4. Reserves

Actual Budgeted
FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 Notes

Tbl. 
1B

78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90

91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128

RATE STABILIZATION FUND
Beginning Balance $1,408,407 $7,903,116 $7,922,874 $7,942,681 $7,962,537 $7,982,444

Payment to SVCW $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Transfers (To)/From 

Operating General Fund $6,475,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 To Table 2
Recycled Water Project Fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Capital Fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 To Above

Subtotal Transfers $6,475,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Fund Subtotal $7,883,407 $7,903,116 $7,922,874 $7,942,681 $7,962,537 $7,982,444

Estimated Interest Earnings (7) $19,709 $19,758 $19,807 $19,857 $19,906 $19,956
Ending Balance $1,408,407 $7,903,116 $7,922,874 $7,942,681 $7,962,537 $7,982,444 $8,002,400
Target Balance $8,000,000 $8,000,000 $8,000,000 $8,000,000 $8,000,000 $8,000,000

VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND
Beginning Balance 607,251$          608,769$          610,291$          611,817$          613,346$          614,880$          

Transfers (To)/From
Revenue Requirement $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 To Table 2
Operating General Fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal Transfers $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Fund Subtotal 607,251$          608,769$          610,291$          611,817$          613,346$          614,880$          

Estimated Interest Earnings (7) $1,518 $1,522 $1,526 $1,530 $1,533 $1,537
Ending Balance $607,251 $608,769 $610,291 $611,817 $613,346 $614,880 $616,417
Target Balance $600,000 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000

RECYCLED WATER PROJECT FUND (not included in Fund Balance graph)
Beginning Balance $8,742,313 $8,764,169 $8,786,079 $8,808,045 $8,830,065 $8,852,140

SRF Reimbursement
Expenditures

Transfers (To)/From 
Revenue Requirements $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Operating Fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Rate Stabilization Reserve $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Capital Asset Fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 From Above

Subtotal Transfers $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Fund Subtotal $8,742,313 $8,764,169 $8,786,079 $8,808,045 $8,830,065 $8,852,140

Estimated Interest Earnings (7) $21,856 $21,910 $21,965 $22,020 $22,075 $22,130
Ending Balance $8,742,313 $8,764,169 $8,786,079 $8,808,045 $8,830,065 $8,852,140 $8,874,270

OPEB/PERS Unfunded Liabilities (not included in Fund Balance graph)
Beginning Balance $2,036,722 $2,077,456 $2,119,005 $1,141,385 $654,213 $667,297

Transfers (To)/From 
Revenue Requirements $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 From Table 2
Additional Liability Payment (2,600,000)        (1,000,000)        (1,000,000)        (500,000)           -                     -                     
Operating Fund $2,600,000 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 From Above

Subtotal Transfers $0 $0 ($1,000,000) ($500,000) $0 $0
Fund Subtotal $2,036,722 $2,077,456 $1,119,005 $641,385 $654,213 $667,297

Estimated Interest Earnings $40,734 $41,549 $22,380 $12,828 $13,084 $13,346 2% earnings per year (District)
Ending Balance $2,036,722 $2,077,456 $2,119,005 $1,141,385 $654,213 $667,297 $680,643

Unfunded Liability + OPEB Target 2,500,000        1,500,000        500,000           -                    -                    -                    Per District
HF&H  Consultants, LLC
2/17/2021  10:26 AM 8

WBSD 2021 Sewer Model_16Feb2021
Table 4. Reserves

3-42



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

A B C D E F G H I J
West Bay Sanitary District
Sewer Rate Study
Table 5. Capital Projects

Budgeted Projected Five-Year
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 Subtotal

Administration
Corporate Yard Maintenance Building 350,000            -                    1,500,000        500,000            -                    -                    2,000,000        

Administration Subtotal 350,000            $0 $1,500,000 $500,000 $0 $0 2,000,000        
Collection Facilities

Metal Storage Building 745,550            -                    
FERRF (Levee) 1,000,000        6,000,000        6,000,000        2,000,000        0 -                    14,000,000      
FEF 500,000            500,000            500,000            500,000            500,000            500,000            2,500,000        

Collection Facilities Subtotal $2,245,550 $6,500,000 $6,500,000 $2,500,000 $500,000 $500,000 16,500,000      
Equipment Replacement

Large Diameter Trunkline Cleaning & CCTV -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Equipment Replacement Subtotal $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Pipe Replacement and Rehabilitation
Pump Station Miscellaneous -                    -                    200,000            -                    200,000            -                    400,000           

Bay Road North 3,000,000        -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Gilbert 500,000            -                    -                    1,500,000        -                    -                    1,500,000        
Atherton Civic Center 800,000            -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Isabella 500,000            -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Willow Road PS - Piping -                    200,000            -                    -                    -                    -                    200,000           
Santa Margarita -                    -                    -                    700,000            -                    -                    700,000           
Camino al Lago -                    -                    -                    1,155,000        -                    -                    1,155,000        
Santa Cruz -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    700,000            700,000           
Avy -                    -                    -                    175,000            -                    -                    175,000           
Vine -                    -                    -                    770,000            -                    -                    770,000           
Marsh Road CIPP (Remaining) -                    -                    -                    1,125,000        -                    -                    1,125,000        
Westminster -                    -                    -                    -                    5,000,000        -                    5,000,000        
Stowe Lane Pump Station -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    1,300,000        1,300,000        
Stowe Lane PS xcrossing SFPUC sag -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    297,500            297,500           
ECR @ Glenwood -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    500,000            500,000           
University -                    -                    -                    -                    1,800,000        4,600,000        6,400,000        
Alameda Campo Bello to Harrison (Bad Soil) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Hermosa -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Santa Cruz -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
College Park -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Downtown -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Flood Park -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
East Palo Alto -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Menalto Easements -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Lorelei -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Sharon Heights (Basin 60) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

HF&H  Consultants, LLC
2/17/2021  10:26 AM 9

WBSD 2021 Sewer Model_16Feb2021
Table 5. CIP

3-43



1

2

3

4

5

6

A B C D E F G H I J
West Bay Sanitary District
Sewer Rate Study
Table 5. Capital Projects

Budgeted Projected Five-Year
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 Subtotal

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

Walsh (Basin 50) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Weekend Acres/SLAC (Basin 40) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Encinal A -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Ladera (Basin 30) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Portola Valley (Basin 10) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Los Trancos (Basin 20) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
101 Crossing (SD xcrossing) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Stevenson -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
MacBain -                    -                    -                    400,000            -                    -                    400,000           
Elena -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Fair Oaks -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Encinal B -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Berkeley -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Bedwell Park Entrance -                    1,000,000        -                    -                    -                    -                    1,000,000        

Pipe Replacement and Rehabilitation Subtotal 4,800,000        1,200,000        200,000            5,825,000        7,000,000        7,397,500        21,622,500      
Capacity

Lower Ringwood 1,500,000        -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Valparaiso -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Willow Gravity Main -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Upper Ringwood -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Santa Cruz Avy -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Cambridge Laurel -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Middlefield at Fair Oaks -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Capacity Subtotal $1,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Other

Construction Projects Environmental Review $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $50,000
Manhole Raising $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $500,000
Allow for Unanticipated Cap Exp $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $500,000

Other Subtotal $210,000 $210,000 $210,000 $210,000 $210,000 $210,000 $1,050,000

Total Capital Expenses $9,105,550 $7,910,000 $8,410,000 $9,035,000 $7,710,000 $8,107,500 $41,172,500
Less: Connection Fee Revenue ($250,000) ($505,087) ($505,087) ($505,087) ($505,087) ($505,087) ($2,525,435)

Net PAYGo Capital Expenses $8,855,550 $7,404,913 $7,904,913 $8,529,913 $7,204,913 $7,602,413 $38,647,065
to be paid by Rates 5-year CIP Average: $7,729,413

HF&H  Consultants, LLC
2/17/2021  10:26 AM 10

WBSD 2021 Sewer Model_16Feb2021
Table 5. CIP

3-44



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44

A B C D E F G H
West Bay Sanitary District
Sewer Rate Study
Table 6. WBSD Service

Budgeted Projected
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 Notes

Debt Coverage Ratio
Revenue Sources
Sewer Service Charges $31,170,630 $31,316,798 $32,584,121 $33,894,576 $34,852,955 $35,826,455 From Table 3
Flow Equalization Cost Sharing $365,184 $376,140 $387,424 $399,046 $0 $0 From Table 2
Permit & Inspection Fees $100,000 $101,000 $102,010 $103,030 $104,060 $105,101 From Table 2
Other Operating Revenue (Los Altos Hills, Woodside) $350,000 $360,500 $371,315 $382,454 $393,928 $405,746 From Table 2
Other Non-Operating Income (excl. interest) $1,000 $1,010 $1,020 $1,030 $1,041 $1,051 From Table 2
Sharon Heights SRF $675,541 $675,541 $675,541 $675,541 $675,541 $675,541 From FY 2020-21 Budget
Connection fees $250,000 $505,087 $505,087 $505,087 $505,087 $505,087 From Table 5
Investment Interest $113,553 $113,237 $115,272 $112,787 $111,978 $110,705

Subtotal $33,025,908 $33,449,312 $34,741,790 $36,073,553 $36,644,590 $37,629,686

Operating Expenses From Table 2
SVCW Operating Expenses ($6,883,538) ($7,090,044) ($7,302,746) ($7,521,828) ($7,747,483) ($7,979,907)
SVCW Operating Expenses due to growth $0 ($26,423) ($53,538) ($81,362) ($109,916) ($139,219)
WBSD Operating Expenses ($9,732,677) ($10,079,668) ($10,555,124) ($10,922,728) ($11,449,449) ($11,831,901)

Subtotal ($16,616,215) ($17,196,135) ($17,911,408) ($18,525,918) ($19,306,848) ($19,951,027)

Net Revenue $16,409,693 $16,253,178 $16,830,382 $17,547,634 $17,337,742 $17,678,660

Debt Service
SVCW Debt Service
2014 Bond ($55 million) $1,145,480 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 From Table 2
2015 Bond ($60 million) $1,610,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 From Table 2
2018 Bond $1,837,713 $1,839,213 $1,834,338 $1,837,963 $1,834,963 $1,835,338 From Table 2
2020 Refunding Bonds (New) $0 $2,845,087 $2,848,607 $2,840,584 $2,848,749 $2,842,521 From Table 2
Fixed-Rate Bond Issue #1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $302,594 $302,594 From Table 2
Existing SRF $506,765 $726,842 $726,842 $726,842 $726,842 $726,842 From Table 2
SRF for Conveyance Planning $0 $409,614 $409,614 $409,614 $409,614 $409,614 From Table 2
New SRF Loan(s) $0 $0 $0 $1,774,308 $1,774,308 $1,774,308 From Table 2
New WIFIA Loan(s) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 From Table 2

Subtotal $5,100,457 $5,820,756 $5,819,401 $7,589,310 $7,897,069 $7,891,216
Sharon Heights SRF $675,541 $675,541 $675,541 $675,541 $675,541 $675,541

Total Debt Service $5,775,998 $6,496,297 $6,494,942 $8,264,851 $8,572,610 $8,566,757

Debt coverage ratio 2.84 2.50 2.59 2.12 2.02 2.06

HF&H  Consultants, LLC
2/17/2021  10:26 AM 11

WBSD 2021 Sewer Model_16Feb2021
Table 6. Debt Service

3-45



 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED INCREASE IN SEWER SERVICE CHARGES April 28, 2021 

  
(Please Share This Information with Tenants) 

 
The West Bay Sanitary District provides sewer service to approximately 
55,000 customers in areas of Menlo Park, Atherton, Portola Valley, East Palo 
Alto, Woodside, and Unincorporated San Mateo and Santa Clara Counties. 
The District, established in 1902, owns and operates more than 200 miles of 
main line sewers and 13 pumping stations throughout the service area.  The 
District’s sewer system is aging.  In order to meet our goal  of  providing  safe,  
reliable  service  to  our  customers,  the  District proposes a sewer service rate 
change effective July 1, 2021, through the annual property tax bill beginning in 
November 2021. 

 
In order to ensure proper maintenance of the collection system and proper 
connections to the system, the District employs 30 people. The District’s fiscal 
year begins on July 1 and ends on June 30 of the following year.  Customers are 
billed annually on the San Mateo County tax rolls.  

Collection System Infrastructure Replacements 

Since 2010, the District has been committed to a system-wide rehabilitation and replacement 
infrastructure program.   The District’s goal is to proactively replace the entire 210-mile sewer 
system before it reaches the end of its useful life.  More than half of the District’s sewer lines 
are in excess of 50 years old.  These older lines often experience heavy root intrusion, corrosion, 
and local failures.    Gaps  in  the  pipeline  system  admit  groundwater during  wet  weather;  this 
additional water floods the system and, if severe, could result in overflows from the existing 
system manholes. During heavy storm events the regional plant relies on the Flow Equalization 
Facility (FEF) behind Bedwell Park in Menlo Park, to store raw wastewater until it can be treated 
at the regional plant. The levee around the FEF must be raised to protect the site and the San 
Francisco Bay from contamination. The additional ra in  and groundwater i ncreases the flows 
that need treatment at the regional treatment plant (see below). The estimated cost of this 
infrastructure program is approximately $7.9 million annually, which has increased significantly in 
recent years as construction costs continue to rise at a rate greater than inflation.  

 

In addition, the District has implemented an aggressive preventive maintenance program in accordance with guidelines 
established by the State Water Resources Control Board. In order to continue to fund these sewer system operations and 
infrastructure improvements on a pay-as-you-go basis, which ultimately keeps costs down for the ratepayers, the sewer service 
charge must be increased slightly in fiscal year 2021/22. 

SVCW Treatment Plant Improvements 

The District sends wastewater north to the Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) Wastewater Treatment Plant, located in Redwood 
Shores.  The SVCW facility also treats wastewater from Redwood City, San Carlos, and Belmont.  The District’s share of 
operating costs for SVCW are approximately $7M per year.  In addition, in 2008, SVCW began a significant program to plan, 
design, and construct over $931 million in capital improvement projects through 2030.  These projects replace aging facilities 
and enable the treatment plant to meet more stringent wastewater permit requirements.  The cost of funding the District’s 
portion of these critical projects must be incorporated in the sewer rates, and are defined as a separate wastewater component 
of the rates.  This cost represents a large majority of the required sewer service charge increase.  

Proposed Rates 

A sewer service charge rate study, completed by the 
District’s rate consultant, HF&H Consultants (HF&H), 
found District rates need to increase to cover operating 
and capital expenses for fiscal year 2020/21.  A cost-of-
service analysis was completed in February 2021 to 
ensure each customer class’s proportionate share of the 
District’s costs was accurate.  Residential and 
Commercial/industrial rates are proposed to increase by 
2.5%. 
 
Approximately 80 homes in the Portola Valley area 
(located within the On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone) 
pay higher charges for the maintenance of the STEP or 
Grinder Sewer Collection Systems that they require. The 
District currently charges an additional $470 annually to 
maintain these collection systems. Based on the 2020 
study, the current cost of service per account exceeded 
the fiscal year 2019/20 charge by $599. To realign 
charges with the cost of service, charges for the 
maintenance of the STEP/Grinder Sewer Collection 
Systems are proposed to increase annually over five 
fiscal years. For fiscal year 2021/22, the second of five 
years, the proposed STEP/Grinder Sewer Collection 
System charge is $620, an increase of $150. 
 
Non-residential customers pay charges based on their 
metered water use from the prior twelve months 
(measured in CCF or hundred cubic feet).  Each non- 
residential charge is the product of the customer’s flow 
multiplied by the rate corresponding to the customer’s 
class.   Industrial customers are billed based on each 
customer’s prior annual flow and the strength of the 
customer’s wastewater based on sampling data.   
 

Summary of Current and Proposed Rates 

  
Current  

FY 2020/21 
Proposed 

FY 2021/22 

Residential (per Dwelling Unit)    

    Single Family, Multi-Family $1,224 $1,255 
    On-site Wastewater Disposal      
Zone $1,694 $1,875 

     

Commercial (per CCF)    

    Retail/Commercial $9.86 $10.11 

    Institution/Public $9.24 $9.47 

    Restaurants $20.78 $21.30 

    Supermarkets with Grinders $21.01 $21.54 

    Hospitals $10.20 $10.46 

    Hotels with Dining Facilities $16.78 $17.20 

     

Industrial     

    Flow rate (per CCF) $7.28 $7.46 

    BOD  (per pound) $1.28 $1.31 

    TSS (per pound) $1.46 $1.50 

      

 
Single-Family Rate Breakdown   

Component   Proposed (per dwelling unit) 

  Current FY2020/21 

Collection $702 (57%) $691 

Treatment $522 (43%) $564 

Total $1,224 $ 1,255 

 

Cracked Clay Sewer Pipe 

3-46



Fairness Principle 

Customers pay only for the proportional cost of their service. The proposed rate increase will 
provide funds to pay for the District’s planned operational costs, capital improvements through 
June of 2022 (including engineering, administrative, and implementation costs.) The proposed 
rate increase will also cover the ongoing SVCW Operations & Maintenance costs, as well as,  
repay the District’s share of principal and interest on SVCW loans and bonds, for their capital 
construction during this period. 

Emergency Service 

To request service, please call (650) 321-0384, 24 hours a day, 365 days per year.  

The District provides 24-hour emergency service. We recommend that you always contact the District in the event that you are 
having a problem with your sewer pipelines.  District Emergency Response crews will check the main line sewer to ensure 
that it is flowing correctly, and will advise you if the problem is located in the portion of the sewer from the main line to your home 
(this portion is your private sewer lateral). 

 

If your property does not have a conforming cleanout (which looks like a 4-inch capped pipe near the street or near your home), 
it is recommended that you install one. The District will provide a courtesy cleaning, if a home or business has a conforming 
cleaning out. A permit must be obtained from the District office. All new installations require conforming cleanouts. Please visit our 
website for more information.  

www.westbaysanitary.org  
 
 
 
 
 
 

West Bay Sanitary District 
500 Laurel Street 
Menlo Park, CA 94025-3427 

 

Important Information – Notice of Public Hearing 
Wednesday, April 28, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Notice is given that the Board of Directors of West Bay Sanitary District will conduct a Regular Meeting and Public Hearing on Wednesday 
evening, April 28, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. 
The location of the meeting:    West Bay Sanitary District 
                                                 Ronald W. Shepherd Administration Building 

        500 Laurel Street 
             Menlo Park, California 94025  or by Zoom or Telephone 

https://zoom.us/j/98246432426?pwd=TTF4aFZIazZjT2dyc0ZlZXUxRTZzdz09 Meeting ID: 982 4643 2426 
Passcode: 162687 or telephone 669-900-6833 Meeting ID: 982 4643 2426 Passcode: 162687 

 
The purpose of the Public Hearing will be to consider a proposed increase in Sewer Service Charge fees for all District customers, for 
fiscal year 2021/22. At the Public Hearing, any interested persons may address the District Board.  The proposed rates are $ 1,255 per 
Single Family Residence for fiscal year 2021/22, which is a $31 increase from fiscal year 2020/21. For customers in the On-Site 
Wastewater Disposal Zone, the proposed rates are $1,875 for fiscal year 2021/22, which is a $181 increase from fiscal year 2020/21. 
Proposed rates for Commercial or Industrial Customers are set forth on Page One of this Notice. 

 
If you wish to file a written protest, please send a letter in a sealed envelope to the address above.  Your letter must identify the real property 
you own or rent by street address and assessor’s parcel number (APN).  Your letter must be legibly signed by any one of the current property 
owners or ratepayers of record. The District must receive your letter in a sealed envelope by 4:00 p.m. on April 28, 2021, or it must be 
presented at the District Board meeting on April 28, 2021 prior to the close of the public hearing.  Any person interested, including all 
sanitary sewer customers of the West Bay Sanitary District, may appear at the public hearing and be heard on any matter related to 
the proposed increase in rates.  At the public hearing, the agency shall consider all written protests against the proposed fees. If written 
protests against the proposed fees are presented by a majority of District customers, the District shall not adjust the fees. 

SVCW Regional Treatment Plant 

3-47

http://www.westbaysanitary.org/
https://zoom.us/j/98246432426?pwd=TTF4aFZIazZjT2dyc0ZlZXUxRTZzdz09


3-48



3-49



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

3-50



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 28, 2021 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 4 

 

 
  
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Sergio Ramirez, District Manager 

 

Subject: Consideration to Approve a General Regulation Amending the 

Code of General Regulations and Establishing Sewer Service 

Charges for Fiscal Year 2021/22 

 

 
Following the Public Hearing, the Board is asked to consider and approve the attached 
General Regulation establishing sewer service fees to be charged for fiscal year 
2021/22.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
  



  WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

GENERAL REGULATION NO.              

***** 

 A GENERAL REGULATION AMENDING GENERAL REGULATION NO. 58  

"A GENERAL REGULATION ADOPTING CODE OF GENERAL REGULATIONS" 

 
***** 

 

BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED BY THE District Board of West Bay Sanitary District that 
General Regulation No. 58, "A General Regulation Adopting Code of General Regulations," 
passed and approved on November 27, 1982, as heretofore amended, is hereby further 
amended as follows: 
 
Section 1. 
Article IX, Section 900 (03) (A) and (B) are hereby amended in their entirety to read as follows: 
 
(03) Residential Customers Sewer Service Charge. 
 
(A) Residential Customers Rate.   
 
 
The flat rate sewer service charge for fiscal year July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 for residential customers 
shall be One Thousand Two Hundred Fifty-Five dollars and no cents ($1,255.00) per Single Family Residence. 
 
(B) Septic Tank Effluent Pumping System and Grinder Pump System (STEP/Grinder System) Residential 
Customers Rate included in the On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone (OWDZ). 
 
The sewer service charge for residential customers served by a STEP/Grinder System for fiscal year July 1, 2021 
through June 30, 2022 shall be One Thousand Eight Hundred Seventy-Five Dollars and no cents ($1,875.00) per 
Single Family Residence. 
 
Section 2. 
Article  IX, Section 900 (04) (A), (AB), (AC), (AD), and (D) are hereby amended in their entirety to read as follows: 
 
(04) Non-Residential Customers Sewer Service Charge. 
 
 

(A) The rates for customers in the non-residential category for fiscal year July 1, 2021 through June 30, 
2022 shall be computed on the basis of: 

 
(1) A flow rate charge of $7.46 per hundred cubic feet of metered water consumption in accordance with 
the formula set forth for non-residential customers, PROVIDED that District may make adjustments where 
it appears to District that water consumption is not a reasonably accurate measure of wastewater 
discharge. 

 
(2) A biochemical oxygen demand rate of $1.31 per pound per hundred cubic feet of water consumption; 
and, 

 
(3) A suspended solids loading rate of $1.50 per pound per hundred cubic feet of water consumption. 

  
  
(D) STEP/Grinder System Non-Residential Customer Rate (Non-Residential Customers included in the On-Site 
Wastewater Disposal Zone – OWDZ).  
 
The sewer service charge for non-residential customers served by a Septic Tank Effluent Pumping System or 
Grinder Pump System for fiscal year July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 shall be One Thousand Eight Hundred 
Seventy-Five Dollars and no cents ($1,875.00) for each 200 gallons per day, average annual daily flow rate, 
discharged to the District's sewer system. 



 
Section 3. 
In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") Public Resources Code Sec. 2100 et seq., 
and the regulations promulgated pursuant to CEQA, the District Board finds that this Regulation establishes rates 
and/or charges for the purpose of meeting operating expenses of the District, meeting financial reserves needs 
and requirements of the District, and obtaining funds for capital projects which are necessary to maintain services 
within existing sewer service areas in the District. 
 
 ***** 
Passed and approved by the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District on April 28, 2021 by the following 
vote: 
 
 Ayes: 
 
 Noes: 
 
 Abstain: 
 
 Absent: 
       
 
      ________________________________ 

 President of the District Board of the  
 West Bay Sanitary District, County of  
 San Mateo, State of California 
  

  
Attest: 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Secretary of the District Board of the 
  West Bay Sanitary District, County of  
 San Mateo, State of California 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   



WEST BAY SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA ITEM 5 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Bill Kitajima, Projects & IT Manager 
Jonathan Werness, Engineering Technician 

Subject: Public Hearing - Annexing Certain Territory Within the West Bay 
Sanitary District’s On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone – Lands 
of Murphy (30 Cheyenne Point, Portola Valley)  

Background 

On March 10, 2021, the Board adopted a Resolution of intention to annex the parcel 
referenced above to the District’s On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone. The Public 
Hearing date was established as April 28, 2021. 

Analysis 

The District’s Master Resolution Governing Annexations of Territory to the West 
Bay Sanitary District On-Site Disposal Zone states: “Pursuant to Section 6959 of the 
Health and Safety Code, the date of the Public Hearing shall be commenced no less 
than 45 days nor more than 60 days from the date of adoption of the Resolution of 
Intention, and the Public Hearing shall be completed no more than 90 days after the first 
day of the hearing.” 

In accordance with Section 6960, and 6960.1 of the same code, reviews and reports of 
findings are required of both the County Health Officer and Regional Water Quality 
Control Board. Additionally, Section 6960.3 of this code requires the review and 
approval by a local agency formation commission, which has adopted rules and 
regulations affecting the functions and services of special districts. 

The San Mateo County Health Officer has responded by a letter of approval dated April 
12, 2021 a copy of which is attached; the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality 
Control Board responded by a letter of approval dated April 9, 2021, a copy of which is 
attached; and the San Mateo Local Agency Formation Commission has approved per 
their Resolution No. 1250 dated May 20, 2020, a copy of which is attached. 

Fiscal Impact  

Property owners have paid all annexation fees and the fiscal impact would be additional 
sewer service charge revenue to the District once the parcel is connected.  

5-1



 

Recommendation 

The Board is asked to close the Public Hearing following public comment. 

 

Attachments:   San Mateo County Health Officer Letter  

San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board Letter 

San Mateo Local Agency Formation Commission Resolution No. 1250 

 

5-2



 

 

April 12, 2021 APN 077-242-190 

Bill Kitajima 
West Bay Sanitary District 
500 Laurel Street 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 

Dear Mr. Kitajima: 

SUBJECT: ANNEXATION, 30 CHEYENNE PT, PORTOLA VALLEY,  
APN 077-242-190 

Thank you for the April 7, 2021, letter of Intention to Annex Certain Territory to District’s 
On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone for the subject parcel. County Environmental Health has 
reviewed the letter of intent and has no objection to the annexation of this parcel into the 
District’s on-site wastewater disposal zone. The existing onsite wastewater treatment 
system(s) (OWTS) must be destroyed under permit with Environmental Health upon 
connection to the West Bay system. 

Should you have any questions, please call me at (650) 372-6279. 

Sincerely,  

 
Gregory J. Smith, PG, REHS 
Supervisor Water Protection and Land Use Programs 
 
 
cc: Laura Russell, Planning Director, Town of Portola Valley 
 

5-3



 April 9, 2021 
 File: CW-255833 
 
 
Bill Kitajima (bkitajima@westbaysanitary.org) 
Projects & IT Manager 
West Bay Sanitary District 
500 Laurel Street 
Menlo Park, California 94025-3486 
 
Approval to Annex Certain Territory (Lands of Murphy) to the West Bay Sanitary District 
On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone: APN: 077-242-190 
 
Dear Bill Kitajima: 
 
The Regional Water Board hereby approves the annexation of the subject parcel to the On-Site 
Wastewater Disposal Zone of the West Bay Sanitary District (District). The property owners 
applied to the District for annexation “for the purpose of obtaining sewer service for a single-
family residence.” To connect to existing District sewer facilities, the property owners require a 
Grinder Pump System that the District must maintain. Therefore, this parcel must be annexed 
into the District's disposal zone. 
 
The Regional Water Board’s approval is conditional upon the District (1) retaining responsibility 
for operation and maintenance of the grinder pump system, and (2) ensuring the proper operation 
and maintenance of the other sewerage facilities serving the parcel. Disposal of sewage onto 
soils within the disposal zone is not approved.  
 
If you have any questions, please contact me at (510) 622-2407, or via e-mail at 
gaurav.mittal@waterboards.ca.gov. 
 
         Sincerely, 
 
          
          
 
 
 

Gaurav Mittal 
Water Resource Control Engineer 

 

5-4

mailto:bkitajima@westbaysanitary.org


5-5

barto
Rectangle



5-6



5-7



5-8



5-9



5-10



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 28, 2021 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 6 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Bill Kitajima, Projects & IT Manager 
 Jonathan Werness, Engineering Technician 
 
Subject: Consideration of Adopting Resolution Ordering Annexation of 

Certain Parcels in the Territory of West Bay Sanitary District to 
the West Bay Sanitary District’s On-Site Wastewater Disposal 
Zone Including Certain Determinations, Findings and 
Declarations of the District Board – Lands of Murphy (30 
Cheyenne Point, Portola Valley)  

 

 
Background 

This property will utilize a Grinder system; consequently this property must be annexed 
into the District’s On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone. The proponent shall be required 
to connect to the existing force main along Cheyenne Point. 
 
Analysis  

Following the Public Hearing to annex certain territory to the District’s On-Site 
Wastewater Disposal Zone, the attached resolution would formally complete the 
annexation of the referenced Lands of Murphy. 
 

Fiscal Impact  

Property owners have paid all annexation fees and the fiscal impact would be additional 
sewer service charge revenue to the District once the parcel is connected.  

 

Recommendation 

Subject to the final review by legal counsel and the findings of the resolution holding 
true through the public hearing (i.e., protests by less than 35 percent of the voters and 
landholders), it is recommended by the Projects & IT Manager that the Board adopt the 
resolution as drafted. 

 

Attachment:  Resolution ______ (2021), Map, Legal/Geographic Description 

6-1



WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  ______ (2021) 
 

RESOLUTION ORDERING ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN TERRITORY OF WEST BAY 
SANITARY DISTRICT TO THE WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT ON-SITE WASTEWATER 

DISPOSAL ZONE INCLUDING CERTAIN DETERMINATIONS, FINDINGS AND 
DECLARATIONS OF THE DISTRICT BOARD (LANDS OF MURPHY) 

 
The District Board of West Bay Sanitary District determines, finds and declares as 
follows: 

 
(a) The proceedings, which are the subject of the Resolution, are undertaken pursuant to 
Chapter 3 of Part 2 of Division 5 (commencing with Section 6950) of the California 
Health & Safety (“H & S”) Code having to do with the formation of, and annexations to, 
on-site wastewater disposal zones. 
 
(b) On March 10, 2021 the District Board approved and adopted Resolution No. 2238 
(2021), “RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO ANNEX CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 
WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT ON-SITE WASTEWATER DISPOSAL ZONE.”   
Among other things, Resolution No. 2238 (2021) described the area to be annexed to 
the zone, the name and address of the applicant and the number, type, volume and 
location of on-site wastewater disposal systems proposed. 
 
(c) Pursuant to Resolution No. 2238 (2021), a public hearing was noticed in the manner 
required by H&S § 6958.  The public hearing was commenced on April 28, 2021 and 

closed on April 28, 2021. 
 
(d) Prior to the close of the hearing, the District Board received and considered reports 
from the following public officials and agencies as required by law: 
 

i.  From the Public Health and Environmental Protection Division, Health 
Services Agency of the County of San Mateo, a letter dated April 12, 2021, 
constituting the report of the local health officer specifying the matters 
required by H & S § 6960.1. 

 
ii.  From the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Francisco 

Bay Region, a letter dated April 9, 2021 constituting the report of the affected 
regional water quality control board with regard to the matters required by H 
& S § 6960.1 and approving the proposed plan for wastewater disposal by the 

affected regional water quality control board required by H & S § 6960.4. 

 
iii.  From San Mateo Local Agency Formation Commission, a letter and 

resolution by which the commission approved annexation to the District and 
the District’s On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone. 

 

6-2



(e) At all times during the public hearing, the District was prepared to hear and receive 
any oral or written protests, objections and evidence which might be offered.  No oral or 
written protests, objections or evidence in opposition to the proposal were made, 
presented or filed at any time.  Therefore, pursuant to H & S § 6963, it is determined that 

written protests filed and not withdrawn prior to the conclusion of the public hearing 
represented: 
 

i.  Less than 35 percent of the number of voters who reside in the territory to be 
annexed to the zone; and 

 
ii.  Less than 35 percent of the number of owners of real property in the territory 

to be annexed to the zone who also own not less than 35 percent of the 
assessed value of real property in the territory to be annexed to the zone. 

 
(f) The number and types of on-site wastewater disposal systems proposed to be 
acquired, operated, maintained and monitored in the territory to be annexed to the zone 
are in conformity with and do not exceed the limitations set forth in the reports referred to 
(d) i.  and ii. above. 
 
(g) The territory proposed for annexation to the zone contains two (2) voters as defined 
in the Elections Code. 
 
(h) Operation of the zone in the territory to be annexed will not result in land uses that 
are not consistent with general plans, zoning ordinances or other land use regulations of 
the Town of Portola Valley, the County of San Mateo or any other affected public 
agency. 
 

 In consideration of the foregoing determinations, findings and declarations, 
 
 IT IS RESOLVED by the District Board as follows: 
 

1.  The territory described in Exhibit “A” shall be annexed to the West Bay Sanitary 
District On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone. 

 
2.  This annexation shall be accomplished without an election and confirmation of voters 

within the area to be annexed shall not be required on the question of such 
annexation. 

 
3.  The exterior boundaries of the annexation shall include the same territory described 

in Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. 2238 (2021), which Exhibit “A” is attached to this 
Resolution and incorporated herein by reference. 

 
4.  There shall be one on-site wastewater disposal system serving one residential user 

in the territory to be annexed to the zone, which system the District will either 
acquire, operate, maintain or monitor, as the case may be, all as set forth in Exhibit 
“B” to Resolution No. 2238 (2021), which Exhibit “B” is attached to this Resolution 
and incorporated herein by reference. 

 
5.  Operations of the portions of the zone annexed herein shall be financed by a system 

of fees and charges imposed upon persons who make use of the on-site wastewater 
disposal system in the territory annexed to the zone.  The fees and charges will be 
structured to take into account the actual costs of operating and administering the 
zone and the maintenance, repair and replacement of wastewater facilities within the 

6-3



territory annexed to the zone.  The fees and charges will, to the extent applicable, 
include the cost of transporting zone-generated wastewaters to appropriate 
wastewater treatment facilities.   

 
****** 

 
Passed and adopted by the District Board of West Bay Sanitary District at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 28th day of April, 2021 by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 
 

______________________________ 
President of the District Board of the     
West Bay Sanitary District, San  
Mateo County, State of California 

       
Attest: 

 
_______________________________ 
Secretary of the District Board of the 
West Bay Sanitary District, San Mateo 
County, State of California 
 

6-4



6-5



6-6

jonathan.werness
Rectangle



!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2!!2
!!2!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

© OpenStreetMap (and) contributors, CC-BY-SA

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
EXHIBIT "B"

SITE LOCATION
30 CHEYENNE POINT
PORTOLA VALLEY, CA

GRINDER SYSTEM

Sewer Mains
Type

Gravity Main

!!2 Sewer Manholes

OWDZ Pump System

OWDZ Force Main

(1) Grinder Pump System
200 Gallons Per Day (GPD)
APN: 077-242-190
Lands of Murphy
30 Cheyenne Point
Portola Valley, CA
Location of System: Front of property

6-7

jonathan.werness
Polygonal Line



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

6-8



1902 - Serving Our Community for over 115 Years - 2021 
WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT  

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE DISTRICT BOARD  

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 14, 2021 AT 7:00 P.M. 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
President Dehn called the meeting to order at   7:01PM 

 
Roll Call        

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: President Dehn, Secretary Walker, Treasurer Thiele- 

Sardiña, Director Moritz, Director Otte 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: Ramirez, Condotti by Zoom 
Others Present:  Vivian Housen – Housen & Associates, Court Skinner - 

Public Works City of East Palo Alto, Victoria Wong with 
Mid-Pen Housing.    

 
 
2. Communications from the Public:  None.  
 
3. Consent Calendar  
 

Motion to Approve by: Otte     2nd  by: Walker  Vote:   AYE: 4 NAY: 0  Abstain: 0 
 

CONSIDERATION OF ITEM(S) REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 Comments:  None.  

A. Approval of Minutes for Regular meeting March 24, 2021  
B. Approval of the Financial Activity Report Authorizing Payment of  

Certain Bills and Salaries and Consideration of Other Financial Matters thru March 
31, 2021 

C. WBSD Operations and Maintenance Report – March 2021  
D. Town of Los Altos Hills Operations and Maintenance Report for Work Performed by 

WBSD – March 2021  
E. Town of Woodside Operations and Maintenance Report for Work Performed by 

WBSD – March 2021  
F. Consideration to Approve District’s Investment Portfolio Reports Including 

Transactions of Assets Described Therein as of 3/31/21  
 G. Consideration of a Resolution of Intention to Annex Certain Territory (4 Navajo 

Place, Portola Valley) to the West Bay Sanitary District On-Site Wastewater 
Disposal Zone and to Establish the Date and Time of Public Hearing  

 
 
 
  

 
 
 

 
7A-1



4. Consideration to Accept the East Palo Alto Developers Sewer System Capacity 
Study by V. W. Housen & Associates 

 

Motion to Approve by: Walker     2nd  by: Moritz  Vote:   AYE: 5  NAY: 0 Abstain: 0 
 

Comments:  Vivian Housen presented the second draft of the capacity study showing 
updates per the Board’s request. The Board discussed the possibility of annexing certain 
territories if it would help East Palo Alto Sanitary District.  Victoria Wong, Project Manager 
with Mid-Pen Housing thanked the Board for entertaining the possibility of serving their 
project. Director Moritz questioned V.W. Housen & Associates on the conceptual cost of 
construction and asked if they could easily be doubled. Ms. Housen responded with, yes 
they could when going out to actual construction. 

 
5. District Manager’s Report 
 

Comments:  District Manager Ramirez reported that the Investment Policy and Personnel 
Policy updates are under review and will be ready for Board consideration later in April or 
early May.  He reported that there appears to be about a $2M shortage in Commercial 
Revenue for FY 21/22 due to lower commercial flows because of the COVID-19 pandemic.  
He also reported, Aztec Consultants now has a building permit for the metal storage building 
at FERFF. 
 

1) Administrative:   
a. Personnel Policy is being updated and should be ready by the April 28th meeting. 
b. Housen and Associates will have a draft EPA Sewer System Capacity Study.  
c. District Manager is working with the Office Manager to reorganize the Administrative 

Staff to provide admin support to all department heads.  
 

2) Finance:  
a. The Finance Advisory Committee met to review the new Purchasing Policy. The 

Purchasing Policy will be brought to the full Board for approval on April 14, 2021. 
b. Staff has been working on the draft Budget for FY2021/22. Commercial Revenue will 

be $2M dollars less than the prior year due to the COVID-19 Stay at Home Order.  
c. Sewer Service Charge 218 Notice were mailed by March 10th. The 218 Public 

Hearing will be held on April 28, 2021.  

3) CIP & IT Projects:   

a. Levee Improvement Project:   

i. The comment letter to the Bayfront Environmental Impact Review have been 
delivered. The anticipated date for the final EIR should be by early May.  

ii. District Manager Ramirez has been working with SCWA on a Fish and Wildlife 
grant opportunities to help fund the Levee Improvement Project. A preliminary 
application has been submitted asking for approximately $5,000,000 in grant 
funding towards the Levee Improvement Project. The SCWA requires a 50% 
match minimum.     

b. Construction Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 

i. Staff has obtained a Building Permit from the City of Menlo Park for the Aztec 
Building at the Flow Equalization Facility. Unfortunately, due to Menlo Park 
requirements and recent construction cost inflation, change orders will be 

7A-2



necessary. The IT & Project’s Manager are doing their best to mitigate those 
change orders.  

ii. Precision Pipeline has begun construction work on this year’s CIP project. The 
first construction site was on Gilbert Ave. in Menlo Park. They are currently 
working on easement pipelines off of Van Buren Road in Menlo Park.  

iii. Freyer & Laureta is working on the Bay Front Improvement projects including 
the Influent Pump Station. They are also working on other grant opportunities.     

4) Operations and Maintenance:   
   

a. Collection System:  
i. The new Unit 208 Service Truck is on the road. Staff is looking for feedback on 

the new unit messaging.  
b. Training: 

i. California Water Environment Association (CWEA) certification is continued to 
be endorsed by Management Staff. 

ii. Twenty two of the twenty four maintenance staff are now certified in CWEA 
Collection System Maintenance.  

    
5) Water Quality: 

a. Sharon Heights Golf and Country Club (SHGCC): 
i. There may be a need, in the near future, to restate each party’s respective 

roles according the Long Term Agreement (LTA). As of late, SHGCC 
has been advocating to sell the recycled water to other users. SHGCC 
has been made aware by the District Manager that the Recycled Water 
Plant in owned and operated by West Bay and new users must be 
advocated by West Bay and not SHGCC.    

ii. The recycled water plant has been operating well. The golf course pond is full, 
however, Staff is regularly asking SHGCC to better predict their water 
requirements. 

iii. The first Annual Report is due to the State by late April 2021. Water Quality 
staff would like support in generating the District’s first report. Staff 
reached out to Silicon Valley Clean Water for support, however, their 
Staff suggested the District reach out to the City of Redwood City 
because they do not produce such report. The Water Quality Manager 
and District Manager recommend the District enter into an agreement 
with West Yost for support services for an amount not to exceed 
$10,000.00. The amount is approved in the professional support 
services budget for FY2021/22.   

  
b. Bayfront Recycled Water Facility (BRWF):  

i. Environmental Impact Report (EIR) could be certified by late April/ early May 
2021.  

ii. The Recycled Water Team met with the Recycled Water Ad Hoc Committee 
and District Counsel in a workshop to address several BRWF issues. Staff 
received direction to continue building the plant and proceed with a Recycled 
Water Code.     

c. West Bay: 
i. Staff is continuing to evaluate personnel needs to support the Chief Plant 

Operator (CPO) with the District’s recycled water efforts, due to regulatory 
requirements and staffing overlap; as well as the STEP and Grinder Pump 
Systems. A Utility Maintenance Worker is being considered to support both the 
pump station crew and the Chief Plant Operator.  

7A-3



6) Fleet and Facilities:  
a. Vehicle Maintenance:  

i. Maintenance Operations Staff Managers are reviewing the need for an 
additional hydro cleaning machine for collection system maintenance.     

 
 

7) Personnel: 

i. The District’s new Modification (Ex-Mod) factor is .79 well below the industry’s 
standard. The Ex-Mod factor is the factor by which a standard workers 
compensation premium is multiplied to reflect an insured's actual loss 
experience.  

 
8) Upcoming Events:  

a. Regular Board Meeting: April 14, 2021 

b. Next Regular Board meetings: April 28, 2021. Treasurer Thiele-Sardiña will be 
absent.  

9) Misc./Action Items from Previous Meeting: 
a. West Bay SSOs: Zero SSOs for March 2021.  

b. LAH Contract: LAH requested a contract extension for one year with a 3% rate 
increase. The District Manager is working on negotiating a 4% increase in order to 
recoup the Teamsters negotiated labor increase of 4% in the most recent contract.     

c. Town of Woodside Contract: Staff is negotiating a 4% increase rather than the 
customary 3% yearly increase. The 4% is based on labor negotiations.  

d. Revenue:  The District received an additional $1.5 million dollars from the San Mateo 
County Assessor’s Office for FY20/21 tax roll.  

 
 

6. Consideration to Approve the Revised Purchasing Policy and Resolution 
 

Motion to Approve by: Sardiña  2nd  by: Walker  Vote:   AYE: 5  NAY: 0 Abstain: 0  
 

Comments:  District Manager Ramirez presented the revised Purchasing Policy to the 
Board.  

 
7. Consideration to Accept the District’s 2020 Performance Measurement Report 
 

Motion to Approve by: Moritz     2nd  by: Otte  Vote:   AYE: 5 NAY: 0   Abstain: 0  
 

Comments:  District Manager Ramirez reported on the highlights of the report which 
included zero SSOs in 2020, increased coverage in newspaper articles, and a much lower 
Experience Modification Factor rate of 76%.  A vast majority of measures rated satisfactory 
or above. One item in the “Watch” category includes the number of claims which was four 
for the 2020 year, up from only two in the previous year.  The Board suggested staff add a 
dollar amount to the number of claims to have a better gauge on the impact of such claims.  

 
 
 
 
 7A-4



 
8.  April 14th Update Report on District Response to Corona Virus 
 

Comments:   District Manager Ramirez reported that the front office is now open to the 
public Monday thru Friday 9AM-3PM and that administrative staff will be returning to work 
full time in the office effective May 3rd.  

 
9.   Report and Discussion on Sharon Heights Recycled Water Plant 
 

 
Comments:  District Manager Ramirez reported that there was a recent Comcast 
communications outage in which the plant was unable to produce recycled water for about 
12 hours.  
 

10.  Discussion and Direction on Bayfront Recycled Water Project and Status Update 
 

Comments:  District Manager Ramirez reported that EIR response letters have been sent 
out. He also reported that a meeting with the Recycled Water Committee was held to 
discuss the Bayfront Recycled Water efforts and recycled water code. The recycled water 
code will be reviewed by District Counsel. District Manager Ramirez and District Counsel will 
begin to work with developers on agreements for the proposed recycled water treatment 
plant at Bayfront.  
 

11.  Report & Discussion on South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) 
 

Comments:  President Dehn reported that SBWMA will host a virtual retreat on April 22nd.  
She also reported that a JPA amendment will be brought to the Board for approval at next 
Board meeting on April 28th.  
 

12. Report, Discussion & Direction on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) and Discussion on  
 SVCW CIP Program and Financing 

 
Comments:  Director Otte reported that the SVCW Commission will be considering 
approval of the operating and capital budget. As well as, a new administrative policy to 
reflect claims procedures.  

 
13. Comments or Reports from Members of the District Board and Consider Items to be  

 Placed on Future Agenda 
 
       Comments: None.  

14. Adjournment Time:  The meeting was adjourned at 8:50 PM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7A-5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

7A-6



WEST BAY SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA ITEM 7B 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Bill Kitajima, Projects & IT Manager 
Jonathan Werness, Engineering Technician 

Subject: Consideration to Authorize the District Manager to Issue Class 
3 Sewer Permit No. 1604 for the Construction of Wastewater 
Facilities for 160 Fawn Lane, Portola Valley, California 

Background 

This permit request is for the construction of a Grinder Pump System and force main 
extension to connect into the existing force main on Cervantes Road to serve 160 Fawn 
Lane. 

Analysis 

The plans, profiles, and engineering calculations for the proposed facilities have been 
reviewed by staff and corrections have been made to conform to District requirements. 
Owner has paid all associated fees. 

Recommendation 

The Projects & IT Manager recommends that the Board direct the District Manager to 
file the Notice of Exemption and authorize the District Manager to issue Class 3 Sewer 
Permit No. 1604.      

Attachment:    Resolution ____ (2021) 
Notice of Exemption 
Class 3 Permit No. 1604 
Site Map 

7B-1



 RESOLUTION NO.______ (2021)  
  
 IN THE DISTRICT BOARD OF THE WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
  COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA  
 
 *****  
  
 BE IT RESOLVED, by the District Board of West Bay Sanitary District, County of 
San Mateo, State of California, as follows:  
  
 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REVIEW  
 
Name of Project: 160 Fawn Lane – Grinder Pump System  
  
Location:  160 Fawn Lane, Portola Valley, California 
 
Entity or Person Undertaking Project:  Jeannette Holliday  
  
Determination of the District Board:  
  
This District Board of West Bay Sanitary District determines, upon Staff recommendation, 
that another public agency, specifically the San Mateo County LAFCo, is the lead agency 
for this project.   
  
The District Board hereby certifies that it has reviewed the Negative Declaration prepared 
for this project and has considered the contents thereof.  The Board finds that this 
document is adequate for use by the District in its review of the project.  
  
The District Board finds that the following feasible alternatives and/or mitigation measures 
within its powers, would substantially lessen any significant effects which the project would 
have on the environment: 
                
 N/A 
  
The Board certifies that the Negative Declaration has been prepared and completed in 
compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act and the State Guidelines.   
                
The Board finds that the project Environmental Impact Report identifies the following 
significant effects:  
              
  N/A  
  
The Board further finds that for each of these significant effects:   
 

7B-2



 N/A Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated, into the  
  project which mitigate or avoid the significant environmental effects thereof  
  as identified in the Environmental Impact Report. 
 
 N/A Such changes or alterations are within the responsibility and jurisdiction of a 
  public agency other than the District. Such changes have been adopted by  
  such other agency or can and should be adopted by such other agency.   
 
            N/A Specific economic, social, or other considerations make infeasible the 

mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Environmental 
Impact Report.   

 
 Based upon the foregoing, and upon compliance with District regulations and 
 requirements, as applicable, the project is hereby:  
  
 ____  Approved  
  
 ____  Disapproved  
  
 The District Manager of West Bay Sanitary District is directed to prepare a Notice of 
Determination pursuant to the provisions of the State Guidelines Implementing the 
California Environmental Quality Act adopted by Resolution No. llO5 of this District Board. 
The District Manager is not directed to prepare and file a Statement of Overriding 
Consideration pertaining to the approval of this project pursuant to the provisions of the 
same Guidelines.   

***** 
Passed and adopted by the District Board of West Bay Sanitary District at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 28th day of April, 2021, by the following vote:  
  
Ayes:  
  
Noes:  
  
Abstain:  
  
Absent:  
             ______________________________ 
       President of the District Board of the  
       West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo  
       County, State of California  
Attest:  
  
_________________________________  
Secretary of the District Board of the  
West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo  
County, State of California   

7B-3



Notice of Exemption 
 
To: County Clerk     From:  West Bay Sanitary District 
 County of San Mateo     500 Laurel Street 
 555 County Center      Menlo Park CA 94025  
 Redwood City, CA 94063 
 
Project Title: 160 Fawn Lane – Grinder Pump System 
 
Project Location – Specific: 160 Fawn Lane, Portola Valley, CA 94028 
 
Project Location – Town: Portola Valley       Project Location – County:  San Mateo  
 
Description of Project: Grinder Pump System & Force Main Extension 
 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project: West Bay Sanitary District  
 
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: Jeannette Holliday 
 
Exempt Status:    
CEQA Guidelines Section 15601(b)(3), General Rule; 
Categorical Exemption.  Class 3 – Section 15303 (a) (d) of the State CEQA Guidelines. 

(a) Single-family residences not in conjunction with the building of two or more units. 
(d) Water main, sewage, electrical, gas and other utility extensions of reasonable 
length to serve such construction. 

 
Reasons why project is exempt:  
This project is exempt from CEQA because it can be “seen with certainty that there is 
no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant impact on the 
environment.”  This certainty is based on the District’s past experience with numerous 
sewer construction projects of this nature, and the mitigated measures included in all 
such projects to alleviate any impacts.  Most project elements also are exempt as 
extension of utilities of a reasonable length to serve such construction.  
 
Lead Agency: West Bay Sanitary District 
 
Lead Agency Contact Person: Sergio Ramirez  (650) 321-0384 
 
_____________________  Date: ___________ Title: District Manager 
Signature 
 

7B-4



“PRELIMINARY REVIEW” 
 

160 Fawn Lane – Grinder Pump System 
April 14, 2021 

 
INTRODUCTION.  At the April 28, District Board Meeting, the Board will consider the 
approval of the Class 3 sewer permit for the construction of a Grinder system and force 
main extension for the Lands of Holliday; and the authorization for the filing of a 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) “Notice of Exemption” for the project.  This 
project is proposed by the property owner, Jeannette Holliday. 
  
EXEMPTION REVIEW.  In compliance with CEQA Guidelines, this “preliminary review” 
of the Grinder System Project at 160 Fawn Lane was conducted to determine whether 
the project is exempt from CEQA.  Based on this review, staff has concluded that the 
project is exempt from CEQA under several sections of the guidelines.  In summary, the 
project would not have any significant impacts on the environment because it includes 
little or no expansion of capacity, and will employ mitigation measures to alleviate any 
impacts. 
 
This preliminary review presents and elaborates upon the rationale for the conclusions 
reached by staff. 
 

Staff has concluded that all project elements are exempt under CEQA Guidelines 
section 15061(b)(3) (known as the ”General Rule”), since it can be “seen with 
certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a 
significant effect on the environment.” 

 
This certainty is based on the District’s past experience with numerous sewer 
construction projects of this nature, and the mitigation measures included in all such 
projects to alleviate any impacts. 
 
Past Experience.  The District has completed many miles of sewer construction projects 
and pump station rehabilitation projects in residential areas throughout Menlo Park, 
Atherton, the County of San Mateo, and the Portola Valley area. While construction-
related impacts on land use, traffic, noise, air quality, erosion, drainage, public safety, 
and cultural resources can occur, no significant environmental impacts have resulted 
from this work. 
 
The reasons these have been “less-than-significant” include the short-term nature of 
construction activities, application of the District’s standard construction mitigation 
measures, good community relations outreach programs to inform project area 
residents of construction activities, and active coordination with local jurisdictions. 
 
Construction Mitigation Measures.  Specific impact mitigation measures will be included 
in the proposed project to avoid, minimize, reduce, or rectify for construction-related 
impacts.  These measures are used on all sewer construction projects. The measures 
address dust control; erosion control; noise control; protection of soils; provision for 
adequate drainage; protection and restoration of structures; precautions for working 
near sensitive and unique vegetation, protection and restoration of vegetation, 

7B-5



landscaping, and improvements; public health and safety precautions; community 
notifications; traffic control; and preservation of cultural resources. 
 
Most project elements also are exempt as extension of utilities of a reasonable length to 
serve such construction.  
 

Staff has concluded that most project elements are “categorically exempt” under 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15303 (a) (Single-family residences not in conjunction 
with the building of two or more units) and Section 15303 (d) (Water main, 
sewage, electrical, gas and other utility extensions of reasonable length to serve 
such construction). 

 
This project is being implemented to provide sanitary sewer service to this parcel and 
remove the on-site septic system.  
 
CONCLUSION.   Based on the information presented herein, staff has concluded that 
all of the installation of the Grinder system is exempt from CEQA under the CEQA 
Guidelines Section15061(b)(3) (the General Rule), and that most project elements are 
also exempt under CEQA Guideline Section 15303(a) and (d). 
 

7B-6



7B-7



7B-8



!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

© OpenStreetMap (and) contributors, CC-BY-SA

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
SITE MAP

160 FAWN LANE
PORTOLA VALLEY, CA

GRINDER SYSTEM

Existing Force Main

Proposed Force Main

Existing Gravity Main

Grinder Pump System

160 Fawn Lane

7B-9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

7B-10



Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 28, 2021 

WEST BAY SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA ITEM 7C

To: Board of Directors 

From: Bill Kitajima, Projects and IT Manager 
Jonathan Werness, Engineering Technician 

Subject: Consideration to Authorize the District Manager to Consent to 
the Abandonment of Public Utility Easement at 220 Atherton 
Avenue, Atherton 

Background 

MacLeod and Associates, Inc. on behalf of the property owner has requested the 
abandonment of a portion an existing Public Utility Easement (PUE) that crosses the 
property at 220 Atherton Avenue.  The easement was for overhead utility lines, 
however, existing overhead lines are not constructed within the existing easement. The 
empty portion would be vacated, and a new public utility easement would be dedicated 
for the actual alignment. The Town of Atherton is requiring consent by all utility 
companies that may have an interest in the easement. The District currently has no 
sewer main within the property or easement. 

Analysis  

The District does not have any utilities within the public utility easement. 

Fiscal Impact 

None 

Recommendation 

The Projects and IT Manager recommends the District Board authorize the District 
Manager to provide a “no objection” response to the requester. 

Attachment:   Exhibit A - Letter from MacLeod & Associates, Inc. & response form 

Exhibit B - PUE Abandonment Exhibit 

Exhibit C - West Bay Site Map 

7C-17C-1



7C-2



7C-3



7C-4



!!2

!!2!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

© OpenStreetMap (and) contributors, CC-BY-SA

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
EXHIBIT "C"

SITE LOCATION
220 ATHERTON AVENUE

ATHERTON, CA

Legend
Type

Gravity Main

!!2 Sewer Manholes

220 Atherton Avenue

0 0.05 0.1 0.15 0.20.025
Miles

.

7C-5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

7C-6



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 28, 2021 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 7D 

 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Bill Kitajima, Projects & IT Manager 

 Jonathan Werness, Engineering Technician 
 

Subject:  Consideration to Accept Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant 

to Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 1094 for the Construction of 

Wastewater Facilities for the Development at 1125 Merrill Street, 

and 506 & 556 Santa Cruz Avenue, Menlo Park, California  

 

 
Background  

This permit was for the replacement of approximately 729 feet of existing gravity main 
sewer line on Merrill Street and Santa Cruz Avenue in Menlo Park. This 6-inch Vitrified 
Clay Pipe was upgraded to 8-inch PVC C900 and HDPE in conformance with current 
District Standards. 
 
Analysis  

The Board issued this Permit at the Regular Meeting of April 25, 2019. 
 
The work has been completed and has been inspected, tested, and approved by staff 
as being in conformance with District Standards. The property owner has submitted a 
bond for the one-year guarantee bond of the work, record drawings, CCTV, as well as 
lien releases of subsequent contractors. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Projects & IT Manager recommends that the Board accepts these facilities and 
direct the District Manager to approve the Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 1094. 
 
Attachment:    Class 3 Permit No. 1094 

Exhibit A - Site Map 
   

   

 

7D-1



7D-2



Alm
a Street

El Camino Real

M
errill Street

D
e
rr

y 
L
a
n
e

O
a
k 

G
ro

ve
 A

ve
n
u
e

Doyle S

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS,

USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

Ü

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
EXHIBIT "A"

SITE LOCATION
506 SANTA CRUZ AVE PROJECT

MENLO PARK, CA

SECTION OF MAIN REPLACED 

SECTION OF MAIN ABANDONED

7D-3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

7D-4



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 28, 2021 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 7E 

 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Bill Kitajima, Projects & IT Manager 

 Jonathan Werness, Engineering Technician 
 

Subject:  Consideration to Accept Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuant 

to Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 1097 for the Construction of 

Wastewater Facilities for the Development at 846, 848 & 850 

Portola Road, Portola Valley, California  

 

 
Background  

This permit was for the construction of a gravity sewer main extension to serve 3 new 
homes at 846, 848 & 850 Portola Road in Portola Valley. 
 
Analysis  

The Board issued this Permit at the Regular Meeting of August 14, 2019. 
 
The work has been completed and has been inspected, tested, and approved by staff 
as being in conformance with District Standards. The property owner has submitted a 
bond for the one-year guarantee of the work, record drawings, CCTV, as well as lien 
releases of subsequent contractors. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Projects & IT Manager recommends that the Board accepts these facilities and 
direct the District Manager to approve the Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 1097. 
 
Attachment:    Class 3 Permit No. 1097 

Exhibit A - Site Map 
   

   

 

7E-1



7E-2



!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

/ New Gravity Main

Existing Gravity

Force Main

850 Portola Road

848 Portola Road

846 Portola Road

844 Portola Road

Village Square
Pump Station

7E-3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

7E-4



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 28, 2021 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 7F 

 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Bill Kitajima, Projects & IT Manager 

 Jonathan Werness, Engineering Technician 

 

Subject: Consideration of Resolution Accepting Deed of Easement for 

850 Portola Road, Portola Valley, California 

 

 
Background  

The sewer main extension at 846, 848 & 850 Portola Road is within the properties, 
requiring an easement for ingress, egress and maintenance of the facilities. The 
developer has already recorded a public utility easement that covers the private access 
road and most of the new sewer main, however, left out the upstream manhole that 
encroaches 850 Portola Road. At the District’s request, a separate easement is being 
recorded that encompasses the upstream manhole so that all District facilities are 
within easements. 

  
Analysis 
This easement will ensure that all District facilities on-site are within easements. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
None 

Recommendation  

The Projects & IT Manager recommends that the Board adopt the attached Resolution 
accepting the Deed of Easement. 
 
Attachments:  Exhibit – Site Map, Resolution         (2021), Grant Deed of Easement 
 

 

7F-1



!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
SITE MAP

846, 848 & 850 PORTOLA ROAD
PORTOLA VALLEY, CA

NEW SEWER MAIN EXTENSION
& EASEMENTS

Legend
!!2 Sewer Manholes

PO
RTO

LA RO
AD/

2!!!!!!

2!!!!!!2!!2!!

Existing Gravity

Force Main

New Gravity Main

Existing Easement

New Easement

Village Square
Pump Station

850 Portola Road

846 Portola Road

848 Portola Road

844 Portola Road

7F-2



 RESOLUTION NO.______ (2021) 
 
 IN THE DISTRICT BOARD OF THE WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
 COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
  
 ***** 
 

BE IT RESOLVED that the President and Secretary of the West Bay Sanitary 
District be and are hereby authorized to accept the attached Grant Deed of Easement 
by and between the following parties: 
 

Portola Valley Road LLC 
 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District Manager is hereby directed to place the 
same on record. 
 ***** 
 
Passed and adopted by the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 28th day of April, 2021, by the following vote: 
 
 
 Ayes:  
 
 Noes:  
 
 Abstain: 

 
 Absent: 
 
      __________________________________ 
      President of the District Board of the West  
      Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo County,  
      State of California 
 Attest: 
 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Secretary of the District Board of the  
 West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo  
 County, State of California  
                  

7F-3



7F-4



7F-5



7F-6



7F-7



County of San Mateo 
TRANSFER TAX AFFIDAVIT 

NOTICE: Any material  misrepresentation of fact in 
this affidavit is a misdemeanor under section 
2.93.120 of the San Mateo County real property tax 
code. Any person who makes such a representation 
is subject to prosecution for such offense. 
 
The Assessor-Clerk-Recorder reserves the right to 
report potentially fraudulent recordings to the  
District Attorney’s Real Estate Fraud Unit. 

Per San Mateo County Ordinance Code 2.93.050 

DTT AFFIDAVIT 
This form must accompany any document that 
requires a Documentary Transfer Tax  
declaration, including but not limited to;  
Agreement for Sale;  Assignment of Lease;  
Deed in Lieu of Foreclosure;  Easement;  Grant 
Deed;  Land Contract;  Lease;  Memorandum of 
Lease;   

— — 1.  LOCATION OF PROPERTY: Assessor’s Parcel Number: City: 

     Street Address: Document To Be Recorded: 

2.  IS THIS A FORECLOSURE OR TRUSTEE SALE? □ Yes    □ No (If yes, complete this section.) 

□ Yes    □ No 

a. Is the transferee the Beneficiary or Mortgagee? □ Yes    □ No 

b. Please provide. Name of Trustee: 

Date of original Deed of Trust: 

3.  IS THIS A LEASE? □ Yes    □ No (If yes or no, complete this section.) 

a. Is remaining term of lease, including renewal options, greater than 35 years? 

b. If NO, submit a copy of the lease, or summary, or terms. 

c. If YES, enter the value of the lease interest on line 9a. (For tax calculations.) 

4.  IS THIS A GIFT IN WHOLE OR IN PART? □ Yes    □ No (If yes, give a complete explanation.) 

     Name of the Donor: 

     Name of the Donee: 

Please be aware that certain gifts in excess of $13,000 per calendar year may trigger a Federal Gift Tax. In such 
cases, the Transferor/Donor may be required to fill out a Form 709 (Federal Gift Tax Return) with the Internal 
Revenue Service. Please also be aware that the information stated on this document may be given to and used by 
governmental agencies, including the Internal Revenue Service. 

I, as the Transferor/Donor declare under penalty of perjury that I have read the above paragraph and  
acknowledge that a Federal Gift Tax may be triggered. 

5. ARE YOU ADDING OR REMOVING A CO-OWNER FOR REFINANCING PURPOSES? 
 

□ Yes    □ No 

     If yes, initial to the right to indicate your agreement with the statement below and sign on reverse. 

Initial here: 

 

The proportional ownership interest will revert back to its original holding within one (1) month from the date of  
recording; otherwise I will pay the applicable transfer tax. 

THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT SUBJECT TO PUBLIC INSPECTION. 
Page 1 of 2 Continued on Reverse 

 


  

 (      ) 

SIGNATURE ON REVERSE STILL REQUIRED. 
Signature of Donor: Print Donor Name: Donor Phone: 

7F-8

bill.kitajima
Sticky Note
Completed set by bill.kitajima



7F-9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

7F-10



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 28, 2021 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 7G 

 
 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Bill Kitajima, Projects & IT Manager 
 Jonathan Werness, Engineering Technician 
 
Subject: Consideration of Resolution Consenting to Annexation of 

Territory to the West Bay Sanitary District by the San Mateo 
County Local Agency Formation Commission – 30 Cheyenne 
Point, Portola Valley (077-242-190), Lands of Murphy 

  

 
Background 

The owners of the property located at 30 Cheyenne Point, Portola Valley, Lands of 
Murphy have requested the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) annex their 
property to the West Bay Sanitary District for the purposes of obtaining sanitary sewer 
service. The property has a single-family residence that will need to connect to the 
existing Grinder system force main located on Cheyenne Point.  
 
Analysis 
Attached for the Board’s review is the Geographic/Legal Description (Exhibit A) of the 
property to be annexed, a Site Map (Exhibit B) and the LAFCo Certificate of Completion 
& Resolution No. 1250 (Exhibit C) approving the annexation. 
 
Fiscal Impact  

Property owners have paid all annexation fees, and the fiscal impact would be 
additional sewer service charge revenue to the District once the parcel is connected.  

 

Recommendation 

The Projects Manager recommends that the District Board approve the Resolution as 
presented. 
 

Attachments:  Resolution   ___ (2021) 
    Exhibit A – Geographic/Legal Description 
                       Exhibit B – Site Map 
   Exhibit C – LAFCo Certificate of Completion & Resolution No. 1250 
 

7G-1



RESOLUTION NO.            (2021) 
 

IN THE DISTRICT BOARD OF THE WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

COUNTY OF SAN MATEO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

***** 
A Resolution Consenting to the Annexation of Lands of Murphy (APN 077-242-190) 

to the West Bay Sanitary District 
 
WHEREAS: 
 
1. A petition for annexation of the property described herein to this District was 

initiated by the property owners. 
 
2. The Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) of San Mateo County assigned 

the following distinctive short form designation: Annexation of 30 Cheyenne Point, 
Portola Valley to the West Bay Sanitary District. 

 
3. The property to be annexed is described as follows:  
 See Exhibit “A” attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof. 
 
4. The said property is uninhabited. 
 
5. The conditions of annexation are: 
 

a. In the event that, pursuant to rules, regulations or ordinances of the District, as 
now or hereafter amended, the District shall require any payment of a fixed or 
determinable amount of money either as a lump sum or installments, for the 
acquisition, transfer, use or right of use of all or any part of the existing property, 
real or personal, of the District, such payment will be made to the District in the 
manner and at the time as provided by rules, regulations or ordinances of the 
District, as now or hereafter amended. 

 
b. Upon and after the effective date of said annexation, the territory, and all 

persons entitled to vote by reason of residing or owning land within the territory, 
shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the District; shall have the same rights and 
duties as if the territory had been a part of the District upon its original 
formation; shall be liable for the payment of principal, interest and any other 
amounts which shall become due on account of any outstanding or then-
authorized but thereafter issued bonds, including revenue bonds, or other 
contracts or obligations of the District; shall be subject to the levying or fixing 
and collection of any and all taxes, assessments, service charges, rentals or 
rates as may be necessary to provide for such payment; and shall be subject 
to all of the rates, rules, regulations and ordinances of the District, as now or 
hereafter amended. 

 

7G-2



6. The proposed annexation is for the interest of the landowners and present and 
future inhabitants within the District and within the said property to be annexed. 

 
7. The LAFCo of San Mateo County has adopted Resolution 1250 (Exhibit “C”) 

ordering annexation of the referenced territory to the West Bay Sanitary District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 
 

a. The above described property, pursuant to the order of the San Mateo County 
LAFCo, is hereby annexed to the West Bay Sanitary District, and the District 
Manager is directed to make such distribution of this Resolution as is required 
by law or is desirable. 

b. Pursuant to Government Code Section 56837, the District consents to waiver 
conducting authority proceedings. 

c. The regular San Mateo County Assessment Roll will be used to collect sewer 
service charges.  

d. The territory will not be taxed for bonded indebtedness. 

 
***** 

 
 Passed and adopted by the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District at a 
regular meeting thereof held on the 28th day of April, 2021 by the following vote: 
 
 
 Ayes:  
 
 Noes:  
 
 Abstain:  
 
 Absent:      
      _____________________________________ 

President of the District Board of the West Bay 
Sanitary District of San Mateo County, State of 
California 

Attest: 

________________________________ 
Secretary of the District Board of the West  
Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo County,  
State of California 

7G-3



7G-4



7G-5

jonathan.werness
Rectangle



!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2!!2
!!2!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

© OpenStreetMap (and) contributors, CC-BY-SA

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
EXHIBIT "B"

SITE LOCATION
30 CHEYENNE POINT
PORTOLA VALLEY, CA

GRINDER SYSTEM

Sewer Mains
Type

Gravity Main

!!2 Sewer Manholes

OWDZ Pump System

OWDZ Force Main

(1) Grinder Pump System
200 Gallons Per Day (GPD)
APN: 077-242-190
Lands of Murphy
30 Cheyenne Point
Portola Valley, CA
Location of System: Front of property

7G-6

jonathan.werness
Polygonal Line



7G-7

jonathan.werness
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C

barto
Rectangle



7G-8



7G-9



7G-10



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 14, 2021 

Additional information or topics may be introduced by the DM verbally during the Board meeting. 

 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 8 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 
 

From: Sergio Ramirez, District Manager  
 

Subject: District Manager’s Report  

 

1) Administrative:   
a. Personnel Policy has been updated with the assistance of the Personnel Committee. The 

policy is now being reviewed by District’s Counsel and should be ready by the May 12th, 
Board Meeting. 

b. The V.W. Housen and Associates EPA Sewer System Capacity Study has been delivered 
to the developers who paid for the analysis.  

c. District Manager is working with the Office Manager to reorganize the Administrative Staff 
to provide admin support to all department heads. Administrative staff will return to work in 
the office full time beginning on May 3rd.   
 

2) Finance:  
a. The Finance Advisory Committee will be scheduled to review the Investment Policy once 

District Counsel has reviewed the revised draft policy.  
b. The District received the final large Sewer Service Charge payments from San Mateo 

County for a total of 9 million dollars. This is the final large payments from the County to 
cover FY20/21 expenses, other than a remnant check, which should arrive sometime in 
July.   

c. The 218 Public Hearing will be held on April 28, 2021 for FY21/22 Sewer Service 
Charges.  

d. The Finance Manager is providing Woodard & Curran financial information which will be 
used in the formal State Revolving Fund application for the proposed Bay Front Recycle 
Water Facility. Weekly meetings have been set up so to help with the lengthy process.  

3) CIP & IT Projects:   

a. Levee Improvement Project:   

i. The Environmental Impact Review for the Levee Improvement and Bayfront 
Recycled Water Treatment Facility Project at the Flow Equalization and Resource 
Recovery Facility (FERRF) will come to the Board for acceptance. The Board will 
be asked to accept the report now that the comment period has ended and 
comments have been addressed. Accepting the EIR will allow the District to 
proceed with Levee Improvements to protect against sea level rise and continue 
plans to build the Bayfront Recycled Water Facility.   

ii. Staff continues to work with SCWA on a Fish and Wildlife grant opportunities to 
help fund the Levee Improvement Project. A preliminary application has been 
submitted asking for approximately $5,000,000 in grant funding towards the Levee 
Improvement Project. The SCWA requires a 50% match minimum.     

8-1



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 14, 2021 

Additional information or topics may be introduced by the DM verbally during the Board meeting. 

 

b. Construction Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 

i. Aztec Consultants have begun to mobiles in preparation to build the Metal Storage 
Building at the Flow Equalization Resource Recovery Facility.  

ii. Precision Pipeline continues to work on this year’s CIP project. The first 
construction site was on Gilbert Ave. in Menlo Park. They are currently working on 
easement pipelines off of Van Buren Road in Menlo Park.  

iii. Freyer & Laureta is working on the Bay Front Improvement projects including the 
Influent Pump Station.     

4) Operations and Maintenance:   
   

a. Collection System:  
i. California Water Environment Association (CWEA) has recognized West Bay for 

the state-wide Collection System of the Year award. A CWEA representative will 
attend the Board Meeting to congratulate West Bay for winning this very 
competitive award. The award recognizes excellence several areas including 
outstanding maintenance programs, regulatory compliance, safety & training 
procedures, and overall environmental stewardship and responsibility. 

ii. Crews have been working to uncover a manhole in an easement which is been 
buried for decades. The manhole was buried by about 6 feet of soil. The cone to 
the manhole was removed and a new barrel section and cone were added to bring 
the manhole up to grade. In-house Crews dug as much as 10 feet deep in order to 
properly reconstruct the manhole.   

b. Training: 
i. Twenty two of the twenty four maintenance staff are now certified in CWEA 

Collection System Maintenance.  
    

5) Water Quality: 
a. Sharon Heights Golf and Country Club (SHGCC): 

i. Staff met with SHGCC and a solar company to explore a plan for solar 
power.   

ii. The recycled water plant has been operating well. Staff is regularly working 
with SHGCC staff to better predict their water requirements. 

 
b. Bayfront Recycled Water Facility (BRWF):  

i. The Recycled Water Team met with the Recycled Water Ad Hoc Committee and 
District Counsel in a workshop to address several BRWF issues.  

ii. The next step will be to enter into developer agreements with developers in the 
Bayfront Area.  

c. West Bay: 
i. Staff is continuing to evaluate personnel needs to support the Chief Plant Operator 

(CPO) with the District’s recycled water efforts, due to regulatory requirements and 
staffing overlap; as well as the STEP and Grinder Pump Systems. A Utility 
Maintenance Worker is being considered to support both the pump station crew 
and the Chief Plant Operator.  

 

 

8-2



 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 14, 2021 

Additional information or topics may be introduced by the DM verbally during the Board meeting. 

 

6) Fleet and Facilities:  
a. Vehicle Maintenance:  

i. The Ford C-Max hybrid assigned to the District Manager is up for replacement. 
The Board should have a discussion about purchasing its first full electric vehicle.      

 
7) Personnel: 

i. The District’s new Modification (Ex-Mod) factor is .76 well below the industry’s 
standard. The Ex-Mod factor is the factor by which a standard workers 
compensation premium is multiplied to reflect an insured's actual loss experience.  

 
8) Upcoming Events:  

a. Regular Board Meeting: April 28, 2021 (Treasurer, Thiele-Sardiña should be absent) 

b. Budget Workshop: May 5th, 2021 

c. Next Regular Board meetings: May 12th, 2021  

9) Misc./Action Items from Previous Meeting: 
a. West Bay SSOs: Zero SSOs for March 2021.  

b. LAH Contract: LAH requested a contract extension for one year with a 3% rate increase. 
The District Manager has negotiated a 4% increase in order to recoup the Teamsters 
negotiated labor increase of 4% in the most recent contract.     

c. Town of Woodside Contract: Staff is negotiating a 4% increase rather than the 

customary 3% yearly increase. The 4% is based on labor negotiations.  

d. Revenue:  Late notices have been send to rate payers who are over 90 days late in 
paying the Sewer Service Charge for FY20/21. These rate payers are billed manually. To-
date the District is owed approximately $31,682.52.  

8-3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

8-4



WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AGENDA ITEM 9 

 
 

 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, District Manager 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve a Resolution to Amend and Extend 

the Maintenance Services Agreement Between West Bay 
Sanitary District And The Town Of Los Altos Hills For The 
Operation And Maintenance Of The Los Altos Hills Sanitary 
Sewer System And Authorize The District Manager To Execute 
the Third Amendment to the Agreement  

 
 

 
Background 

Since August 1, 2014 the West Bay Sanitary District (District) has been under contract 
through an interagency agreement with the Town of Los Altos Hills (Town) to provide 
sanitary sewer system operation and maintenance services. The District has provided 
responsive service consistent with the terms of the agreement and has reduced the 
Town’s Sanitary Sewer Overflow’s (SSOs) by over 90%. This arrangement has benefited 
the community by providing professional and responsive service to residents.    
 
The Town’s system consists of approximately 56 miles of collection system pipe, a list of 
High Frequency pipelines, which require more frequent cleaning due to root intrusion, 
and two publically owned pump stations. The Town does not have responsibility for the 
laterals, however, the District does respond to private lateral calls as part of the 
agreement when necessary.  
 
The District has cleaned the 56 miles of pipeline with the exception of pipes that lack 
access due to buried manholes or cleanouts where manholes should exist. Town staff 
works with the District regularly, so as to obtain access whenever possible. The Town’s 
collection system has been video inspected and its condition has been assessed. In the 
prior amendment to the agreement the District was asked to re-assess the High 
Frequency list of pipelines. This impacted the manpower used in the Town and 
inadvertently caused a delay in the 3-year Preventative Maintenance schedule. 
 
Prior to the District engaging in the sanitary sewer system operation and maintenance 
services the Town formally issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) on April 21, 2014, 
whereby the District was asked to submit a proposal for the operation and maintenance 
of the Town’s sanitary sewer system on May 27, 2014. Upon reviewing the proposals, 



the Town decided the District could be competitive in pricing and provide superior 
maintenance services that could lead to the overall improvement of the performance of 
their collection system.  On August 1, 2014 the District and the Town entered into its first 
interagency agreement to provide sewer system services. On June 18th 2015, the Town 
Council approved amendment number one, to the original one-year agreement, to 
provide these sanitary sewer system services for an additional three years.  
 
The District and the Town entered into another three-year contract beginning August 1, 
2018 to July 30, 2021 by amending the previous three-year contract using an approved 
amendment number two. The Town would like to amend the original agreement for the 
third time and has asked for a one-year extension to July 30, 2022.     
 
Analysis 

Some of the highlights of the extended maintenance agreement between the Town and 
District are to continue to: 

1. Maintain 2 pump stations. 

2. Clean a total of 56 miles of sewer line within a three-year basis in addition to their 
“High Frequency” pipeline segments. 

3. CCTV a total of 9.3 miles of pipelines per the contract (this provides for a six- year 
CCTV inspection schedule.) 

4. CCTV their “High Frequency” list as needed. 

5. Respond to SSOs and private lateral service calls. 

6. Maintain the Geographic Information System (GIS) and the Computerized 
Maintenance Management System (CMMS) database in District’s existing GIS 
and CMMS in order to update maintenance records as sewer related work is 
performed throughout the Town.  

7. Provide monthly summary reports. 

8. Provide optional Pipe Patch spot repairs. 

Another option includes performing root foaming to a portion of the Town’s system using 
the District’s existing root foaming contract. This is a pass-through charge from the root 
control company to the Town.  Quantities for root foaming may be adjusted based on the 
Town’s root foaming plan and additional information gathered by the District in the 
course of operating and maintaining the sanitary sewer system. Data collected from 
cleaning, video inspecting, and root foaming will be updated into the CMMS system by 
the District. 

The District negotiated a 4 percent annual cost adjustment to the contract based on the 
negotiated union labor contract which became effective July 1, 2019. The District 
absorbed the labor rate increase since it was under a three-year agreement with the 
Town.  The District also negotiated an increase to the number of hours allowed to 
maintain the GIS and CMMS for the Town. The District has found that this task is shared 
by several staff members and has been underfunded for several years.  The new amount 
will change from 120 hours to 240 hours per year.   



Since both the District and the Town are local government agencies without a profit 
margin, the proposed one-year extension will allow District staff and the Town time to 
negotiate a longer term interagency agreement if it determined to be in the parties’ 
mutual interest.   

The attached resolution authorizing the District Manager to execute a one-year extension 
with the Town includes sanitary sewer systems operation & maintenance, 24/7 
emergency services, asset management services, Pipe Patch spot repairs, and root 
foaming. This extension has a not-to-exceed amount of five hundred and fifty thousand 
dollars. The proposed term of the amended interagency agreement extension is from 
August 1, 2021 to July 31, 2022. 

 
Relevance to Strategic Plan  

Section 4.0 Strategic Partners and Public Affairs: Our objective is to foster beneficial 
relationships to accomplish the goals of the District and to insure a well-informed public 
regarding District business and planning. We will do this by embracing strategic ties with 
other organizations, working closely with regulators, developing a deliberate legislative 
agenda and participating in professional associations. 

This agreement works to accomplish the Board of Directors Vision “We cooperate with 
strategic partners to provide best quality wastewater services” within the Strategic Plan 
2014, referencing the objectives in Sections 4.2 Interagency Maintenance Agreements 
and 4.3 Consolidation.  

Fiscal Impact  

The agreement extension is in the amount not-to-exceed $550,000 and will allow the 
District to recover its expenses in extending its sanitary sewer services to the Town of 
Los Altos Hills.  The revenue will be sufficient to continue to support two full-time 
employees at the fully loaded rate and recover the cost of tools, equipment, and 
materials used in the Town, including fuel and diesel expenses. 

Recommendation 

The District Manager recommends the Board adopt the resolution to amend and extend 
the Maintenance Services Agreement Between West Bay Sanitary District and the Town 
of Los Altos Hills for the Operation and Maintenance of the Los Altos Hills Sanitary 
Sewer System and Authorize the District Manager to Execute the Third Amendment to 
the Maintenance Services Agreement on behalf of the District. 

Attachment:  Resolution 

Sewer Agreement Amendment 3 (1-year extension) 

Exhibit A Pricing Schedule  

Los Altos Hills Maint. Agreement August 2018 Amendment 2 

Town of Los Altos Hills Staff Report to City Council April 15, 2021 



 RESOLUTION NO.             (2021)  
  

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE MAINTENANCE 

SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT AND THE 

TOWN OF LOS ALTOS HILLS FOR THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE 

LOS ALTOS HILLS SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM AND AUTHORIZE THE DISTRICT 

MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE SAME ON BEHALF OF THE DISTRICT 

 
 *****  
  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the West Bay Sanitary District 

Board has read and considered that certain THIRD AMENDMENT TO 

MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF LOS 

ALTOS HILLS AND WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT FOR OPERATION 

AND MAINTENANCE OF LOS ALTOS HILLS SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 

("Agreement"). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary 

District, County of San Mateo, State of California, does hereby RESOLVE as 

follows: 
 

Section 1.        Public interest and convenience require the West Bay 

Sanitary District to enter the Third Amendment to the Agreement for Sanitary 

Sewer System Operations and Maintenance Services with a not-to-exceed 

amount of $550,000.00 (five hundred and fifty thousand dollars) to provide 

preventive maintenance, emergency call-out, and asset management services 

over the next year. 

 
Section 2.       The Board of  Directors of  the West Bay Sanitary 

District hereby approves to the Agreement and the District Manager is hereby 

authorized on behalf of the District to execute the same. 
 

 *****  
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District at a 
meeting thereof held on 28th day of April, 2021, by the following votes: 
 
 Ayes:   
 

 Noes:   
 

 Absent:  
 

 Abstain:  
____________________________________ 

      President of the District Board of the 
      West Bay Sanitary District of San 
      Mateo County, State of California 
Attest_________________________  
Secretary of the District Board of the  
West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo 
County, State of California 



 

-1- 
  

THIRD AMENDMENT TO MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
THE TOWN OF LOS ALTOS HILLS  

AND WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT FOR OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE 
OF LOS ALTOS HILLS SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 

 
This Third Amendment (“Amendment”) by and between the Town of Los Altos Hills (“TOWN”) 
and West Bay Sanitary District (“West Bay”) is dated for references purposes as of April _________, 
2021, with reference to the following facts: 
 

RECITALS 
 

 WHEREAS, on August 1, 2014, TOWN and West Bay entered into an agreement entitled 
“Maintenance Services Agreement Between the Town of Los Altos Hills and West Bay Sanitary 
District for Opertaion and Maintenance of Los Altos Hills Sanitary Sewer System”, (“Agreement”); 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, on August 1, 2015, TOWN and West Bay extended the term of the Agreement 
through an amendment entitled “Amendment to Maintenance Services Agreement Between the Town 
of Los Altos Hills and West Bay Sanitary District for Opertaion and Maintenance of Los Altos Hills 
Sanitary Sewer System”, (“First Amendment”); and 
 

WHEREAS, on July 19, 2018, TOWN and West Bay agreed to modify the scope of work 
and extend the term of the Agreement through an amendment entitled “Second Amendment to 
Maintenance Services Agreement Between the Town of Los Altos Hills and West Bay Sanitary District 
for Opertaion and Maintenance of Los Altos Hills Sanitary Sewer System”, (“Second Amendment”); 
and  

 
WHEREAS, both parties desire to amend the Agreement to adjust the amount of 

compensation, and extend the term of the Agreement. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the covenants, conditions and promises 
hereinafter contained, to be kept and performed by the parties hereto, TOWN and West Bay hereby 
agree that the following section of the aforesaid agreement dated August 1, 2014, as modified by the 
First and Second Amendment, is amended to read as follows: 
 

1. Revision to Section 1 (with additions in italics and deletions in strikethrough) 
 
Section 1.1  Term of Services. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective 

Date and shall end on July 31, 2021 July 31, 2022, the date of completion specified in Exhibit A (as 
modified by this Amendment pursuant to Section 3 below), and Contractor shall complete the work descrbied 
in Exhibit A (as modified by this Amendment pursuant to Section 3 below) prior to that date, unless the term 
of the Agreement is otherwise terminated or extended, as provided for in Section 8 of the Agreement.  
The time provided to Contractor to complete the services required by this Agreement shall not affect 
the Town’s right to terminate the Agreement, as provided for in Section 8 of the Agreement.  
 
 
 



 

-2- 
  

2. Revision to the first paragraph of Section 2 (with additions in italics and 
deletions in strikethrough) 

 
Section 2. COMPENSATION. Town hereby agrees to pay Contractor a sum not to 

exceed $1,489,556 (one million four hundred eight-nine thousand and five hundred and fifty-six 
dollars) $550,000 (five hundred and fifty thousand dollars) based on the scope of services and prices set forth in 
Exhibit A (as modified by this Amendment prusuant to Section 3 below), notwithstanding any contrary 
indications that may be contained in Contractor’s proposal, for services to be performed and 
reimbursable costs incurred under this Agreement. In the event of a conflict between this Agreement 
and Contractor’s proposal, attached as Exhibit A (as modified by this Amendment pursuant to Section 3 
below), regarding the amount of compensation, the Agreement shall prevail.  Town shall pay Contractor 
for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement at the time and in the manner set forth herein. The 
payments specified below herein shall be the only payments from Town to Contractor for services 
rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall submit all invoices to Town in the manner 
specified herein. Except as specifically authorized by Town, Contractor shall not bill Town for 
duplicate services performed by more than one person.  

  
3. Replacement of Exhibit A 
 
Existing Exhibit A to the Agreement, as amended by the First and Second Amendments, shall 
be replaced, in its entirety, with the attached Exhibit A entitled “Price Schedule 2021-2022” 
and incorporated herein.  
 
4. General Provisions 
 
A. This Amendment shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and 

their successors and assigns.   
 
B. Except as modified hereby, the terms and provisions of the Agreement shall remain 

unmodified and in full force and effect.  
 

C. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the same meaning as set forth 
in the Agreement. 
 

D. In case of any conflict between any term or provision of this Amendment and any term 
of provision of the Agreement, the term or provision of this Amendment shall govern. 
 

E. This Amendment shall be deemed to be made in, and construed in accordance with, the 
laws of the State of California. In the event suit is brought by either party hereunder, the 
Parties agree that venue for such action shall be vested in the state courts of California in 
the County of Santa Clara or in the United States District court in the Northern District 
of California. 
 

F. This Amendment may be executed by electronic means and in one or more counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which when taken together shall 
constitute one agreement. 

 
[Signatures on the following page] 



 

-3- 
  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been executed as of the date set forth above. 
 
 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT  TOWN OF LOS ALTOS HILLS 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM    APPROVED AS TO FORM 
AND LEGALITY:     AND LEGALITY: 
 
 
             
District Counsel      City Attorney 
 
 
 
AGREED:      AGREED: 
 
 
             
District Manager     City Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

3723840.1  



WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 5 

 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Sergio Ramirez, Operations Superintendent  
 Phil Scott, District Manager 
 
Subject: Consider Adopting Resolution to Amend and Extend the 

Maintenance Services Agreement Between West Bay Sanitary 
District And The Town Of Los Altos Hills For The Operation And 
Maintenance Of The Los Altos Hills Sanitary Sewer System And 
Authorize The District Manager To Execute the Second 
Amendment to the Agreement  

 
 

 
Background 
In June of 2013 the District Manager and Vivian Housen, of VWH Associates provided 
the Board with an update regarding the potential of consolidating sewer services with 
agencies in our area and the progress of an Interagency Utility Coordination Study.   
 

At that time the Board directed the District Manager and Ms. Housen to proceed with 
discussions with several agencies which could possibly lead to Interagency Maintenance 
Agreements as well as discussions with agencies that could possibly lead to other 
resource sharing arrangements including consolidation. 
 
As a result discussions were held with the Town of Los Altos Hills (Town) just to the 
south of the District. The Town has approximately 56 miles of collection system pipe and 
does not have responsibility for the laterals. The Town is responsible for 2 publically 
owned pump stations.   
 
The Town formally issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) on April 21, 2014 for which the 
District submitted a proposal for the Operation and Maintenance of the Los Altos Hills 
Sanitary System on May 27, 2014. Upon reviewing the proposals the Town decided the 
District could be competitive in pricing and provide superior maintenance services that 
would lead to the overall improvement of the performance of their collection system.  On 
August 1, 2014 the District and the Town entered into its first interagency agreement to 
provide sewer system services. On June 18th 2015, the Town Council approved an 
amendment to the original agreement to provide these sewer system services for a three 
year contract period.  
 



Since August 1, 2014 the District has been under contract with the Town and has 
provided responsive service consistent with the terms of the agreement. Approximately 
56 miles of pipeline have been cleaned, 56 miles have been video inspected, and 
Sanitary Sewer Overflows have considerably declined due to the District’s efforts. Two 
sewer pump stations have been maintained during this contract.  
 
The Town would like to enter into another three year contract beginning August 1, 2018 
to July 30, 2021 by amending the previous three year contract.  
 
Analysis 
Some of the highlights of the extended maintenance agreement between the Town and 
District are: 
1. Maintain 2 pump stations. 
2. Clean a total of 56 miles of sewer line within the three year contract in addition to 

their “High Frequency” pipe segment cleaning. 
3. CCTV a total of 9.3 miles of sewer line each year per contract (half of the system 

is to be inspected within the three year contract.) 
4. CCTV their “High Frequency” list to evaluate the current preventative 

maintenance schedules. 
5. Respond to SSOs and lateral service calls to determine if main is stopped up. 
6. Maintain the CMMS data in District’s CMMS system and update maintenance 

records as maintenance is performed.  
7. Provide monthly summary reports. 
 
Another option provided is to perform root foaming to a portion of the Town’s system 
using the District’s existing root foaming contract. Actual quantity for root foaming may 
be adjusted based on development of a root foaming plan and additional information. All 
data collected from cleaning, video inspecting, root foaming, and manhole locating will 
be updated into the Town's CMMS system by the District. 
The District’s new proposal includes an overall 3 percent annual cost of living adjustment 
along with the following adjustments and options: 
 
1. Unscheduled Pump Station Repairs as needed. The estimated price of $748 per 
incident is based on 4 labor hours per call using the Pump Supervisor and Pump 
Mechanic at their regular labor rate excluding materials/parts.  
The proposed three year extension with the District has been reviewed by staff and the 
Town and the recommendation is to adopt the attached resolution authorizing the District 
Manager to execute an extension with Town of Los Altos Hills for providing operation 
and maintenance services for sanitary sewer systems, 24/7 emergency and call-out 
services, asset management services, manhole data collection, and root foaming. This 



three year contract agreement has a not-to-exceed amount of $1.49 million. The three 
year extension will allow West Bay to complete another full round of cleaning and to 
CCTV inspect half of the Town’s system. The proposed term of the amended agreement 
is from August 1, 2018 to July 31, 2021. 
 
Relevance to Strategic Plan  
Section 4.0 Strategic Partners and Public Affairs: Our objective is to foster beneficial 
relationships to accomplish the goals of the District and to insure a well-informed public 
regarding District business and planning. We will do this by embracing strategic ties with 
other organizations, working closely with regulators, developing a deliberate legislative 
agenda and participating in professional associations. 
This agreement works to accomplish the Board of Directors Vision “We cooperate with 
strategic partners to provide best quality wastewater services” within the Strategic Plan 
2014, referencing the objectives in Sections 4.2 Interagency Maintenance Agreements 
and 4.3 Consolidation.  

Fiscal Impact  
The agreement is in the amount of $1.49 million for the three year period and may have 
a slight positive fiscal impact.  The revenue would be sufficient to support two full time 
employees at the fully loaded rate and recover the cost of the equipment and materials 
used including fuel. 
Recommendation 
The District Manager recommends the Board adopt the resolution to amend and extend 
the Maintenance Services Agreement Between West Bay Sanitary District and the Town 
of Los Altos Hills for the Operation and Maintenance of the Los Altos Hills Sanitary 
Sewer System and Authorize the District Manager to Execute the Second Amendment to 
the Maintenance Services Agreement on behalf of the District. 
 
Attachment:  Resolution 

Proposal for Sewer Maintenance Activities by West Bay Sanitary District Years 1 
through 3 (August through July 31, 2021) 

Second Amendment to the Maintenance Agreement 
Original Town of Los Altos Hills Agreement  
Town of Los Altos Hills Staff Report to City Council  
 



 RESOLUTION NO.             (2018)  
  
RESOLUTION TO AMEND AND EXTEND THE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT AND THE TOWN OF LOS 
ALTOS HILLS FOR THE OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE LOS ALTOS 
HILLS SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM AND AUTHORIZE THE DISTRICT MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE 
DISTRICT 
 *****  
  

WHEREAS, the West Bay Sanitary District Board has read and 
considered that certain Agreement ("Agreement") between the District and 
the Town of Los Altos Hills;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary 

District, County of San Mateo, State of California, does hereby RESOLVE as 
follows: 

 
Section 1.        Public interest and convenience require the West Bay 

Sanitary District to enter the Second Amendment to the Agreement for Sanitary 
Sewer System Operations and Maintenance Services with a not-to-exceed 
amount of $1.49 million to provide preventive maintenance, emergency call-out, 
and asset management services over the next three years. 

 
Section  2.       The West Bay Sanitary District hereby approves the to 

the Agreement for Sanitary Sewer System Operations and Maintenance 
Services and the District Manager is hereby authorized on behalf of the District 
to execute the Second Amendment to the Agreement between the West Bay 
Sanitary District and Town of Los Altos Hills. 

 *****  
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the District Board of the West Bay Sanitary District at a 
meeting thereof held on 8th day of August, 2018, by the following votes: 
 
 Ayes:   
 
 Noes:   
 
 Absent:  
 
 Abstain:  

 
____________________________________ 

      President of the District Board of the 
      West Bay Sanitary District of San 
      Mateo County, State of California 
Attest: 
 
 
__________________________________  
Secretary of the District Board of the  
West Bay Sanitary District of San Mateo 
County, State of California 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

Ta
sk

D
es
cr
ip
tio

n 
of
 W

or
k 
to
 b
e 
Co

m
pl
et
ed

 o
n 
an

 A
nn

ua
l B

as
is

20
18

 U
ni
t 

Co
st

U
ni
t

Q
ua

nt
ity

 p
er
 

Ye
ar

1

Pu
m
p 
St
at
io
n 
M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
. W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 m

ai
nt
ai
n 
th
e 
To

w
n'
s 

tw
o 
pu

m
p 
st
at
io
ns
 fo

llo
w
in
g 
th
e 
sc
he

du
le
 o
ut
lin

ed
 in

 th
e 
or
ig
in
al
 R
FP
, a
nd

 
w
ill
 a
lso

 p
ro
vi
de

 2
4‐
ho

ur
 e
m
er
ge
nc
y 
re
sp
on

se
.

Pu
m
p 
st
at
io
n 
m
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 in

cl
ud

es
 w
et
 w
el
l c
le
an

in
g 
tw

ic
e 
an

nu
al
ly
 a
nd

 
de

gr
ea

se
r a

pp
lic
at
io
n 
as
 n
ee

de
d.

$1
,8
79

.5
0 

m
on

th
12

$
22

,5
54

$
23

,2
31

$
23

,9
28

$
69

,7
12

2
Pr
ev

en
ta
tiv

e 
M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 C
le
an

in
g.
 W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 c
le
an

 u
p 
to
 6
9,
02

3 
fe
et
 o
f 

m
ai
nl
in
e 
pi
pe

 e
ve
ry
 y
ea

r f
or
 th

re
e 
ye
ar
s.
 T
hi
s d

oe
s n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
th
e 
fe
et
 o
f 

m
ai
nl
in
e 
pi
pe

 c
le
an

ed
 in

 th
e 
Hi
gh

 F
re
qu

en
cy
 S
ch
ed

ul
e.
 

 $
   
   
   
   
  1
.3
3 

lf
69

,0
23

$
91

,8
01

$
94

,5
55

$
97

,3
91

$
28

3,
74

6

3
H
ig
h 
Fr
eq

ue
nc
y 
PM

 C
le
an

in
g.
 W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 c
le
an

 u
p 
to
 8
9,
00

0 
fe
et
 o
f 

m
ai
nl
in
e 
pi
pe

. T
hi
s i
s i
n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to
 th

e 
re
gu

la
r P

re
ve
nt
at
iv
e 
M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 

Cl
ea

ni
ng

 p
er
fo
rm

ed
 e
ac
h 
ye
ar
.

 $
   
   
   
   
  1
.3
3 

lf
89

,0
00

$
11

8,
37

0
$

12
1,
92

1
$

12
5,
57

9
$

36
5,
87

0

4

CC
TV

 P
ip
el
in
e 
In
sp
ec
tio

n.
 W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 c
om

pl
et
e 
CC

TV
 in

sp
ec
tio

n 
of
 

ap
pr
ox
im

at
el
y 
49

,3
45

 e
ac
h 
ye
ar
 o
n 
a 
6 
ye
ar
 c
yc
le
, u

sin
g 
N
AS

SC
O
 P
AC

P 
st
an

da
rd
s.
 D
ef
ec
ts
 a
nd

 o
th
er
 c
ol
le
ct
io
n 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
w
ill
 b
e 
in
cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

CM
M
S.

 $
   
   
   
   
  1
.7
5 

lf
49

,3
45

$
86

,3
54

$
88

,9
44

$
91

,6
13

$
26

6,
91

1

5

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 C
at
eg

or
y 
2 
an

d 
3 
Sa
ni
ta
ry
 S
ew

er
 O
ve

rf
lo
w
s.
 W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 

fo
llo

w
 th

e 
To

w
n'
s S

SM
P 
an

d 
O
ER

P 
in
 re

sp
on

di
ng

 to
 a
nd

 c
on

du
ct
in
g 
in
iti
al
 

re
po

rt
in
g 
of
 S
SO

s.
 T
he

 T
ow

n 
w
ill
 se

rv
e 
as
 th

e 
LR
O
. T
he

 T
ow

n'
s S

SM
P 
w
ill
 

cl
os
el
y 
fo
llo

w
 th

e 
W
es
t B

ay
 S
SM

P,
 w
hi
ch
 re

qu
ire

s r
es
po

ns
e 
w
ith

in
 6
0 
m
in
ut
es
 

fr
om

 n
ot
ifi
ca
tio

n.
 F
ol
lo
w
in
g 
th
e 
SS
O
, a
nd

 su
bs
eq

ue
nt
 C
CT

V 
in
sp
ec
tio

n,
 W

es
t 

Ba
y 
w
ill
 m

ak
e 
re
co
m
m
en

da
tio

ns
 a
s t
o 
fo
llo

w
‐u
p 
ac
tio

ns
, i
nc
lu
di
ng

 id
en

tif
yi
ng

 
iss

ue
s r
el
at
ed

 to
 la
te
ra
l c
on

ne
ct
io
ns
. W

e 
co
ns
id
er
 S
SO

 A
vo

id
an

ce
 a
nd

 
Re

sp
on

se
 a
s t
he

 m
os
t c

rit
ic
al
 c
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f o
ur
 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
st
ra
te
gy
, a
nd

 a
re
 

w
el
l t
ra
in
ed

 to
 a
dd

re
ss
 S
SO

s o
f a

ll 
siz

es
, a
t a

ny
 ti
m
e,
 a
s d

es
cr
ib
ed

 fu
rt
he

r i
n 

th
e 
or
ig
in
al
 p
ro
po

sa
l.

Th
is 
ite

m
 p
ro
po

se
s a

 "
pe

r‐S
SO

" 
ap

pr
oa

ch
. W

es
t B

ay
 a
gr
ee

s t
o 
co
m
pl
et
e 
SS
O
 

re
sp
on

se
 a
t n

o 
co
st
 to

 th
e 
To

w
n 
if 
th
e 
SS
O
 in

 q
ue

st
io
n 
re
su
lte

d 
fr
om

 
in
ad

eq
ua

te
 c
le
an

in
g 
by

 W
es
t B

ay
 u
p 
to
 si
x 
m
on

th
s p

rio
r t
o 
th
e 
SS
O
.

$1
,6
39

 
ea

ch
3

4,
91

7
5,
06

5
5,
21

6
15

,1
98

8/
1/
18

 th
ro
ug

h 
7/
30

/1
9

8/
1/
19

 th
ro
ug

h 
7/
30

/2
0

8/
1/
20

 th
ro
ug

h 
7/
30

/2
1

3‐
Ye

ar
 T
ot
al

A
tta

ch
m

en
t 3



6

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 C
at
eg

or
y 
1 
SS
O
s.
 W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 p
ro
vi
de

 S
SO

 re
sp
on

se
 a
s 

de
sc
rib

ed
 in

 It
em

 5
. T
hi
s w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te
 c
re
ek
 m

iti
ga
tio

n 
w
he

n 
ne

ce
ss
ar
y 
fo
r f
irs
t 4

 h
ou

rs
. (
$6

50
 fo

r e
ve
ry
 h
ou

r t
he

re
af
te
r.)
 If
 a
 te

ch
ni
ca
l 

re
po

rt
 is
 re

qu
ire

d 
an

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 $
1,
80

0 
ch
ar
ge
 w
ill
 a
pp

ly
. 

$2
,6
16

 
ea

ch
2

5,
23

2
5,
38

9
5,
55

1
16

,1
72

7

SS
O
 R
es
po

ns
e 
fo
r P

riv
at
e 
La
te
ra
ls
. W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 re

sp
on

d 
to
 S
SO

s r
el
at
ed

 to
 

pr
iv
at
e 
la
te
ra
ls,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 
de

te
rm

in
in
g 
ow

ne
rs
hi
p,
 n
ot
ify

in
g 
th
e 
ow

ne
r o

f t
he

 
iss

ue
, p

ro
vi
di
ng

 th
e 
ow

ne
r w

ith
 th

e 
To

w
n'
s S

SO
 re

sp
on

se
 p
la
n,
 a
nd

 e
nt
er
in
g 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
in
to
 C
M
M
S.

$3
49

 
ea

ch
5

1,
74

5
1,
79

7
1,
85

1
5,
39

4

8
CC

TV
 In

sp
ec
tio

n 
Q
ua

lit
y 
Co

nt
ro
l ‐
 W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 ra

nd
om

ly
 se

le
ct
 tw

o 
lin

e 
se
gm

en
ts
 p
er
 m

on
th
 w
hi
ch
 h
av
e 
be

en
 c
le
an

ed
 in

 th
e 
pr
io
r m

on
th
 to

 v
er
ify

 
th
e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t
he

 c
le
an

in
g.
 

$5
37

 
ea

ch
24

$
12

,8
88

$
13

,2
75

$
13

,6
73

$
39

,8
36

9

G
IS
 a
nd

 C
M
M
S 
U
pd

at
es
. W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 u
pd

at
e 
th
e 
To

w
n'
s G

IS
 

an
d 
CM

M
S 
fil
es
 in

 a
 e
ffi
ci
en

t a
nd

 u
se
fu
l m

an
ne

r a
s d

et
er
m
in
ed

 b
y 
W
es
t B

ay
. 

Th
e 
To

w
n 
w
ill
 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 h
av
e 
lim

ite
d 
on

lin
e 
ac
ce
ss
 to

 th
e 
da

ta
ba

se
. W

es
t 

Ba
y 
w
ill
 in

te
gr
at
e 
ne

w
 li
ne

 a
tt
rib

ut
e 
da

ta
 in

to
 th

e 
m
ap

s o
n 
a 
m
on

th
ly
 b
as
is,
 

an
d 
w
ill
 u
pd

at
e 
th
e 
ne

tw
or
k 
co
nf
ig
ur
at
io
n 
on

 a
 q
ua

rt
er
ly
 b
as
is 
or
 a
s‐n

ee
de

d.
  

Th
is 
w
or
k 
is 
an

tic
ip
at
ed

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
ap

pr
ox
im

at
el
y 
10

 h
ou

rs
 p
er
 m

on
th
 a
nd

 n
o 

m
or
e 
th
an

 1
20

 h
ou

rs
 p
er
 y
ea

r u
nl
es
s a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 b
y 
th
e 
To

w
n.

$1
41

.0
0 

ho
ur

12
0

$
16

,9
20

$
17

,4
28

$
17

,9
50

$
52

,2
98

10
M
on

th
ly
 M

an
ag
em

en
t R

ep
or
t. 
W
es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 p
ro
vi
de

 m
on

th
ly
 

O
&
M
 re

po
rt
s t
o 
th
e 
To

w
n 
in
 th

e 
fo
rm

at
 th

at
 is
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 in

 u
se
.

$5
32

 
m
on

th
12

$
6,
38

4
$

6,
57

6
$

6,
77

3
$

19
,7
32

$
35

4,
27

6
 $
 

36
4,
90

5
 $
 

37
5,
85

2
 $
 

1,
09

5,
03

3

O
pt
io
na

l 1

Pu
m
p 
St
at
io
n 
U
ns
ch
ed

ul
ed

 R
ep

ai
rs
. W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 p
er
fo
rm

 u
ns
ch
ed

ul
ed

 
re
pa

irs
 to

 p
um

p 
st
at
io
ns
 a
s n

ee
de

d.
  T
im

e 
an

d 
M
at
er
ia
l w

ill
 b
e 
ch
ar
ge
d 
fo
r 

th
is 
se
rv
ic
e.
 P
um

p 
Su

pe
rv
iso

r $
10

6 
pe

r h
ou

r/
 $
13

6 
pe

r h
ou

r a
t o

ve
rt
im

e 
ra
te
. 

Pu
m
p 
St
at
io
n 
M
ec
ha

ni
c 
$8

1 
pe

r h
ou

r/
 $
10

4 
pe

r h
ou

r a
t o

ve
rt
im

e 
ra
te
. 

(E
st
im

at
ed

 p
ric

e 
ba

se
d 
on

 o
ne

 4
 h
ou

r c
al
l u

sin
g 
Pu

m
p 
Su

pe
rv
iso

r a
nd

 P
um

p 
M
ec
ha

ni
c 
at
 re

gu
la
r l
ab

or
 ra

te
 o
nl
y 
ex
cl
ud

in
g 
m
at
er
ia
l/p

ar
ts
.) 
Ta
sk
s l
as
tin

g 
m
or
e 
th
an

 4
 h
ou

rs
 in

 d
ur
at
io
n 
w
ill
 re

qu
ire

 a
pp

ro
va
l b

y 
To

w
n 
re
pr
es
en

ta
tiv

e.

$7
48

.0
0 

ea
ch

Su
bt
ot
al
 T
as
ks
 1
 th

ro
ug

h 
10



O
pt
io
na

l 2

U
ns
ch
ed

ul
ed

 C
le
an

in
g.
  C

le
an

 u
p 
to
 7
,2
00

 fe
et
 o
f m

ai
nl
in
e 
pi
pe

. T
hi
s i
s i
n 

ad
di
tio

n 
to
 th

e 
re
gu

la
r P

re
ve
nt
at
iv
e 
M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 a
nd

 H
ig
h 
Fr
eq

ue
nc
y 

Cl
ea

ni
ng

. U
ns
ch
ed

ul
ed

 C
le
an

in
g 
is 
lin

e 
cl
ea

ni
ng

 re
qu

ire
d 
fo
r p

ro
pe

r C
CT

V 
in
sp
ec
tio

n 
or
 u
po

n 
th
e 
To

w
n'
s r
eq

ue
st
. T
hi
s c

ha
rg
e 
w
ill
 n
ot
 a
pp

ly
 to

 C
CT

V 
if 

th
e 
lin

e 
se
gm

en
t h

as
 b
ee

n 
cl
ea

ne
d 
w
ith

in
  6
 m

on
th
s.

1.
33

lf

O
pt
io
na

l 3

H
ig
h 
Fr
eq

ue
nc
y 
PM

 C
CT

V 
As

se
ss
m
en

t: 
W
es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 C
CT

V 
in
sp
ec
t u

p 
to
 

22
,2
50

 fe
et
 o
f p

ip
e 
in
 o
rd
er
 to

 re
as
se
ss
 th

ei
r p

re
ve
nt
at
iv
e 
m
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 

fr
eq

ue
nc
y.
 O
nc
e 
th
e 
CC

TV
 in

sp
ec
tio

ns
 a
re
 p
er
fo
rm

ed
 a
nd

 re
as
se
ss
ed

, i
t i
s 

an
tic

ip
at
ed

 th
at
 w
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
ab

le
 to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
am

ou
nt
 o
f l
in
es
 d
es
ig
na

te
d 
to
 

th
e 
Hi
gh

 F
re
qu

en
cy
 li
st
. T
hi
s C

CT
V 
in
cl
ud

es
 a
 c
le
an

in
g 
if 
ne

ce
ss
ar
y.
 

 $
   
   
   
   
  2
.4
2 

lf

O
pt
io
na

l 4

H
ig
h 
Fr
eq

ue
nc
y 
PM

 C
CT

V 
As

se
ss
m
en

t O
VE

RT
IM

E 
(O

.T
.):
 W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 C
CT

V 
in
sp
ec
t u

p 
to
 2
2,
25

0 
fe
et
 o
f p

ip
e 
in
 o
rd
er
 to

 re
as
se
ss
 th

ei
r p

re
ve
nt
at
iv
e 

m
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 fr
eq

ue
nc
y 
us
in
g 
O
ve
rt
im

e.
 O
nc
e 
th
e 
CC

TV
 in

sp
ec
tio

ns
 a
re
 

pe
rf
or
m
ed

 a
nd

 re
as
se
ss
ed

, i
t i
s a

nt
ic
ip
at
ed

 th
at
 w
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
ab

le
 to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
am

ou
nt
 o
f l
in
es
 d
es
ig
na

te
d 
to
 th

e 
Hi
gh

 F
re
qu

en
cy
 li
st
.T
hi
s C

CT
V 
in
cl
ud

es
 a
 

cl
ea

ni
ng

 if
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
. 

 $
   
   
   
   
  2
.6
0 

lf

O
pt
io
na

l 5
Pa

ss
‐t
hr
ou

gh
 c
on

tr
ac
t w

ith
 D
uk

e'
s f
or
 ro

ot
 fo

am
in
g.
 A
ss
um

es
 h
al
f o

f t
he

pi
pe

s w
ith

in
 1
/3
 o
f s
er
vi
ce
 a
re
a 
re
qu

ire
 tr
ea

tm
en

t a
nn

ua
lly
.

$1
.0
4 

lf

O
pt
io
na

l 6
Pi
pe

 P
at
ch
 R
ep

ai
rs
. W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 p
er
fo
rm

 u
pt
o 
12

 P
ip
eP

at
ch
 re

pa
irs
 a
s 

re
qu

es
te
d 
by

 th
e 
To

w
n.

 $
   
   
1,
53

8.
00

 
ea

ch

O
pt
io
na

l 7

Ad
di
tio

na
l W

or
k 
Ra

te
s:
 R
CC

 $
12

3 
Hr
 / 
$1

58
 O
.T
., 
PS
 S
up

er
 $
10

6 
hr
 / 
13

6 
O
.T
., 

PS
 M

ec
h.
 $
81

 h
r. 
/ $

10
4 
O
.T
., 
Fi
el
d 
Su

pe
rv
iso

r $
91

 h
r. 
/ $

11
7 
O
.T
., 

M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 T
ec
h 
$8

1 
hr
. /
 $
10

4 
O
.T
., 
M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 W

or
ke
r $

71
 h
r. 
/ $

91
 

O
.T
. 

O
pt
io
na

l 8

Au
di
ts
:  
W
es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 p
er
fo
rm

 a
 2
 y
ea

r A
ud

it 
of
 th

e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
en

es
s o

f t
he

 S
SM

P 
an

d 
re
co
m
m
en

d 
re
vi
sio

ns
, i
f n

ee
de

d,
 in

 y
ea

r 2
02

0 
= 
$1

,8
00

.  
   
   
  W

es
t B

ay
 

w
ill
 se

cu
re
 c
on

su
lta

nt
 fo

r a
n 
in
de

pe
nd

en
t 5

‐y
ea

r A
ud

it 
as
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 G
W
DR

 
20

06
‐0
03

 in
 y
ea

r 2
01

9 
at
 c
os
t p

lu
s 1

0%
 (e

st
im

at
ed

 a
t $

15
,0
00

 fo
r 5

‐y
ea

r 
au

di
t)
. 



Attachment 2 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE TOWN OF LOS ALTOS HILLS 
AND WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT FOR OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE 

OF LOS ALTOS HILLS SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 

This amendment ("Amendment") by and between the Town of Los Altos Hills ("TOWN'') and 
West Bay Sanitary District ("West Bay") is dated for references pmposes as of August ___ _ 
2018, with reference to the following facts: 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on August 1, 2014, TOWN and West Bay entered into an agreement entitled 
"Maintenance Services Agreement Between the Town of Los Altos Hills and West Bay Sanitary 
District for Opertaion and Maintenance of Los Altos Hills Sanitary Sewer System", ("Agreement"); 
and 

WHEREAS, on August 1, 2015, TOWN and West Bay entered an amendment entitled 
"Amendment to Maintenance Seivices Agreement Between the Town of Los Altos Hills and West 
Bay Sanitary District for Opertaion and Maintenance of Los Altos Hills Sanitary Sewer System", 
("First Amendment"); and 

WHEREAS, both parties desire to amend the Agreement in order to modify the scope of 
work and to extend the term of the Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the covenants, conditions and promises 
hereinafter contained, to be kept and perlormed by the parties hereto, TOWN and West Bay hereby 
agree that the following section of the aforesaid agreement dated August 1, 2014, as modified by the 
First Amendment, is amended to read as follows: 

1. Revision to Section 1 (with additions in italics and deletions in strilEethrough) 

1.1. Term of Services. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and 
shall end on July 31. 2018 Jufy 31, 2021. the date of completion specified in Exhibit A, and 
Contractor shall complete the work descrbied in Exhibit A prior to that date, unless the term of the 
Agreement is otherwise terminated or extended, as provided for in Section 8. The time provided to 
Contractor to complete the seivices required by this Agreement shall not affect the Town's right to 
terminate the Agreement, as provided or in Section 8. 

2. Revision to the first paragraph of Section 2 (with additions in italics and 
deletions in strilEethrough) 

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Town hereby agrees to pay Contractor a sum not to 
exceed $1,285,000 (one million nve ffimdred and seventy five thousand dollars) $1,489,556 (one 
million four hundred eight-nine thousand and jive hundred and fifty-six dollars), notwithstanding any contrary 
indications that may be contained in Contractor's proposal, for seivices to be perlormed and 

-1-



reimbursable costs incurred under this Agreement. In the event of a conflict between this 
Agreement and Contractor's proposal, attached as Exhibit A, regarding the amount of 
compensation, the Agreement shall prevail. Town shall pay Contractor for services rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement at the time and in the manner set forth herein. The payments specified 
below shall be the only payments from Town to Contractor for services rendered pursuant to this 
Agreement. Contractor shall submit all invoices to Town in the manner specified herein. Except as 
specifically authorized by Town, Contractor shall not bill Town for duplicate services performed by 
more than one person. 

3. Exhibit A 

Existing Exhibit A "Town of Los Altos Hills Proposal for Sewer Maintenance Activities by 
West Bay Sanitary District Years 1 through 3 (August 1 through July 31)" shall be replaced, 
in its entirety, with the attached Exhibit A 

4. General Provisions 

A. 1his Amendment shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and 
their successors and assigns. 

B. Except as modified hereby, the terms and provisions of the Agreement shall remain 
unmodified and in full force and effect. 

C. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the same meaning as set forth in 
the Agreement. 

D. In case of any conflict between any term or provision of this Amendment and any term of 
provision of the Agreement, the term or provision of this Amendment shall govern. 

E. 1his Amendment shall be deemed to be made in, and construed in accordance with, the laws 
of the State of California. In the event suit is brought by either party hereooder, the Parties 
agree that venue for such action shall be vested in the state courts of California in the 
County of Santa Clara or in the United States District court in the Northern District of 
California. 

F. 1his Amendment may be executed in one or more countetparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which when taken together shall constitute one agreement. 

IN WlrnESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been executed as of the date set forth above. 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT TOWN OF LOS ALTOS HILLS 

-2-



APPROVED AS TO FORM 
AND LEGALI1Y: 

District Omnsel 

AGREED: 

District Manager 
2463185.1 

-3-

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
AND LEGALI1Y: 

City Attorney 

AGREED: 

City Manager 



Attachment 4





































































































































































































TOWN OF LOS ALTOS HILLS 
Staff Report to the City Council 

AGENDA ITEM #4.I 

July 19, 2018 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE MAINTENANCE 
SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF LOS ALTOS 
HILLS AND WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT FOR OPERATION 
AND MAINTENANCE OF LOS ALTOS HILLS SANITARY SEWER 
SYSTEM 

FROM: Nichol Bowersox, Utility Engineering Manager {lliib 

APPROVED: Carl Cahill, City Manager C .C . 

RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council: 

Adopt the attached resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute the second 
amendment of the West Bay Sanitary District (WBSD) Maintenance Agreement that 
includes operation and maintenance services for sanitary sewer systems, overflow 
emergency response services, asset management services, manhole data collection, and 
optional root foaming for an additional three years in an amount not to exceed $1.49 
million. 

BACKGROUND 

The Town of Los Altos Hills (Town) is located in Santa Clara County, bordering the 
Cities of Los Altos and Palo Alto, as well as unincorporated areas of the County. Land 
uses within the Town are predominantly single family residential on large lots (typically 
at least one acre). 

The Town currently provides wastewater collection to a little over half of its 
approximately 3,000 developed parcels, with the remainder served by on-site septic 
systems. The Town also provides wastewater collection to a portion of the Loyola 
unincorporated County area, with the rest on septic systems or served by the City of Los 
Altos. The collection system includes approximately 56 miles of sewer pipelines and two 
sewage pump stations owned by the Town (Purissima and O'Keefe), plus additional 
pump stations and sewer lines owned by private residents . .Portions of the Town's 
collection system also receive flow from sewers owned by the cities of Palo Alto and Los 
Altos. Wastewater flows from the Town are discharged to the cities of Palo Alto and Los 
Altos, from where they are conveyed to the Palo Alto Regional Water Quality Control 
Plant. 

The Town is also required to maintain regulatory compliance with the maintenance and 
operation of the collection system as part of its Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP). 
Last updated in May 2016, the SSMP addresses the overall management, operation, and 
maintenance of the sanitary sewer system and is required for all sewer system agencies 



under the Statewide General Waste Discharge Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems, 
adopted in 2006 by the State Water Resources Control Board. 

The Town is responsible for maintaining sewer mains in accordance with the Town 
Municipal Code. In accordance with section 6-4.443(7) of the municipal code, 
maintenance of the sewer lateral between the building and the main is the private property 
owner's responsibility; therefore, the agreement with WBSD pertains to maintenance and 
operation of the Town's sewer mainlines only and does not include private laterals. 

In June 2014, the City Council authorized the City Manager to execute an agreement with 
WBSD to provide operation and maintenance services as well as emergency overflow 
response services. The Town and WBSD executed the first amendment to the 
Maintenance Service Agreement in June 2015 extending the original contract through 
July 2018. 

WBSD, an independent Special District formed in 1902, provides wastewater collection 
and conveyance services to City of Menlo Park, Atherton, Portola Valley, and areas of 
East Palo Alto, Woodside, and unincorporated San Mateo and Santa Clara counties. 
WBSD's current service area is approximately 260 miles including Los Altos Hills. 

DISCUSSION 

WBSD has been under contract with the Town for almost 4 years and they have provided 
responsive service consistent with the terms of the current agreement. Almost all of the 
Town's sewer pipes have been cleaned and CCTV inspected. Sanitary sewer overflows 
have been reduced by more than 90% from 2014 to 2018. In addition, two (2) sewer 
pump stations have been maintained and the transition to a new Computerized 
Maintenance Management System (CMMS) has been completed. 

The Town and WBSD are interested in extending the contract for another three years. 
Town staff has discussed scope changes with WBSD regarding footages for cleaning and 
CCTV inspections. Additional cleaning footage is needed for segments on the high 
frequency cleaning schedule and to maintain an overall 36-month cycle. Based on the 
completed CCTV inspections, the Town and WBSD agreed to a 6-year CCTV inspection 
schedule. The Town is continuing the option of chemical root foaming of approximately 
17% of the Town's lines using WBSD's existing root foaming contract. The Town is re
evaluating the root foaming program and actual quantity for root foaming may be 
adjusted based on development the overall cleaning and maintenance plan. All data 
collected from cleaning, CCTV inspections, root foaming will be updated into the Town's 
CMMS system by WBSD to facilitate more efficient and better planning for future 
maintenance activities. 

The proposed three-year extension with WBSD has been reviewed by staff and the 
Town's sewer consultant and the recommendation is to adopt the attached resolution 
authorizing the City Manager to execute an extension with WBSD to provide operation 
and maintenance services for sanitary sewer systems, 24/7 emergency and call-out 
services, asset management services, manhole data collection, and root foaming. This 
three-year contract agreement has a not-to-exceed amount of $1.49 million. The three
year extension will ensure maintenance consistency and budget predictability for the 



Town and will allow WBSD to continue cleaning of the entire system. The proposed term 
of the amended agreement is from August 1, 2018 to July 31, 2021. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

. Sufficient funds are included in the Two-Year Proposed Sewer Operating Fund Operating 
and Maintenance Account (015-4800-6140) to cover FY 18/19 and FY 19/20 ($968,625) 
of this extension. Allocation for FY 20/21 will be adjusted based on the actual 
expenditures and maintenance· progress. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 
2. Second Amendment to Maintenance Services Agreement Between Town of Los Altos 

Hills and West Bay Sanitary District for Operation and Maintenance of Los Altos 
Hills Sanitary Sewer System 

3. Exhibit A 
4. Maintenance Service Agreement Between Town of Los Altos Hills and West Bay 

Sanitary District for Operation and Maintenance of Los Altos Hills Sanitary Sewer 
System 

5. Amendment to Maintenance Services Agreement Between Town of Los Altos Hills 
and West Bay Sanitary District for Operation and Maintenance of Los Altos Hills 
Sanitary Sewer System 



RESOLUTION NO -----

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOS 
ALTOS HILLS AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF LOS ALTOS HILLS AND 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT FOR OPERATION AND 
MAINTENANCE OF LOS ALTOS HILLS SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 

Attachment 1 

WHEREAS, West Bay Sanitary District's contract with the Town will expire on July 31, 
2018;and 

WHEREAS, West Bay Sanitary District has fulfilled its obligations to the Town under 
the existing contract; and 

WHEREAS, the Town and West Bay Sanitary District desires to extend the contract for 
another three years; and 

WHEREAS, the Town and West Bay Sanitary District desires to modify the scope of 
work; and 

WHEREAS, the Utility Engineering Manager has reviewed West Bay Sanitary District's 
proposal and recommends that the City Manager be authorized to execute an amendment 
to the existing agreement in an amount not to exceed $1.49 million; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the Town of Los 
Altos Hills that: 

1. Public interest and convenience require the Town of Los Altos Hills to amend 
the Maintenance Services Agreement between the Town of Los Altos Hills 
and West Bay Sanitary District for Operation and Maintenance of Los Altos 
Hills Sanitary Sewer System. 

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized on behalf of the Town to execute an 
amendment to the existing agreement with West Bay Sanitary District in an 
amount not to exceed $1.49 million. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of ______ 2018. 

By: ------------
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 



Attachment 2 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE TOWN OF LOS ALTOS HILLS 
AND WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT FOR OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE 

OF LOS ALTOS HILLS SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 

This amendment ("Amendment") by and between the Town of Los Altos Hills ("TOWN'') and 
West Bay Sanitary District ("West Bay") is dated for references pmposes as of August ___ _ 
2018, with reference to the following facts: 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on August 1, 2014, TOWN and West Bay entered into an agreement entitled 
"Maintenance Services Agreement Between the Town of Los Altos Hills and West Bay Sanitary 
District for Opertaion and Maintenance of Los Altos Hills Sanitary Sewer System", ("Agreement"); 
and 

WHEREAS, on August 1, 2015, TOWN and West Bay entered an amendment entitled 
"Amendment to Maintenance Seivices Agreement Between the Town of Los Altos Hills and West 
Bay Sanitary District for Opertaion and Maintenance of Los Altos Hills Sanitary Sewer System", 
("First Amendment"); and 

WHEREAS, both parties desire to amend the Agreement in order to modify the scope of 
work and to extend the term of the Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the covenants, conditions and promises 
hereinafter contained, to be kept and perlormed by the parties hereto, TOWN and West Bay hereby 
agree that the following section of the aforesaid agreement dated August 1, 2014, as modified by the 
First Amendment, is amended to read as follows: 

1. Revision to Section 1 (with additions in italics and deletions in strilEethrough) 

1.1. Term of Services. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and 
shall end on July 31. 2018 Jufy 31, 2021. the date of completion specified in Exhibit A, and 
Contractor shall complete the work descrbied in Exhibit A prior to that date, unless the term of the 
Agreement is otherwise terminated or extended, as provided for in Section 8. The time provided to 
Contractor to complete the seivices required by this Agreement shall not affect the Town's right to 
terminate the Agreement, as provided or in Section 8. 

2. Revision to the first paragraph of Section 2 (with additions in italics and 
deletions in strilEethrough) 

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Town hereby agrees to pay Contractor a sum not to 
exceed $1,285,000 (one million nve ffimdred and seventy five thousand dollars) $1,489,556 (one 
million four hundred eight-nine thousand and jive hundred and fifty-six dollars), notwithstanding any contrary 
indications that may be contained in Contractor's proposal, for seivices to be perlormed and 

-1-



reimbursable costs incurred under this Agreement. In the event of a conflict between this 
Agreement and Contractor's proposal, attached as Exhibit A, regarding the amount of 
compensation, the Agreement shall prevail. Town shall pay Contractor for services rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement at the time and in the manner set forth herein. The payments specified 
below shall be the only payments from Town to Contractor for services rendered pursuant to this 
Agreement. Contractor shall submit all invoices to Town in the manner specified herein. Except as 
specifically authorized by Town, Contractor shall not bill Town for duplicate services performed by 
more than one person. 

3. Exhibit A 

Existing Exhibit A "Town of Los Altos Hills Proposal for Sewer Maintenance Activities by 
West Bay Sanitary District Years 1 through 3 (August 1 through July 31)" shall be replaced, 
in its entirety, with the attached Exhibit A 

4. General Provisions 

A. 1his Amendment shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and 
their successors and assigns. 

B. Except as modified hereby, the terms and provisions of the Agreement shall remain 
unmodified and in full force and effect. 

C. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the same meaning as set forth in 
the Agreement. 

D. In case of any conflict between any term or provision of this Amendment and any term of 
provision of the Agreement, the term or provision of this Amendment shall govern. 

E. 1his Amendment shall be deemed to be made in, and construed in accordance with, the laws 
of the State of California. In the event suit is brought by either party hereooder, the Parties 
agree that venue for such action shall be vested in the state courts of California in the 
County of Santa Clara or in the United States District court in the Northern District of 
California. 

F. 1his Amendment may be executed in one or more countetparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which when taken together shall constitute one agreement. 

IN WlrnESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been executed as of the date set forth above. 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT TOWN OF LOS ALTOS HILLS 

-2-



APPROVED AS TO FORM 
AND LEGALI1Y: 

District Omnsel 

AGREED: 

District Manager 
2463185.1 

-3-

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
AND LEGALI1Y: 

City Attorney 

AGREED: 

City Manager 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

Ta
sk

D
es
cr
ip
tio

n 
of
 W

or
k 
to
 b
e 
Co

m
pl
et
ed

 o
n 
an

 A
nn

ua
l B

as
is

20
18

 U
ni
t 

Co
st

U
ni
t

Q
ua

nt
ity

 p
er
 

Ye
ar

1

Pu
m
p 
St
at
io
n 
M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
. W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 m

ai
nt
ai
n 
th
e 
To

w
n'
s 

tw
o 
pu

m
p 
st
at
io
ns
 fo

llo
w
in
g 
th
e 
sc
he

du
le
 o
ut
lin

ed
 in

 th
e 
or
ig
in
al
 R
FP
, a
nd

 
w
ill
 a
lso

 p
ro
vi
de

 2
4‐
ho

ur
 e
m
er
ge
nc
y 
re
sp
on

se
.

Pu
m
p 
st
at
io
n 
m
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 in

cl
ud

es
 w
et
 w
el
l c
le
an

in
g 
tw

ic
e 
an

nu
al
ly
 a
nd

 
de

gr
ea

se
r a

pp
lic
at
io
n 
as
 n
ee

de
d.

$1
,8
79

.5
0 

m
on

th
12

$
22

,5
54

$
23

,2
31

$
23

,9
28

$
69

,7
12

2
Pr
ev

en
ta
tiv

e 
M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 C
le
an

in
g.
 W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 c
le
an

 u
p 
to
 6
9,
02

3 
fe
et
 o
f 

m
ai
nl
in
e 
pi
pe

 e
ve
ry
 y
ea

r f
or
 th

re
e 
ye
ar
s.
 T
hi
s d

oe
s n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
th
e 
fe
et
 o
f 

m
ai
nl
in
e 
pi
pe

 c
le
an

ed
 in

 th
e 
Hi
gh

 F
re
qu

en
cy
 S
ch
ed

ul
e.
 

 $
   
   
   
   
  1
.3
3 

lf
69

,0
23

$
91

,8
01

$
94

,5
55

$
97

,3
91

$
28

3,
74

6

3
H
ig
h 
Fr
eq

ue
nc
y 
PM

 C
le
an

in
g.
 W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 c
le
an

 u
p 
to
 8
9,
00

0 
fe
et
 o
f 

m
ai
nl
in
e 
pi
pe

. T
hi
s i
s i
n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to
 th

e 
re
gu

la
r P

re
ve
nt
at
iv
e 
M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 

Cl
ea

ni
ng

 p
er
fo
rm

ed
 e
ac
h 
ye
ar
.

 $
   
   
   
   
  1
.3
3 

lf
89

,0
00

$
11

8,
37

0
$

12
1,
92

1
$

12
5,
57

9
$

36
5,
87

0

4

CC
TV

 P
ip
el
in
e 
In
sp
ec
tio

n.
 W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 c
om

pl
et
e 
CC

TV
 in

sp
ec
tio

n 
of
 

ap
pr
ox
im

at
el
y 
49

,3
45

 e
ac
h 
ye
ar
 o
n 
a 
6 
ye
ar
 c
yc
le
, u

sin
g 
N
AS

SC
O
 P
AC

P 
st
an

da
rd
s.
 D
ef
ec
ts
 a
nd

 o
th
er
 c
ol
le
ct
io
n 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
w
ill
 b
e 
in
cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

CM
M
S.

 $
   
   
   
   
  1
.7
5 

lf
49

,3
45

$
86

,3
54

$
88

,9
44

$
91

,6
13

$
26

6,
91

1

5

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 C
at
eg

or
y 
2 
an

d 
3 
Sa
ni
ta
ry
 S
ew

er
 O
ve

rf
lo
w
s.
 W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 

fo
llo

w
 th

e 
To

w
n'
s S

SM
P 
an

d 
O
ER

P 
in
 re

sp
on

di
ng

 to
 a
nd

 c
on

du
ct
in
g 
in
iti
al
 

re
po

rt
in
g 
of
 S
SO

s.
 T
he

 T
ow

n 
w
ill
 se

rv
e 
as
 th

e 
LR
O
. T
he

 T
ow

n'
s S

SM
P 
w
ill
 

cl
os
el
y 
fo
llo

w
 th

e 
W
es
t B

ay
 S
SM

P,
 w
hi
ch
 re

qu
ire

s r
es
po

ns
e 
w
ith

in
 6
0 
m
in
ut
es
 

fr
om

 n
ot
ifi
ca
tio

n.
 F
ol
lo
w
in
g 
th
e 
SS
O
, a
nd

 su
bs
eq

ue
nt
 C
CT

V 
in
sp
ec
tio

n,
 W

es
t 

Ba
y 
w
ill
 m

ak
e 
re
co
m
m
en

da
tio

ns
 a
s t
o 
fo
llo

w
‐u
p 
ac
tio

ns
, i
nc
lu
di
ng

 id
en

tif
yi
ng

 
iss

ue
s r
el
at
ed

 to
 la
te
ra
l c
on

ne
ct
io
ns
. W

e 
co
ns
id
er
 S
SO

 A
vo

id
an

ce
 a
nd

 
Re

sp
on

se
 a
s t
he

 m
os
t c

rit
ic
al
 c
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f o
ur
 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
st
ra
te
gy
, a
nd

 a
re
 

w
el
l t
ra
in
ed

 to
 a
dd

re
ss
 S
SO

s o
f a

ll 
siz

es
, a
t a

ny
 ti
m
e,
 a
s d

es
cr
ib
ed

 fu
rt
he

r i
n 

th
e 
or
ig
in
al
 p
ro
po

sa
l.

Th
is 
ite

m
 p
ro
po

se
s a

 "
pe

r‐S
SO

" 
ap

pr
oa

ch
. W

es
t B

ay
 a
gr
ee

s t
o 
co
m
pl
et
e 
SS
O
 

re
sp
on

se
 a
t n

o 
co
st
 to

 th
e 
To

w
n 
if 
th
e 
SS
O
 in

 q
ue

st
io
n 
re
su
lte

d 
fr
om

 
in
ad

eq
ua

te
 c
le
an

in
g 
by

 W
es
t B

ay
 u
p 
to
 si
x 
m
on

th
s p

rio
r t
o 
th
e 
SS
O
.

$1
,6
39

 
ea

ch
3

4,
91

7
5,
06

5
5,
21

6
15

,1
98

8/
1/
18

 th
ro
ug

h 
7/
30

/1
9

8/
1/
19

 th
ro
ug

h 
7/
30

/2
0

8/
1/
20

 th
ro
ug

h 
7/
30

/2
1

3‐
Ye

ar
 T
ot
al

A
tta

ch
m

en
t 3



6

Re
sp
on

se
 to

 C
at
eg

or
y 
1 
SS
O
s.
 W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 p
ro
vi
de

 S
SO

 re
sp
on

se
 a
s 

de
sc
rib

ed
 in

 It
em

 5
. T
hi
s w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te
 c
re
ek
 m

iti
ga
tio

n 
w
he

n 
ne

ce
ss
ar
y 
fo
r f
irs
t 4

 h
ou

rs
. (
$6

50
 fo

r e
ve
ry
 h
ou

r t
he

re
af
te
r.)
 If
 a
 te

ch
ni
ca
l 

re
po

rt
 is
 re

qu
ire

d 
an

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 $
1,
80

0 
ch
ar
ge
 w
ill
 a
pp

ly
. 

$2
,6
16

 
ea

ch
2

5,
23

2
5,
38

9
5,
55

1
16

,1
72

7

SS
O
 R
es
po

ns
e 
fo
r P

riv
at
e 
La
te
ra
ls
. W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 re

sp
on

d 
to
 S
SO

s r
el
at
ed

 to
 

pr
iv
at
e 
la
te
ra
ls,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 
de

te
rm

in
in
g 
ow

ne
rs
hi
p,
 n
ot
ify

in
g 
th
e 
ow

ne
r o

f t
he

 
iss

ue
, p

ro
vi
di
ng

 th
e 
ow

ne
r w

ith
 th

e 
To

w
n'
s S

SO
 re

sp
on

se
 p
la
n,
 a
nd

 e
nt
er
in
g 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
in
to
 C
M
M
S.

$3
49

 
ea

ch
5

1,
74

5
1,
79

7
1,
85

1
5,
39

4

8
CC

TV
 In

sp
ec
tio

n 
Q
ua

lit
y 
Co

nt
ro
l ‐
 W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 ra

nd
om

ly
 se

le
ct
 tw

o 
lin

e 
se
gm

en
ts
 p
er
 m

on
th
 w
hi
ch
 h
av
e 
be

en
 c
le
an

ed
 in

 th
e 
pr
io
r m

on
th
 to

 v
er
ify

 
th
e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t
he

 c
le
an

in
g.
 

$5
37

 
ea

ch
24

$
12

,8
88

$
13

,2
75

$
13

,6
73

$
39

,8
36

9

G
IS
 a
nd

 C
M
M
S 
U
pd

at
es
. W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 u
pd

at
e 
th
e 
To

w
n'
s G

IS
 

an
d 
CM

M
S 
fil
es
 in

 a
 e
ffi
ci
en

t a
nd

 u
se
fu
l m

an
ne

r a
s d

et
er
m
in
ed

 b
y 
W
es
t B

ay
. 

Th
e 
To

w
n 
w
ill
 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 h
av
e 
lim

ite
d 
on

lin
e 
ac
ce
ss
 to

 th
e 
da

ta
ba

se
. W

es
t 

Ba
y 
w
ill
 in

te
gr
at
e 
ne

w
 li
ne

 a
tt
rib

ut
e 
da

ta
 in

to
 th

e 
m
ap

s o
n 
a 
m
on

th
ly
 b
as
is,
 

an
d 
w
ill
 u
pd

at
e 
th
e 
ne

tw
or
k 
co
nf
ig
ur
at
io
n 
on

 a
 q
ua

rt
er
ly
 b
as
is 
or
 a
s‐n

ee
de

d.
  

Th
is 
w
or
k 
is 
an

tic
ip
at
ed

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
ap

pr
ox
im

at
el
y 
10

 h
ou

rs
 p
er
 m

on
th
 a
nd

 n
o 

m
or
e 
th
an

 1
20

 h
ou

rs
 p
er
 y
ea

r u
nl
es
s a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 b
y 
th
e 
To

w
n.

$1
41

.0
0 

ho
ur

12
0

$
16

,9
20

$
17

,4
28

$
17

,9
50

$
52

,2
98

10
M
on

th
ly
 M

an
ag
em

en
t R

ep
or
t. 
W
es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 p
ro
vi
de

 m
on

th
ly
 

O
&
M
 re

po
rt
s t
o 
th
e 
To

w
n 
in
 th

e 
fo
rm

at
 th

at
 is
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 in

 u
se
.

$5
32

 
m
on

th
12

$
6,
38

4
$

6,
57

6
$

6,
77

3
$

19
,7
32

$
35

4,
27

6
 $
 

36
4,
90

5
 $
 

37
5,
85

2
 $
 

1,
09

5,
03

3

O
pt
io
na

l 1

Pu
m
p 
St
at
io
n 
U
ns
ch
ed

ul
ed

 R
ep

ai
rs
. W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 p
er
fo
rm

 u
ns
ch
ed

ul
ed

 
re
pa

irs
 to

 p
um

p 
st
at
io
ns
 a
s n

ee
de

d.
  T
im

e 
an

d 
M
at
er
ia
l w

ill
 b
e 
ch
ar
ge
d 
fo
r 

th
is 
se
rv
ic
e.
 P
um

p 
Su

pe
rv
iso

r $
10

6 
pe

r h
ou

r/
 $
13

6 
pe

r h
ou

r a
t o

ve
rt
im

e 
ra
te
. 

Pu
m
p 
St
at
io
n 
M
ec
ha

ni
c 
$8

1 
pe

r h
ou

r/
 $
10

4 
pe

r h
ou

r a
t o

ve
rt
im

e 
ra
te
. 

(E
st
im

at
ed

 p
ric

e 
ba

se
d 
on

 o
ne

 4
 h
ou

r c
al
l u

sin
g 
Pu

m
p 
Su

pe
rv
iso

r a
nd

 P
um

p 
M
ec
ha

ni
c 
at
 re

gu
la
r l
ab

or
 ra

te
 o
nl
y 
ex
cl
ud

in
g 
m
at
er
ia
l/p

ar
ts
.) 
Ta
sk
s l
as
tin

g 
m
or
e 
th
an

 4
 h
ou

rs
 in

 d
ur
at
io
n 
w
ill
 re

qu
ire

 a
pp

ro
va
l b

y 
To

w
n 
re
pr
es
en

ta
tiv

e.

$7
48

.0
0 

ea
ch

Su
bt
ot
al
 T
as
ks
 1
 th

ro
ug

h 
10



O
pt
io
na

l 2

U
ns
ch
ed

ul
ed

 C
le
an

in
g.
  C

le
an

 u
p 
to
 7
,2
00

 fe
et
 o
f m

ai
nl
in
e 
pi
pe

. T
hi
s i
s i
n 

ad
di
tio

n 
to
 th

e 
re
gu

la
r P

re
ve
nt
at
iv
e 
M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 a
nd

 H
ig
h 
Fr
eq

ue
nc
y 

Cl
ea

ni
ng

. U
ns
ch
ed

ul
ed

 C
le
an

in
g 
is 
lin

e 
cl
ea

ni
ng

 re
qu

ire
d 
fo
r p

ro
pe

r C
CT

V 
in
sp
ec
tio

n 
or
 u
po

n 
th
e 
To

w
n'
s r
eq

ue
st
. T
hi
s c

ha
rg
e 
w
ill
 n
ot
 a
pp

ly
 to

 C
CT

V 
if 

th
e 
lin

e 
se
gm

en
t h

as
 b
ee

n 
cl
ea

ne
d 
w
ith

in
  6
 m

on
th
s.

1.
33

lf

O
pt
io
na

l 3

H
ig
h 
Fr
eq

ue
nc
y 
PM

 C
CT

V 
As

se
ss
m
en

t: 
W
es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 C
CT

V 
in
sp
ec
t u

p 
to
 

22
,2
50

 fe
et
 o
f p

ip
e 
in
 o
rd
er
 to

 re
as
se
ss
 th

ei
r p

re
ve
nt
at
iv
e 
m
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 

fr
eq

ue
nc
y.
 O
nc
e 
th
e 
CC

TV
 in

sp
ec
tio

ns
 a
re
 p
er
fo
rm

ed
 a
nd

 re
as
se
ss
ed

, i
t i
s 

an
tic

ip
at
ed

 th
at
 w
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
ab

le
 to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
am

ou
nt
 o
f l
in
es
 d
es
ig
na

te
d 
to
 

th
e 
Hi
gh

 F
re
qu

en
cy
 li
st
. T
hi
s C

CT
V 
in
cl
ud

es
 a
 c
le
an

in
g 
if 
ne

ce
ss
ar
y.
 

 $
   
   
   
   
  2
.4
2 

lf

O
pt
io
na

l 4

H
ig
h 
Fr
eq

ue
nc
y 
PM

 C
CT

V 
As

se
ss
m
en

t O
VE

RT
IM

E 
(O

.T
.):
 W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 C
CT

V 
in
sp
ec
t u

p 
to
 2
2,
25

0 
fe
et
 o
f p

ip
e 
in
 o
rd
er
 to

 re
as
se
ss
 th

ei
r p

re
ve
nt
at
iv
e 

m
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 fr
eq

ue
nc
y 
us
in
g 
O
ve
rt
im

e.
 O
nc
e 
th
e 
CC

TV
 in

sp
ec
tio

ns
 a
re
 

pe
rf
or
m
ed

 a
nd

 re
as
se
ss
ed

, i
t i
s a

nt
ic
ip
at
ed

 th
at
 w
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
ab

le
 to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
am

ou
nt
 o
f l
in
es
 d
es
ig
na

te
d 
to
 th

e 
Hi
gh

 F
re
qu

en
cy
 li
st
.T
hi
s C

CT
V 
in
cl
ud

es
 a
 

cl
ea

ni
ng

 if
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
. 

 $
   
   
   
   
  2
.6
0 

lf

O
pt
io
na

l 5
Pa

ss
‐t
hr
ou

gh
 c
on

tr
ac
t w

ith
 D
uk

e'
s f
or
 ro

ot
 fo

am
in
g.
 A
ss
um

es
 h
al
f o

f t
he

pi
pe

s w
ith

in
 1
/3
 o
f s
er
vi
ce
 a
re
a 
re
qu

ire
 tr
ea

tm
en

t a
nn

ua
lly
.

$1
.0
4 

lf

O
pt
io
na

l 6
Pi
pe

 P
at
ch
 R
ep

ai
rs
. W

es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 p
er
fo
rm

 u
pt
o 
12

 P
ip
eP

at
ch
 re

pa
irs
 a
s 

re
qu

es
te
d 
by

 th
e 
To

w
n.

 $
   
   
1,
53

8.
00

 
ea

ch

O
pt
io
na

l 7

Ad
di
tio

na
l W

or
k 
Ra

te
s:
 R
CC

 $
12

3 
Hr
 / 
$1

58
 O
.T
., 
PS
 S
up

er
 $
10

6 
hr
 / 
13

6 
O
.T
., 

PS
 M

ec
h.
 $
81

 h
r. 
/ $

10
4 
O
.T
., 
Fi
el
d 
Su

pe
rv
iso

r $
91

 h
r. 
/ $

11
7 
O
.T
., 

M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 T
ec
h 
$8

1 
hr
. /
 $
10

4 
O
.T
., 
M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 W

or
ke
r $

71
 h
r. 
/ $

91
 

O
.T
. 

O
pt
io
na

l 8

Au
di
ts
:  
W
es
t B

ay
 w
ill
 p
er
fo
rm

 a
 2
 y
ea

r A
ud

it 
of
 th

e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
en

es
s o

f t
he

 S
SM

P 
an

d 
re
co
m
m
en

d 
re
vi
sio

ns
, i
f n

ee
de

d,
 in

 y
ea

r 2
02

0 
= 
$1

,8
00

.  
   
   
  W

es
t B

ay
 

w
ill
 se

cu
re
 c
on

su
lta

nt
 fo

r a
n 
in
de

pe
nd

en
t 5

‐y
ea

r A
ud

it 
as
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 G
W
DR

 
20

06
‐0
03

 in
 y
ea

r 2
01

9 
at
 c
os
t p

lu
s 1

0%
 (e

st
im

at
ed

 a
t $

15
,0
00

 fo
r 5

‐y
ea

r 
au

di
t)
. 



TOWN OF LOS ALTOS HILLS                                         April 15, 2021 

Staff Report to the City Council 
  

 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION TO EXECUTE THE THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE 

MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF LOS 

ALTOS HILLS AND WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT FOR OPERATION 

AND MAINTENANCE OF LOS ALTOS HILLS SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM  

   

FROM: Jen Chen, Engineering Consultant   

Zachary Dahl, AICP, Interim Engineering Services Manager   

 

APPROVED:  Carl Cahill, City Manager 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  That the City Council: 

 

Adopt a resolution (Attachment 1) authorizing the City Manager to execute the third amendment 

of the Maintenance Services Agreement with West Bay Sanitary District (WBSD) that 

includes maintenance services for the sanitary sewer collection system, overflow emergency 

response services, asset management services, and optional pipe patching and root foaming for an 

additional year in an amount not to exceed $550,000. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The Town of Los Altos Hills encompasses 8.4 square-mile area in Santa Clara County and borders 

with Cities of Los Altos and Palo Alto and unincorporated County areas.  The Town owns and 

manages the sanitary sewer collection system which consists of   approximately 56 miles of sewer 

pipelines, 1,700 manhole structures and cleanouts, and two lift stations (Purissima and O’Keefe). 

The collection system currently serves a little over half of the approximately 3,000 developed 

parcels in the Town with the remainder on private septic systems. The collection system also serves 

a portion of the parcels in the Eastbrook and Loyola unincorporated County areas within the 

Town’s Urban Service Area (USA). Wastewater from over 1,800 residential and eight non-

residential service connections is collected through the 56 miles of the sewer network and 

conveyed to the Palo Alto Regional Water Quality Control Treatment Plant through the collection 

systems of Cities of Palo Alto and Los Altos.  

 

The Town is responsible for maintaining regulatory compliance with its Sewer System 

Management Plan (SSMP) which is regulated under the Statewide General Waste Discharge 

Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems by the State Water Resources Quality Control Board.    

 

The Town is also responsible for maintaining the sanitary sewer system in accordance with Town 

Municipal Code. Pursuant to Section 6-4.443(7), maintenance of the sewer lateral between the 

building and the Town’s sewer main is the responsibility of the private property owner and 

therefore the maintenance agreement with WBSD does not include private laterals.  

 

In June 2014, the Town entered an agreement with WBSD for sanitary sewer maintenance services 

as well as emergency overflow response services. A copy of the Agreement is included as 

Attachment 3. The Town and WBSD executed the first amendment to the Maintenance Service 

Agreement in June 2015 extending the original contract for three years through July 2018. The 



Town and WBSD executed the second amendment in July 2018 which modified the scope of work 

and extended the Agreement for an additional three years through July 2021. Both of these 

amendments to the Agreement are included in Attachment 4. 

 

WBSD is an independent Special District formed in 1902 that provides wastewater collection and 

conveyance services to City of Menlo Park, Atherton, Portola Valley, and areas of East Palo Alto, 

Woodside, and unincorporated San Mateo and Santa Clara counties. WBSD currently maintains 

approximately 260 miles of collection systems including the Town’s sanitary sewer system.   

 

DISCUSSION  

 

Contract Renewal vs Extension 

 

WBSD has been under contract with the Town for more than six years and provided responsive 

service consistent with the terms of the current Agreement. The Town’s sewer pipelines have been 

cleaned at least twice and CCTV inspected one time. The lift stations have been serviced on a 

monthly basis and sanitary sewer overflows have been overall reduced by 90% from 2014 to 2021.  
 
The Town and WBSD are interested in extending the current Agreement, and given the current 

uncertainties related to the pandemic and staffing transition in the Public Works Department, a 

one-year extension through July 31, 2022 appears to be the best option. WBSD has experienced 

significant price fluctuations with the fuel and equipment costs and difficulty with manpower 

allocation necessary to uphold the current maintenance schedule and the Town is currently in the 

process of recruiting for a new Public Works Director.  Thus, allowing for an additional year before 

negotiating a new maintenance contract appears to be a good option for both the Town and WBSD.  

 

Staff and WBSD have discussed the terms of the third amendment, which includes a one-year 

extension and a revised price schedule to help WBSD recover additional costs related to increases 

in labor cost and time required for asset management. A copy of the third amendment to the 

Agreement is included as Attachment 2.  The District proposes an overall 4% price adjustment in 

lieu of the 3% standard price adjustment for inflation proposed by the current Agreement. The 

District needs the additional 1% adjustment to offset the additional labor costs resulting from a 

new Labor Union Contract Agreement (Attachment 5). The new Union Contract, effective from 

FY 2019 to FY 2023, increases base wage rate from 3% to 4%. The 1% increase in labor costs was 

not anticipated by the District at the time of contract renegotiation in 2018 and thus was not 

captured in the contract amounts for the past two years. WBSD also proposes to increase the 

allotted time for monthly Geographic Information System (GIS) and Computerized Maintenance 

Management System (CMMS) updates under Task 9 from 10 to 20 hours for the next contract 

year. WBSD expects more than 20 hours a month is needed for the task based on the past records. 

The District estimated 10 hours for the task in 2018 but has since experienced increasing demand 

for work hours to maintain the database. WBSD’s full price schedule for the upcoming year is 

included in Exhibit A of the third amendment (Attachment 2). 

 

Staff has conducted a cost analysis and determined WBSD’s proposal is reasonable and justified. 

The proposed changes to the price schedule will result in 4% increases in the unit prices for all 

services and 7.7 % increases in overall contract amount (base contract plus options) as shown in 

the comparison table below. 

 



 
 

Conclusion 

Staff recommends adopting the attached resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a one-

year extension with WBSD to provide operation and maintenance services for sanitary sewer 

systems, 24/7 emergency and call-out services, asset management services, pipe patching, and root 

foaming.  This one-year contract agreement is capped at $550,000 and will ensure maintenance 

consistency and budget predictability for the Town. The proposed term of the amended agreement 

is from August 1, 2021 to July 31, 2022.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The costs for this operation and maintenance agreement will be included in the Town’s FY 2021-

22 Operating and Capital Budget and adjusted based on the actual expenditures and maintenance 

progress. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Resolution 

2. Third Amendment to Maintenance Services Agreement with West Bay Sanitary District  

3. Original Maintenance Service Agreement with West Bay Sanitary District 

4. First and Second Amendments to the Maintenance Services Agreement  

5. 2019 MOU between West Bay Sanitary District and the Labor Union  

 

  

Cost Comparisons 

3% annual price 

adjustment 

proposed by 

current contract

4% increase due 

to a new Union 

Contract

 4% increase + 

additional 10 hours for 

asset management

Increases due to 

Amendment 3, 

comparing with 

current contract

Base Contract 389,525$         401,211$            405,106$          423,774$                     34,249$                 

Options 120,000$         123,600$            124,800$          124,800$                     4,800$                   

Total 509,525$         524,811$            529,906$          548,574$                     39,049$                 

Overall increase in % 

comparing to current 

contract 

3.0% 4.0% 7.7% 7.7%

Contract Extension to 7/31/2022Current 

Contract 2020-

2021



Attachment 1 

RESOLUTION NO ___________ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOS 

ALTOS HILLS AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A THIRD 

AMENDMENT TO THE MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE TOWN OF LOS ALTOS HILLS AND WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

FOR OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF LOS ALTOS HILLS SANITARY 

SEWER SYSTEM  

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Los Altos Hills and West Bay Sanitary District entered a Maintenance 

Services Agreement for operation and maintenance of the Town’s sanitary sewer system in June, 

2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Maintenance Services Agreement with West Bay Sanitary District will expire on 

July 31, 2021; and 

 

WHEREAS, West Bay Sanitary District has fulfilled its obligations to the Town under the existing 

Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS the Town and West Bay Sanitary District desire to extend the Agreement for another 

12 months; and 

 

WHEREAS Staff has reviewed West Bay Sanitary District’s proposal with a revised price 

schedule and recommends that the third amendment to the existing Maintenance Services 

Agreement for an additional 12 months in an amount not to exceed $550,00 be approved. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the Town of Los Altos Hills 

that: 

 

1. Public interest and convenience require the Town of Los Altos Hills to amend the Maintenance 

Services Agreement with West Bay Sanitary District for operation and maintenance of the Los 

Altos Hills Sanitary Sewer System. 

 

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized on behalf of the Town to execute the third amendment 

to the Maintenance Services Agreement with West Bay Sanitary District for an additional 12 

months in an amount not to exceed $550,000. 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted by the City Council of the Town of 

Los Altos Hills at a regular meeting held on the 15th day of April, 2021 by the following vote: 

 

 

AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:  

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

       Kavita Tankha, Mayor 

 



 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Deborah Padovan, City Clerk 



 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 28, 2021 

 

WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 10 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Sergio Ramirez, District Manager 

Subject: April 28th, 2021 Update Report on District Response to Corona 

Virus  

 

Background 

In early March of 2020, the outbreak of Corona Virus in the USA caused Federal, State 
and Local governments to enact several laws, regulations and guidelines to mitigate the 
impact of the spread and severity of the virus including Shelter in Place.  The District 
has been busy employing measures to meet those regulations and guidelines as well 
as taking action to ensure the safe working conditions of staff and minimize exposure of 
and interaction with the public.  

Analysis  

The District has thus far taken action in regards to: Shelter in Place, Social Distancing, 
Personal Protective Equipment, and the Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP). 

Shelter in Place:  The District as a wastewater agency has been designated as an 
“Essential Service” and supplied employees with letters drafted by legal counsel that 
can be shown to legal authorities, if required, to justify their travel to, during and from 
work.  In addition, the District has developed a Modified Work Schedule that requires 
individuals to stay at home or telecommute in order to reduce interaction and thus the 
potential of any spread of the virus among District staff.  The District has also 
implemented the use of Zoom for meetings to reduce the need for consultants, 
partners, the public and Board member to attend in person.  A camera and large screen 
have been installed to accommodate this mode of virtual meetings.   

Social Distancing:  District staff has employed several measures related to Social 
Distancing including; limiting meeting size to 10, marking seating spots at tables with 6 
foot separation, signage encouraging 6 foot distancing, separation of reporting stations 
to include the FERRF, Plexi-glass shields at the counter and between workspaces that 

10-1



 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 28, 2021 

 

cannot achieve 6 foot distancing, and closing of the District Office to the public unless 
by appointment.    

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE): The District has been engaged in supplying 
employees and Board members with several forms of Personal Protective Equipment 
and emphasizing the frequent and regular use of this equipment.  These items include: 
The distribution of hand sanitizer to employees and Board members, wipes for 
counters, chairs and tables, installation of hand sanitizer at counter, tables and offices, 
N95 masks to all employees, increased counts coveralls, face shields, goggles etc.   

This has caused the District to reassess its inventory and at what levels of existing 
stock should trigger new orders so that the District can maintain adequate levels of 
important supplies to carry us not only through traditionally thought of natural disasters 
but pandemics such as this.  To that end staff has developed an improved inventory 
check list that includes contact information for ordering, expected lag times in ordering, 
minimum levels of stock, Trigger-levels for ordering, dates of stock added to inventory 
and so on.  This should help us be better be prepared for future events where PPE can 
be in short supply or difficult to obtain and District operations can continue 
uninterrupted.  

Injury and Illness Prevention Program:  The District has made a significant effort in the 
way of training employees in how to deal with the COVID 19 response.  We have 
developed SOP’s for both field staff and office staff in dealing with customers while 
maintaining social distancing, utilizing PPE, and remote permitting etc.  We have 
complied with local health officials requirement to complete and post at all entrances 
the Social Distancing Protocols and used that and our SOP’s as a basis for developing 
a comprehensive COVID 19 Preparedness and Response program.   

The District has taken great efforts to inform the public of changes in business 
procedures during this time including website postings, posting notices and information 
on all entrance doors, mailings of letters and flyers to residents, and ads in Facebook 
and YouTube.  The use of Wipes has emerged as a huge problem for the District and 
our outreach has included addressing this problem in the flyers, ads, and 
correspondence to persuade our constituents to refrain from flushing wipes.   

May 13 update: The District has found that it takes at least 3 weeks from the date of 
order to delivery of consumable PPE items such as; N95 face masks (we have received 
2,000 masks since the first March order), 500 face shields, and 150 goggles to protect 
the field staff from droplets and mist while cleaning the sewer lines.   

The District will now be faced with transitioning back to normal operations.  The District 
Office is open on Friday by appointment only. Construction activities are increasing and 
inspections are being scheduled much more frequently.  Social Distancing and PPE will 
continue to be key elements of District life for the foreseeable future.  

10-2



 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 28, 2021 

 

May 27 update: The District has opened the office to the public on Tuesdays and 
Thursdays.  Stickers on the floors and notices on the doors and shields at the counters 
have been placed to remain compliant with the Health Dept.  Wipes and signs have 
been placed in the bathrooms.  All the departments except Administration have 
returned to normal work hours (which are mostly 9/80 schedule but crews are still 
separated with the Satellite Office/Corp Yard.  As a result of these changes have 
updated the COVID 19 response plan and affixed to entry doors as required.  

June 10 update: Staff is resuming normal Pre-COVID 19 work schedules beginning 
June 8, with the exception of some of the Admin staff.  Office hours will open up to 
Monday through Thursday 9am to 3pm.  

June 24 update: As of Friday, June 12 the Administration Office was open by 
appointment.   Office hours continue to be open Monday through Thursday 9am to 
3pm. Staff is continuing to make a concerted effort to be available to the public and 
contractors for business.   

July 8 update: The current YouTube advertisement advising customers not to flush 
wipes or towels has been viewed by 220,653 people and 24% or 50,759 have viewed 
the video to completion.  

August 12 update:  When an employee has been in contact with a known or possible 
COVID 19 positive patient or been in contact with someone who has been in contact 
with a confirmed COVID 19 positive patient they will asked to stay home for a 14-day 
self-quarantine period and will be asked to be tested for COVID 19.  If the employee is 
well enough during the self-quarantine period, they will work from home during this 
time. As soon as the employee is COVID 19 negative, they will be asked to return to 
work.  

September 9 update:  The District’s COVID-19 Preparedness and Response Program 
has been updated through DuAll Safety to include usage of current San Mateo County 
Health Department signage, updated social distancing protocol (verbiage and links for 
continuing SIP order), CDC updates on Coronavirus symptoms, addition of cloth face 
mask and San Mateo County Health guidelines. Training to be scheduled for 
September with DuAll Safety (by ZOOM) for all current updates. Staff has purchased 
two disinfecting fog machines to disinfect surfaces in the Admin and Maintenance 
Buildings, and Operations Building at FERFF. Disinfection of surface are being done 
weekly.  

September 23 update:  Two employees are currently out sick and in quarantine due to a 
possible exposure to COVID-19 per District’s protocol memorialized in our August 12, 
2020 update (above) “When an employee has been in contact with a known or possible 
COVID 19 positive patient or been in contact with someone who has been in contact 
with a confirmed COVID 19 positive patient they will asked to stay home for a 14-day 
self-quarantine period and will be asked to be tested for COVID 19.” Once the 

10-3



 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 28, 2021 

 

employees test negative for COVID-19, or quarantine for 14 days, they will be allowed 
back to work.    

October 14 update:   No updates at this time.  

October 28 update: Updated training on the Response Program will be conducted in 
October.  Two office employees were experiencing COVID-19 symptoms and were 
asked to work from home until test results were available.  Both employees tested 
negative and have returned to work.  

November 18 update:  Updated training on the Response Program will be conducted on 
November 16.  

December 9 update:  The District is following all County of San Mateo increased 
COVID-19 restrictions and has cancelled our Holiday Luncheon out of an abundance of 
caution. 

January 13, 2021 update:  The front office is now limiting customers inside the lobby to 
no more than one. Others are asked to socially distance outside while they wait. Staff is 
working on the new COVID-19 Prevention Emergency Temporary Standards regarding 
prevention and reporting outbreaks.  

January 27, 2021 update:  The new COVID-19 Prevention Plan is complete and staff 
will receive training shortly.  

February 10, 2021 update:  Updated training on the Response Program was provided 
on February 2.  

February 24, 2021 update:  District Manager issued COVID-19 Vaccine letter to staff so 
they may schedule their vaccine on or after February 22, 2021 as part of the Phase 1B. 

March 10, 2021 update:  To date 7 employees have received at least one vaccine shot 
and approximately 3 others have received appointments.  

March 24, 2021 update:  Approximately 10 employees have been vaccinated.  

April 14, 2021 update:  The front office is back open to the public with limited hours of 
9am-3pm Monday thru Friday with one customer being allowed in the lobby at a time.  
All four front office staff have received their second vaccine. Approximately, 33% of all 
staff have received one or more vaccine shots.  

April 28, 2021 update: Approximately 50% of West Staff has been vaccinated. Effective 
May 3rd the Administrative staff will begin to work in the office full time, rather than from 
home, as they were for one to two days per week. 

Fiscal Impact  

While there has been considerable expense to implementing some of the COVID 19 
mitigation measures such as; converting the FERRF office space (approx. $2,000), 
purchasing PPE for stock ($8,000 to $10,000), Public Outreach ($10,500), Zoom 

10-4



 

 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 28, 2021 

 

Meeting Equipment (approx. $6,000) these expenses were absorbed in the Operating 
budget.  The FY2020-21 Budget could be substantially impacted by the effects of the 
national COVID 19 response. To date approximately $5300.00 has been spent in PPE, 
$2000.00 in disinfecting equipment, and $1927.00 in producing and updating the 
COVID 19 Response Plan.  

 

Recommendation 

The District Manager recommends the Board accept this report and provide comments 
to the District Manager in regards to the report.  Additional information may be available 
at the Board meeting as conditions and responses are rapidly changing throughout the 
COVID-19 pandemic.   

10-5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

10-6



        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

  AGENDA ITEM 11 

 

 
 

 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Sergio Ramirez, District Manager 

 

Subject: Report and Discussion on the West Bay and Sharon Heights 

Recycled Water Facility 

 
A discussion will be held on the Sharon Heights Recycled Water Facility and other events 
related to the recycled water plant. The Board will have opportunity to provide direction to 
staff and legal counsel.  
 
 
 
 
 
The following is a disclosure statement required for any document, written report or 
brochure prepared in whole or in part pursuant to the Finance Agreement with the State 
Water Resources Control Board for the West Bay Sanitary District Recycled Water 
Project - Sharon Heights:  
 
Funding for this project has been provided in full or in part through an agreement with the 
State Water Resources Control Board. California’s Clean Water State Revolving Fund is 
capitalized through a variety of funding sources, including grants from the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency and state bond proceeds. The contents of this 
document do not necessarily reflect the views and policies of the foregoing, nor does 
mention of trade names or commercial products constitute endorsement or 
recommendation for use. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 28, 2021 
 

11-1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

11-2



        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

  AGENDA ITEM 12 

 

 
 

 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Sergio Ramirez, District Manager 

 

Subject: Discussion and Direction on the Bayfront Recycled Water Project 

and Status Update 

 
A discussion will be held on the District’s Bayfront Recycled Water Projects and other 
events related to the recycled water projects including financing, environmental review, 
design/build issues and grant applications.  
 
The Board will have opportunity to provide direction to staff and legal counsel.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 28, 2021 
 

12-1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

12-2



            WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 13 
 

 
 

 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Sergio Ramirez, District Manager 

 

Subject: Report and Discussion on South Bayside Waste Management 

Authority (SBWMA) 

 
The District’s representative to South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA), 
President Fran Dehn, will report on any pertinent items regarding SBWMA business.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 28, 2021 
 

13-1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

13-2



        WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT 

 AGENDA ITEM 14 

 

 

 
 

 

To: Board of Directors 

 

From: Sergio Ramirez, District Manager 

 

Subject: Report and Discussion on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) 

Plant 

 
The District’s representative to Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW), Commissioner 
George Otte, will report on pertinent items regarding SVCW Operations, CIP and 
Finance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Report to the District Board for the Regular Meeting of April 28, 2021 
 

14-1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TTTHHHIIISSS   PPPAAAGGGEEE   LLLEEEFFFTTT   IIINNNTTTEEENNNTTTIIIOOONNNAAALLLLLLYYY   BBBLLLAAANNNKKK   

14-2


	Agenda April 28, 2021
	3 - Public Hearing: Consideration to Approve the ProposedIncrease in Sewer Service Charges for Fiscal Year 2021/22
	4 - Consideration to Approve a General Regulation Amending theCode of General Regulations and Establishing Sewer ServiceCharges for Fiscal Year 2021/22
	5 - Public Hearing - Annexing Certain Territory Within the West BaySanitary District’s On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone – Landsof Murphy (30 Cheyenne Point, Portola Valley)
	6 - Consideration of Adopting Resolution Ordering Annexation ofCertain Parcels in the Territory of West Bay Sanitary District tothe West Bay Sanitary District’s On-Site Wastewater DisposalZone Including Certain Determinations, Findings andDeclarations of the District Board – Lands of Murphy (30Cheyenne Point, Portola Valley)
	7A - Minutes April 14th 
	7B - Consideration to Authorize the District Manager to Issue Class3 Sewer Permit No. 1604 for the Construction of WastewaterFacilities for 160 Fawn Lane, Portola Valley, California
	7C - Consideration to Authorize the District Manager to Consent tothe Abandonment of Public Utility Easement at 220 AthertonAvenue, Atherton
	7D - Consideration to Accept Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuantto Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 1094 for the Construction ofWastewater Facilities for the Development at 1125 Merrill Street,and 506 & 556 Santa Cruz Avenue, Menlo Park, California
	7E - Consideration to Accept Sewer Facilities Constructed Pursuantto Class 3 Sewer Permit No. 1097 for the Construction ofWastewater Facilities for the Development at 846, 848 & 850Portola Road, Portola Valley, California
	7F - Consideration of Resolution Accepting Deed of Easement for850 Portola Road, Portola Valley, California
	7G - Consideration of Resolution Consenting to Annexation ofTerritory to the West Bay Sanitary District by the San MateoCounty Local Agency Formation Commission – 30 CheyennePoint, Portola Valley (077-242-190), Lands of Murphy
	8 - District Manager’s Report
	9 - Consideration to Approve a Resolution to Amend and Extendthe Maintenance Services Agreement Between West BaySanitary District And The Town Of Los Altos Hills For TheOperation And Maintenance Of The Los Altos Hills SanitarySewer System And Authorize The District Manager To Executethe Third Amendment to the Agreement
	10 - April 28th, 2021 Update Report on District Response to CoronaVirus
	11 - Report and Discussion on the West Bay and Sharon HeightsRecycled Water Facility
	12 - Discussion and Direction on the Bayfront Recycled Water Projectand Status Update
	13 - Report and Discussion on South Bayside Waste ManagementAuthority (SBWMA)
	Report and Discussion on Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW)Plant

	Book: 076
	Page: 261
	Parcel: 180
	City: Portola Valley
	Street Address: 850 Portola Road
	EASEMENT: EASEMENT
	Item 2: No
	Item 3: No
	Item 3a: No
	Item 4: No
	Item 5: No


